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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BBC WORLDWIDE LIMITED

We have audited the revised financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited (the 'Company') for the
year ended 31 March 2016 which compnise the Consolidated income statement, Consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, Consolidated balance sheet, Consolidated cash flow statement
and Consolidated statement of changes in equity, the related notes 1 to 37, the Company balance
sheet and the related notes a to s The revised financial statements replace the onginal financial
statements approved by the directors on 13 June 2016 and consist of the attached supplementary
note together with the onginal financial statements which were circulated to shareholders on 13 June
2016

The revised financial statements have been prepared under the Companies (Revision of Defective
Accounts and Report) Regutations 2008 (As amended) and accordingly do not take account of events
which have taken place after the date on which the onginal financial statements were approved

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with the Companies
(Rewvision of Defective Accounts and Report) Regulations 2008 (As amended) Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responstbility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the revised financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU for the
group financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” for the
Company financial statements, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view are set out in
the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to audit the revised financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the revised financial statements give a true and farr view
and have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the EU for the group financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework” for the Company financial statements and are prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as they have effect under the Companies (Rewvision of
Defective Accounts and Report) Regulations 2008 (As 9mended)

In addition we report to you f, in our opinion, the Company has not kept adequate accounting records
or if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit or if
disclosures of directors' benefits, remuneration, pensions and compensation for loss of office
specified by law are not made

We are also required 1o report whether, in our opinion, the onginal financial statements failed to
comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 in the respects identified by the directors

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audid in accordance with International Standards on Audiing (United Kingdom and
Iretand) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audtt includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the revised financial statements It also includes
an assessment of the significant estrmates and judgements made by the directors in the preparaton
of the revised financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Gompany's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed







INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BBC WORLDWIDE LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

The audit of revised financial statements includes the performance of additional procedures to assess
whether the revisions made by the directors are appropnate and have been properly made

We planned and performed our audit 5o as to obtan all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the revised financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
other imegularity or error In forming our opimon we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of infarmation in the revised financial statements

Opinion
in our opinion

s the revised financial statements give a true and far view, seen as at the date the original
financial statements ware approved, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 March 2016
and of ts profit for the year then ended,

e the revised financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU for the group financial statements
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generalty Accepted Accounting
Practice), including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” for the Company financial
statements, seen as at the date the onginal financial statements were approved,

e the revised financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 as they have effect under the Companies (Revision of Defective
Accounts and Report) Regulations 2008(As amended),

+ the onginal financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 failed to comply with the
requiremants of the Companias Act 2006 in the respects identified by the direclors in the
statement contained in the supplementary note

Emphasis of matter — revision of the disclosure related to subsidiary companies claiming
exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companles Act

In forming our opinion on the revised financial statements, which 1s not qualified, we have considered
the adequacy of the disclosures made in the supplementary note concerning the need to revise the
disclosure related to subsidiary companies claiming exemption from audit under section 479A of the
Companies Act The onginal financial statements were approved on 13 June 2016 and our previous
report was signed on that date We have not performed a subsequent events review for the period
from the date of our previous report to the date of this report

Richard Wilsen (Senior StatutozAudltor) '

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Address

13 December 2016
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. Throughout this Review, headline sales refers to gross revenue including the Group's share of revenues from joint ventures Headline profit refers to operating profit

before specific items and Includes the Group’s share of operating profits from joint ventures and assoctates Specific tems are set out on page 8. A reconcillation between
headline profit and profit before tax is presented in the Chlef Financial Officer’s review on page 8

Undertying growth 1s based on the comparison of 2015/16 results to 2014715 resufts on a like-for-like basis, | e after adjusting for the impact of derecognising BBC AMERICA
results This differs from the separately dlsclosed seven months of headline sales and profit recorded in 2014/15 due to the subseguent share of BBC AMERICA profit recorded
in both years and the impect of intragroup eliminations as content sales to BBC AMERICA are no longer being eliminated as an internal sale BBC AMERICA was cansolidated in
the Group's resuits up to 23 October 2014 Thereafter, and throughout 2015/16, the Group recognised its share of the net proflts of BB{ AMERICA within continuing operations
In the income statement
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Our business dehvered solid growth in 2015/16 Headline sales were up 2 8%, or 6 7% on an underlying basis
QOur performance enabled us to provide valuable returns well above £200m to the BBC, for a second

consecutive year

Highlights of the year

RETURNS TO THE BBC HEADLINE SALES HEADLINE PROFIT
£222.2m £1,029.4m  £133.8m
(2014/15 £226 5M) -1 9% (2014/15 £1,001 8m) +2 8% {2014/15 £138 6M)-3 5%
+17 6% INCREASE ON PRIOR YEAR +6 7% UNDERLYING GROWTH IN +4 0% UNDERLYING GROWTH IN
RETURNS ADJUSTED FOR DISPOSALS HEADLINE SALES HEADLINE PROFI{TS

PROCEEDS

Supporting the BBC to make world-class programmes

Our primary measure of financial success is returns to the BBC At £222 2m, returns for 2015/16 were almost
in line with the previous year, and were up 17 6% adjusted for disposals, a record Over the past five years,
returns have totalled almost £1bn — money that has supplemented the hcence fee to keep audiences in the UK
informed, educated and entertained

HEADLINE SALES HEADLINE PROFIT
United Kingdom United Kingdom ‘
£379.3m £62.4m

(2014/15 £361 8m) (2014/15 £52 7m)

North America North America

£277.9m . £24.2m

(2014/15 £299 9m) (2014/15 £32 9m)
Australia and New Zealand Australia and New Zealand
£79.1m £19.2m

(2014/15 £81 9m}) ' {2014/15 £16 3m)

Global Markets Global Markets
£305.7m £26.4m

(2014/15 £276 3m) {2014/15 £32 2m)

Five-year returns to the BBC £m

£994.2m ) 2015/16 222.2
2014/15 [N 7T

RETURNS TO THE BBC OVER PREVIOUS FIVE YEARS 2013/14 RIS T 5
(2014/15 £953 9m) +4 1% 2012713 PRI

2011/12
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Chairman’s statement

BBC Woridwide's reported return for 2015/16 was £222 2m, a very strong performance This result meant BBC Worldwide contnbuted
the equivalent of £8 55 for every licence fee payer, or 13 0% of the BBC's spend on telewision conten! The two largest elements of this
return were investment in BBC commissions and dwvidends, at £92 7m (2014/15 £94 4m) and £105 5m (2014/15 £111 3m)
respectively

This financial retumn to the Corporation allows the BBC to comrmussion with a level of ambition and production values that would simply
not be possible within the hicence fee alone Prime examples of this dunng the year included The Hunt, narrated by Sir Dawid
Attenborough, from Siiverback Films, and BBC Production’s War and Peace, writlen by Andrew Dawvies Almost three-quarters of The
Hunt, watched by large audiences in the UK, was commercially funded via BBC Worldwide, including co-production deals with BBC
AMERICA, China's CCTV-9 and Germany's NDR For War and Peace, BBC Wondwide worked alongside partner Lookout Point to
broker a major co-production partnership with The Weinstein Company A significant success with audiences and critics alike, War and
Peace has since been sold to 184 terntones, including Russia

These programme successes demonstrate the synergy between the public service BBC and BBC Worldwide The BBC has been
involved In commercial activity from the establishment of Radio Times 1n 1923 and while this actity has evolved over the intervening
decades, it remains both essential and highly complementary to the success of the Corporation

However, the benefits of BBC Worldwade are not limited to the BBC BBC Worldwide 18 a unique content partner and faciitator active
throughout the creative process from inttial idea to eventual export, using both the BBC brand and distinctive British content to light the
way for UK programmaes in international markets This 1s one of several ways tn which we fulfil our public purpose of ‘brnging the UK to
the world' This halo effect helps both the BBC and the independent sector, as well as the wnters, directors, actors and producers
whose work 18, In part, funded by overseas and secondary market demand for quality Bntish content

By helping put British television onto a global stage, BBC Worldwide contributas to the reputation of Bntain as one of the world's most
brliantly creative countries In this vein, it was fantastic to see Sherdock The Abominable Brde receive global ‘big screen’ treatment in
January, with cinema screenings for fans in over 20 countries complementing the television broadcast, with 6000 screenings in Asia
alone

BBC Worldwide's witality and health will be a crihcal ingredient in the BBC's success over the course of the next Charter penod With a
lower financial settlement and increased responsibilities to fund, maximising our commercial revenue is mperative, not optional The
Board of the BBC 1s looking to BBC Worldwide to provide £1 2bn of retums over the first five years of the next Charter This represents
more than a 15% uplift on the previous five years, or almost 30% adjusted for dividends relating to disposals dunng that term

Fortunately, given these demands and its importance, BBC Worldwide 13 1n solid shape Despite a challenging operating environment,
the BBC has high expectations for its future, which BBC Worldwide has the imagmnation and ambitron to realise With that n mind,
would like to thank Tim Davie and the staff of BBC Worldwide, whether in Sydney, Los Angeles, Johannesburg, Singapore, London or
elsewhere, for their hard work and dedication dunng the year

Tony Hall
Chairman, BBC Worldwide
and Director-General, BBC
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What we do
WE PARTNER 2 WE COMMERCIALISE 3 WE DELIVER RETURNS
Creative development + Programme and format sales TO THE BBC
Funding for BBC and independent « Channel commissions = Programme investment
productions = Formats and onginal = Dmidends
= Faciiitating international content production « Other nghts payment
co-produchon deals ¢ BBC branded services e Growng the brand across the globe
e Investment in the UK production including websiles » Building the reach of BBC
sector » Ancilanes and other P exploitation programmes
e Nurturing talent + Marketing and social media 70 RIGHTSHOLDERS
¢ Supporting new wnters + Royalbes
» Buiding innovative partnerships s Profit share
» Secondary nghts acquisition = Showcasing UK creatwity
Ethics

To ensure we fulfil our responsibilities as a leading corporate ciizen, we ane constantly looking at how {o improve the way in which we
conduct business

From an ethical tradng perspective this includes working hand in hand with our hcensing and suppher parners to ensure all
manufacturers they work with meet the requirements of our ethical sourcing programme, prior to production of our consumer products

It 1s also vital that employees across BBC Worldwide understand the importance ethical sourcing plays within our business this year
we Infroduced mandatory online traiming for all staff involved in the sourcing or licensing of our products

We also furthered our involvement with multi-stakeholder intiatives including the Ethical Trading Inthatve and SEDEX, the Suppher
Ethical Data Exchange, adding our voice to the wider debate around the challenges within this field

Environment

In April 2015, we completed the integration of our two London offices to a new HQ in the iconic Television Centre To minimise our
impact on the environment, our new HQ was refurbished to a SKA Gold standard and we have focused on ensunng the building I1s
operated in an environmentally fnendly manner This has included intreducing measures such as separate waste streams for food and
ensunng fitbngs and eguipment such as ights and pnnters automatically enter low energy settings outside of core businass hours
Environmental impacts have also been considered in other offices including Sydney and New York

In the 2014/15 Annual Review we nofed that we would begin implementing robust monitonng and smprove data collechon across our
global offices This ongoing commitment will enable us to identify opportunities for improvement

We also strengthened our working relationship with the other parts of the BBC, to ensure our environmental approaches are aligned
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Chief Executive's review

It has been another year of major change for the industry
subscnption video-on-demand (SVOD) companies are rapidly
expanding, content budgets are growing and only three of the
UK's top 20 independents are domestically owned Overmnight
ratings are in declne, as tme-shifting has become mainstream
Yet consumptan of premium tong-form content has never been
higher, while on a glebal basis pay-TV remains resthent

Results

All these dynamice are reflected 1n the years results We are
pleased to show good growth at the top and bottom hnes, with
underlying sales growth of 6 7%, well ahead of our industry's
growth rate Headline sales were £1,029 4m
(2014115 £1,001 8Bm), up 2 8%, despite the inclusion of seven
menths'  full  ownership ofthe BBC AMERICA  channel
in the previous year Headline profit of £1338m
{2014/15 £138 6m) was diminished by the full year impact of
BBC AMERICA Removing this effect shows headiine profit
growth of 4 0% Full details of our regional results are set out
in the individual markets’ operating reviews on pages 10-13 while
further analysis of our overall results can be found In the
Chief Financial Officer’s (CFO) review on pages 7-9

As the Director-General points out on the previous pages, this
performance anabled us to return £222 2m (2014/15 £226 5m) lo
the BBC This keeps our retum above the £200m mark for a
second year running, and 1s a 17 6% year-on-year improvement
adjusted for disposal proceeds | know that everyone at BBC
Worldwide takes pnde in the matenal contnbution that our
activites make towards the BBC's ability to fulfil its promise to UK
audiences

Market shifis

All this has been achieved in a time of rapid change, which has
presented opportunities, as well as fundamental threats, to our
business Histoncally, BBC Worldwide's business model was
signsficantly reliant on DVD, with consumer products our second
largest profit segment until four years ago Free to ar and pay
broadcasters drove growth in content sales, while tradiional
affilate distnbuton underpinned channels A shift to digial
distnbution and consumption has affected all these areas and
necessitated & continuing transformation of the company We
have absorbed a 38 5% decline n DVD revenue in Just three
years, while supplementing our core sales customers with sales
to digital platforms We have committed substantial investment
into our channels, re-branding the majonty, while rationalising
some, and parinenng on others Al the same time, we have
responded to supply-side changes — dnven both by the digtal
revoluton and by producer consoldation — by taking action to
secure content through major international co-productions and
closer indie relatonships This momentum aiso underpins our
confidence in the decisions we are taking about our investments
and strategic direction

Strategic progress
We made considerable further progress on the strategy first
announced m October 2013 That strategy was to achieve three
things

» to increase focus on premium, world-class content,

s lo grow global brands, and

» lo effect a gradual transformation to digial products and

services

Premium content

Dunng the year we further strengthened both our content profile
and our supply base, as cutined on page 6 For a second year,
drama - a growth area for producers and broadcasters across the
world — made up around half our total nvestment a deliberate
rebalancing, as well as the result of continuing increased costs in
the content market We took delivery of new titles from Banished
to War and Peace, Doctor Foster, Dickensian end Thirteen,
hawing invested alongside BBC channels, aswell as new
commissions from other Brtish broadcasters including Maigret
and The Dumefls Qurreturning titles were also in strong
form, with Doctor Who in ts ninth senes, Death :n Paradise and
Call the Midwife completing therr fith and Sdant Withess now at
senes 19. The strength and breadth of this slate was wisible both
at trade markets, and 1n a sales performance that saw drama
make up 49% of all our programme licence revenue in the year

Highlights in our second targest investment genre, natural history,
included Shark and Attenborough and the Giant Dinosaur,
alongsde landmark The Hunt Among our documentary delivenes
was BBC Worldwide commussion Beckham For the Love of the
Gamea, which secured 4 1m viewers on BBC One In children's
we were pleased to see two new high potential tites — Go Jetters
and Mey Duggee - ratng very well both at home and
internationally, while BAFTA-winning Sarah & Duck was
produced for a third senas

Wae also continued our strategy of long-term partnerships with
high quality UK mdependent production companies This allows
us to secure content nghts, frequently for BBC commissions,
while supporting independents with access 1o our funding,
distnbution and expertise Inour equity relatonships, some of
which first date back a decade, BBC Worldwide 15 a long-term,
stable shareholder We can provide the financial and creative
partnershup that allows small and medium sized indies to expand,
while retaiing both therr Bntishness and the independence
that keeps the UK production scena so dynamic Our work with
independents retumed some £118 1m (2014/15 £113 1m) 1o the
indie sector in the year This 1s one of several ways in which BBC
Worldwide performs an important role as a core part of the UK's
creative economy

The year saw us upgrade our offer and performance in content
sales We introduced a programme based around nsight,
customer relabon management and marketing at the end of the
previous year Its mplementation and inibal success in 2015/16
helped us to an impressive 18 4% growth in revenus from content
sales, a key benchmark of our compebtiveness [hgital sales
were particilarly strong, reflecting new service launches from
both global and lecal SVOD operators, and we welcomed around
700 sales chents for a third year runming at our main trade event,
BBC Worldwide Showcase Building on global hits such as
Dancing with the Stars and The Great Bake Off, we also brought
renewed attentton to format development, acquisihon and sales,
resuiting in more local versions of our hit Bntish shows than ever
before and good growth in format sales
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Chief Executive’s review {continued)

Global brands

Keeping our largest programme brands healthy and competitive
was also a focus In the year ABC’s Dancing with the Stars, which
wse produce In Los Angeles, parformed very strongly i its 20th
and 21st senes in the year We also saw impressive intematonal
performances from Doctor Who S8 Meanwhile, Top Gear
underwent an excitng re-casting, with established and new
presenting talent secured for senes 23, which premiered in May
Wea made rapid progress on plans to upgrade our knear channels,
resulting in a portfolio that looked quite different at year end from
12 months earlier Having launched new scnpted brand BEC First
in Australia the previous year, we began to roll out two further
genre brands BBC Bnt in factual entertainment and BBC Earth in
premium factual in the year Major iaunch markets for our new
channel brands included Poland, the Nordics, South Afnca and
Latin Amenca We ended the year with 12 of our 33 international
channel feeds carrying the new genre brands, making BBC Earth
and BBC First available in at least 40 countnes and BBC Bnt m
81 Audience and affiliate reaction has largely been posrtive, and
wa will continue to re-brand most of our other channels in the
year ahead Distnbution and revenue for the BBC World News
channel, for which we provide an afiiliate and advertising sales
service globally, along with AMCN in the USA, also increased in
the year.

Digltal developments

Our direct to consumer focus extended beyond linear channels
November saw the launch of BBC Store in the UK, which allows
viewers to buy and keep programmes they want to enjoy beyond
the 30 day licence fee funded BBC 1Player window Outside the
UK, we spent the year working up plans and partnerships for over
the top services (OTT), namely a subscniption ‘best of Bnhsh'
archive proposition that we will launch in the USA in 2016, and an
authentcated TV player to complemant our existing channels in
Asia, which will also launch later this year in Singapore

BBC com, the intemational website, for which BBC Worldwide
sells advertising and creates international feature sections,
continued fo bwid on the previous year's success, reaching an
average of 89 1m monthly unique browsers (2014/15 85 5m) and
generating 1 1bn page views Our six features sections also
achieved ongoing growth, attracting a monthly average of
11m unique browsers (2014/15 8 3m), up 38% year on ysar

Efficlencies

Against the context of the market changes, particularly the
content costs outiined above, and the wider BBC efforts to reduce
operating costs across the Group, we worked particularly hard on
our operational cost base in the year In total we ended the year

with 176 fewer employees than 12 months previously, a reduction
equrvalent to some 8% of our workforce This resulted in In-year
savings of some £10 8m versus prnor year, with an additional
£4 Bm savings expeclted in the next financial year This has
enabled us to Invest to meet chents' and audiences’ future needs,
while maintaining our financial perforrmance In the face of very
real margin pressure While ttus mvolved some difficult decisions,
| behieve we can nonetheless keep the company competitive and
appropnately invested m to achieve growth goals for the longer
term

Culture

I would like to thank BBC Worldwide's employees for approaching
this exercise with such professionalism Our overall company
engagement score of 70% remained well above the global market
norm of 55% We made good progress on adopfing a common
way of working and behaving in every one of our offices a
‘commitment’ developed out of feedback from employees, and
desighed to ensure everyone 1s able to contnbute their very best
work here Building on those insights, we also mtroduced a global
employee awards scheme to recognise exceptional effort and
achievement, as well as a new training curnculum We now have
a network of over 40 Team Worldwide ‘Champions’ across our
global offices, running very active interest communities from arts
to sporls, and planning a range of activities to benefit employees
and our local communities alke

Before dlosing, | would bnefly hke to pay tnbute to two CFOs for
their service during the year Andrew Bott who, after more than a
decade with the company, and two years in this role, left In
January for a Group CFO role at FremantieMedia, and Suzanne
Burrows, who covered the role on an interm basis over the busy
year-end period unti May, when we were joined by permanent
CFO Tom Fussell Both deserve my personal thanks, as well as
those of the company's stakeholders

The year ahead

As a result of all actvity outhned here, we enter the new financial
year on the back of strong results, with positive prospects We
take confidence from the full-year sffect of cost efficiencies and
strong financial discipline, and a content siate that includes a
fourth senes of Sherock, Doctor Who companion piace Class,
S8-GB, The Collection, the all-new Top Gear, and Planet Earth i,
Sir David Attenborough's sequel to the globally successful natural
history programme We do, however, anticipate further market
change In the year ahead, with the nsing cost and accessibility of
premum content a particular concem Wewill nonetheless
continue to target further top line growth and another strong year
of retums

Tim Davie
Chief Exacutive, BBC Worldwide and Director, Global
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A global content partner

A atrong year in content

2015/16 saw us deliver another unnvalled content slate, with top-seling utles including Doctor Who S9, Orphan Black S3, The Hunt,
War and Peace and Sharlock The Abominable Bride, with the last being sold to 216 terntones There were further format sales of Top
Gear and The Great Bake Off, while new format successes included You're Back in the Room

Against @ backdrop of industry consolidation, new market entranis and the nsing cost of content, we remained commutted to our
strategy of focusing our investment into premium content We invested £161 6m n content (2014/15 £180 5m), down on the previous
year due to the full year effact of the part-disposal of BBC AMERICA, but with the underlying rate broadly consistent year on year

An integral part of the BBC

BBC content remains vitally important to our business, wath 55% of revenue generated from content made by BBC Production, now
BBC Stuchos In retum, our funding underpins many programmes seen on scfeen Dy licence fee payers In 2015/16, we nvested
£92 7m in BBC-commissioned content (2014/15 £94 4m) This supported programmes across the BBC's domestic channels, with
stand-out successes from BBC Production including Luther S4 and Thirteen

Other innovative ways of supporttng BBC content-making included investment in Natural History Unit purchases of 4K cameras and
in the Increased post-production costs of delivering in UHD+HDR, with Planet Earth Ii being the first senss to benefit The pilot of
Getaway Car came out of a Top Gear spin-off development project jointly funded by BBC Worldwide and BBC Entertainment

With changes to BBC Production underway, we plan for BBC Studios to be a key strategic pariner, remamning central to
BBC Worldwide's content strategy

Nurturing future talent

Nurturing on and off screen talent 18 a core part of our business and helps to support UK creatmvity In the year we furthered this
commitment through new development schemes The Paper to Pitch Fund awds the development of new formats, helping indies and
BBC Production bnng their ideas closer to commission and strengthening our pipeline The response has been overwhelming, with
several shows in development We have also worked with our production partners to increase the opportunity for new writers to secure
commissions in the UK or interationally, with targeted support to fast-track development and strengthen our relationship with emerging
talent

Building creative partnerships

As well as working with the BBC's in-house production arm, BBC Wordwide works with over 250 UK independent producton
companies, who choose to partner with us This year, we deepened long-standing relationships with indies and forged new ones,
including equity stakes in Amazing Productions, Mighty Productions, Red Planet Pictures (Entertammment) and Greenbird Madia

Wae drove creative deal-making facilitatng international co-productions such as The Hunt, bnnging on board digital partners ke
Amazon for Lookout Point and Artts Pictures Production’s The Collection, secunng deals beyond the TV screen with Shanghai Media
Group for the Earth One Amazing Day (wit) feature film, and forming innovatve partnerships with new content-makers, such as
YouTubers Joe Sugg and Caspar Lee

Looking ahead

2016117 promises to be another stellar year of content We continued 1o focus our investment on premium content, notably in high-end
drama, entertainment and natural history We have secured natural history landmark senes for the next five years and during the
course of 2015/16 commuitted to a targe number of investments In programmes delivening i 2016/17 and beyond These included
Planet Earth il, Top of the Lake S2, the Top Gear re-launch and Doctor Who spm-off Class

The market for English language drama has contnued its rapid growth and the BBC has been a strong player in this market, with
funaway global hits such as War and Peace We plan to keep around half of our content spend In drama in the coming year
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Chief Financial Officer's review

BBC Wordwide's new CFO, Tom Fussell, joined the company in May However, given the iming of his amval, | am presenting this
year's financial review, having been intenm CFO for the last quarter of the year and dunng the preparation of this set of accounts

1 Headline resuilts

Headline sales Headline profit
£m 1516 14/15 1616 14/15
Reported result 1,0204 10018 1338 1388
BBC AMERICA impact’ - (36 7) - (9 9)
Underlying result 1,029 4 965.1 133.8 128.7

" The overall Iimpact differs from the separatsly disciozed seven manths of headiine sales and profit recorded in 201415 dus to the subsequent share of BBC AMERICA prefit
recorded In both years and the impact of intragroup eiminabiens as content sales to BBC AMERICA are no longar being eliminated as an internal sale

Headllne results
Headline sales of £1,029 4m (2014/15 £1,001 8m) were up 2 8%, a very good achievement in a changing market As the CEQ review

points out on page 4, this was equivalent to underlying growth in headline sales of 6 7% as the sate of a 49 9% interest in our US
channel, BBC AMERICA, m 2014 meant the prior year's resulis benefited from seven months of full ownership, contributing £53 7m to
headline sales (creating a year-on-year BBC AMERICA sales impact of £36 7m} The major growth dnvers were healthy lrédmg with
SVOD services In a number of ternitories, continuing growth at our UK joint venture, UKTV, and a music licensmg agreement Whie the
proliferation of SVOD services brought new opportunities o exploit our extensive catalogue, this growing revenue stream s also
currently concentrated in a handful of dominant partners, whose commissioning and acquisition strategies remain under development

Headiine profit of £133 8m (2014/15 £138 6m) was also up 4 0% (after adjusting for a £9 9m year-on-year BBC AMERICA impact)
despite a second year of investment in the transibon to new channel brands Margin erosion on content sales has continued in the year
following pronounced increase In the costs of content These costs, as a proportion of content sales, have increased by almost 10% in
the past two years A headline profit margin of 13 0% (2014/15 13 8%) reflected this inflationary pressure, in part but not wholly
mitigated through an active programme of efficiencies undertaken in the year

2015/16 saw a margnal benefit to revanue and a small profit downside from foreign exchange movements This was the net effact of a
number of currency hedges and a weaker pound against our key currencies of the US dollar and the Euro, paricularly in the key last
quarter of the year

On a geographic basis, we delivered underying growth in headhne sales m every one of our regions A dechine in headline sales on an
actual basis tn North America reflacted the impact of BBC AMERICA described above, and in Australia and New Zealand reflacted the
weakening of the Australian dollar dunng the year Headline profit, after again adjusting for the impact of BEC AMERICA, was up 1n all
geographical segments, aside from Western Europa, where the business was affected by investment in new channel launches, the
closure of a small number of channel feeds and its above-average exposure to increased content costs UK profitability was boosted in
part by the aforementioned music hcensing agreement )

2, Segmental results

Headline sales Headllne profit
£m 16/16 14/15 1516 14116
United Kingdom 3793 3618 624 527
North Amenca 2779 2899 242 329
Westermn Europe 1680 160 1 210 270
Australia and New Zealand 791 819 192 16 3
Rest of World 1377 116 2 54 52
Eliminations {12 6) (18 1) 186 45
Total 1,029 4 1,001 8 133.8 1368.8

While we manage our company by region, we are this year also providing our results by business area With these changes we believe
our transparency to be at teast in ine with the best-in-class n our sector, as set out in table 3 below

3. Results by business area

Headline sales Headline profit
£m 15116 14/15 156116 14/16
Content Sales 384 2 324 4 68 2 627
Branded Services 3357 3705 497 554
Production & Formats 1730 1630 106 158
Consumer Products 1791 1976 69 34
Eiimmations (42 6) (63 7) (16) 13
Total 1,029.4 1,001 8 1338 138 6

The business classifications have been updated during the current yeer to batter reflect the Board's operational view of the businass The Board views the busineas based on
four business line segments Branded Services (includes prior year's channeis business as well as Ad Sales and BBC siore) Content Salss includes Production and
Formats, and Consurmer Products The previously reported Other business lines have been realiocaled across these four eagments
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In Content Sales, growth of 18 4% speaks to a stable business in free-ta-ar and pay-TV, as well as the SVOD growth mentioned
earler Headline sales n Branded Services (which includes our channels) increased 5 2% year on year, after adjusting for BBC
AMERICA Headline profit was up 10 5% on the same basis Branded Services also includes the tmpact of a first full year of build and
operating investment i BBC Store In Producton & Formats we delwered revenue growth of 6 1% Profitability was affected by a
greater praportion of our production income coming from lower margin scnpted titles, some of which benefit from high end production
tax credits {captured as a tax benefit outside of pre-tax profit) Consumer Products, which includes DVD, remains a difficult category in
a markel transiioning to digial product A revenue decline of 9 4% here reflects the downward trend in that market, which also
impacted profitability at the profit level this was offset by a music icensing agreement in the UK

Statutory results
One of the main differences between cur headline resuits and the equivalent statutory measures relates to our investments in
joint ventures and associates We include our share of joint venture revenue - principally the results of UKTV —n headline sates
We also include the pre-tax and pre-nterest results of our jomt ventures and associates in headine profit, rather than our share
of net profit, as included in the stalutory measure We do this because we view these investments as a fundamental part of our
ongoing activiies

Headline profit also excludes a number of non-statutory ‘specific items’ — principally restructuring costs and other similar
amounts customarily excluded from non-statutory measures — which help to provide further clanty about our underlying trading
performance

Qur headline and statutory resulls are reconciled in table 4 below

4 Statutory resuits

15/16 14115
Headlne profit 1338 1386
Share of interest and tax of joint ventures and associates (106) {0 4)
Penston deficit reduction payment (34) 81)
Other specific itermns (13 4) (48)
Gaing on disposals 15 1159
Other gains and losses (46) (57)
Nel finance expense (2 8) (27)
Profit before tax 100.5 223.8

Specific ltems
Specific items are not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable to similarly ttled measures used by other companies Speaific
items are materal ttems which are highlighted by virtue of their size or importance Iin order to enable a full understanding of our

performance
The presentation of thase items is consistent with previous years

Specific tems are noted in table 4 and netted to a total of £13 4m (2014/15 £4 Bm) The most significant item — reorganisation costs of
£12 8m - reflects the company’s efficiency programme carned out in the year Reorganisation costs in the previous year mamly related
to the retocation of our head office 1n London

Corporate activity

Corporate activity m the year, in line with the content investment strategy set out on page 6, focused on shareholdings in independent
production companies, four in the UK, as well as a majonty shareholding in the strategically important market of South Afnca We also
invested further in German production vehicle Tower Productions These investments help us to enhance our content pipeline in an
increasingly compstitive market white also benefiting from a greater share of the success of titles produced through these partnerships
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Employees
§. Average number of employses
15/16 14/15
United Kingdom 460 438
North America 360 446
Waestem Europe 315 324
Austraha and New Zealand 179 197
_Rest of World 450 424
Total 1,764 1,829

Average headcount n the year was 1,784, down from 1,829 in 201415 The reduction in heads reflects the full year impact of
transfernrng BBC AMERICA employees to AMC Networks (AMCN) in October 2014, as well as further reductions following the
efficiency programme undertaken in the yaar, offset by an increase for BBC Advertising and BBC Store  Employee numbers by region,
are detailed in the {able above

Tax
The majonty of our profits anse In the UK, where we are headquartered, and our mam exposures to tax anse in the UK, the USA and

Australia The group does not adopt aggressive tax planning measures

Our total tax charge for the year was £14 9m (2014/15 £38 3m) giving an effective tax rate of 14 8% (2014/15 17 1%) The pnor year
tax charge included £26 6m in respect of BBC AMERICA, including tax incurred on the proceeds of the sale The impact of thig
disposal, coupled with the higher rate of tax in the USA, largely explains the overall reduction in our effective tax rate

Qur tax rate 15 lower than the standard UK comporate rate largely due to the inclusion of our post-tax joint venture and associate profits
In pre-tax income, as well as the production tax credits we receive on our UK-basad production activity '

Cash and net debt
Operating cash flow of £152 3m (2014/15 £191 0m) reflects investmant in warking caprtal, particularly for digital content sales, offset in
part by working capital released from production actwity and a reduction in fax paid due to lower taxable profits and timing of tax

payments

The previous year saw a cash inflow from the parbal disposal of BBC AMERICA, we receved the remaining deferred proceeds in the
year This allowed us again to supplement returns to our parent, albet it to a iesser extent than last year

Notwithstanding the boost that this transaction gave us both this year and last, our total shargholder retum of £222 2m (2014/15
£226 5m), as described in the Chairman's statement, 1s close to last year's record These returns pnmanly capture our corporate
dividends and investment m BBC commissions, with the balance made up of brand licences and other smalter contributions to our

parant

Average net debt throughout the year was £77 8m (2014/15 £32 4m) and we ended the year with net debt of £122 1m (2014/15
£69 2m) Our debt faciity with BBC Commercial Heldings Limited prowides us with a maximum facility of £202 2m, of which the final
£30 0m 15 conditional on an equivatent holding n cash

Looking forward

BBC Woerldwide begins the new financial year with a strong sfate and future pipeline of content, with over a third of our 33-strong
portfolio of owned and operated channels under new BBC brands, and well-advanced plans for direct-to-consumer digital products in a
number of key markets While we face market conditions that are changeable, with a relatively high degree of industry and consumer
turbulence, these attnbutes nonetheless mean that we are well-equipped to continue to serve exishng and new clients, audiences and
partners with the premium Bntish content on which our business has founded its success over many years

Suzanne Burrows
Intenim Chuef Financial Officer, {(January — May 2016) BBC Worldwide
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United Kingdom

Growth at a time of investment

Our United Kingdom business exists to extend audiences’ enjoyment of the BBC programmes they love Highlights this year included
the launch of BBC Store, a new relationship with YouTube stars Joe Sugg and Caspar Lee, and growth in content sales

We delivered a year of significant growth, with particularty strong performance from UKTV and content sales Headhine sales were up
4 8% to £379 3m (2014/15 £361 8m), white headline profit was up 18 4% at £62 4m (2014/15 £52 7m)

A strong content pipeline saw our content sales business enjoy B 5% year-on-year growth, with the continuation of agreements with
Amazon and a renewal with Netfix Qur 50% ownership of UKTV, a joint venture with Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc , remained a
core contributor to our porifoliy UKTV reported revenue and profit growth in the 12 months to 31 December 2015 of 12 7% and 10 5%
respectively, made around £148m investment in content and related launches, while delivening record share of commercial impacts of
9 3%, with BBC programmes featunng in an average 41% of UKTV's schedule but accounting for 47% of all impacts

We expandsd in digital, launching BBC Store, which enables UK audiences to buy, download and keep BBC programmes, from recent
hits such as Happy Valley to TV favountes like Only Fools and Horses At year end the service offered audiences almost 9000 hours,
making 1t the largest collection of BBC programmas available {0 own

Our focus on profitability, along with wider digital availabiity of titles through BBC Store, led us to close our retail website, BBC Shop

Investment in BBC Good Food resulted in bbegoodfood com recording a 22 0% year-on-year increase In unigque browsers and an all-
time high of 20 5m In December alone, up 13 5% The magazine held on to the top spot in the Core Food magazine market We also
relaunched topgear com

Our DVD and download businesses enjoyed widespread distribution thanks to a steady stream of BBC hits including Petsr Kay's Car
Share, War and Peace and Doctor Foster We worked with YouTube stars Joe and Caspar to release their first DVD At launch, Joe &
Caspar Hit the Road achieved the biggest day one pre-orders for any titie on Amazon co uk in 2015

The UK licensing business conbnued to deliver global best in class partnerships that enable fans to engage with our brands We
announced Fisher Price as the master toy licensee for Go Jefters and launched Doctor Who LEGO® sets, with Doctor Who also
featuring alongside Hollywood movie properties in the Warner Bros Interactive Entertainment video game LEGO® DIMENSIONS

We extended our publishing deal with Penguin Random House, which became the global publisher and distnbutor of BBC Audio
content Meanwhite in March we compieted the licensing agreement of our extensive Radio and Music nghts catalogue

2015/16 was also a busy year for our Live Entertainment business The Doctor Who Festival attracted over 14,000 visitors over three
days in November We also announced a new partnership with events company SME to bring Countryfile Live to audiences in August
2016

As we move in to 2016/17 we will continue to operate multiple routes to market, protect the profit In our physical revanue streams and
invest for growth in our digital businesses
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North America

Building global brands

Our largest business outside the UK, BBC Worldwide Norlh America operates in a highty competitive media market An unparalleled
supply of British programming ensured ongoing success in content sales, co-productions and strategic partnerships Our LA-based
studios — BBC Worldwide Productons and Adjacent Productions — also remained strong, producing formats and onginals

2015/16 marked the first full year for BBC Warldwide North Amenca without BBC AMERICA consofidated into its financial results,
following the sale of a 49 9% stake to AMCN Headline sales and profit fell from £299 9m to £277 9m and £32 9m to £24 2m, mainly
due to reduced ownership in BBC AMERICA However, once adjusting for the derecognition of BBC AMERICA, headline sales saw
underying growth of 5 6% helped by strong sales in SVOD, resulting in 5 5% underlying profit growth

BBC AMERICA's success continued with increased awareness and viewer angagement In a year in which two-thirds of US
entertainment networks posted declines, BBC AMERICA recorded its bast year aver in total viewers Doctor Who $9, Orphan Black S3
and Top Gear 522 helped to more than double the network’s audience average

Drama heiped drive growth m the Adult 25-54 demographic with Broadchurch S2 and Luther S4, the latter delivenng a 37% increase
from sernes three Qut of 121 retuming dramas in the USA, 16 recorded Aduit 25-54 audience growth on prior senes, three of these
aired on BBC AMERICA

Luther's Idns Elba earned Criics' Choice and Screen Actors Guild Awards, and Golden Globe® and NAACP Image Award
nominations, and Tatiana Maslany received her first Emmy® nomination for Orphan Black

BBC Waorldwide Productions' hit show Dancing with the Stars continued to delight audiences with two new senes for ABC, and retained
its positon as a Top 10 most watched entertainment programme, which it has held for the past decade Meanwhile, Adjacent
Productions’ onginal senes for National Geographic Channel, Life Below Zero, was the channel’s number one programme for a third

year

PBS and BBC AMERICA deals underpinned the US co-production stralegy, resulting in projects like Big Blue Live with PBS and
Thirteen with BEC AMERICA We also sighed Vikings Uneanthed and Undercover in the year with these partners

The Docior Who brand continued to grow across North America In 2015/16 A significant deal was signed towards year-end granting
Amazon exclusive US SVOD nghts for the seres, allowing us to maximise digital revenue and reach new audiences In Canada, a
new, exclusive mulb-platform hcensing agreement for Doctor Who was signed with Bell Media for its terrestnal channel Space and
SVOD service, CraveTV™ These deals helped boost overall digital content sales, by over 60% year on year

in the USA and Canada, cinema events for BBC intellectual property have become a new revenue dniver, with Sherlock The
Abominable Bride selling over 190,000 tickets at the beginning of 2016

BBC com traffic grew by 7 4% ~ reaching almost 39m unigue browsers each month With a focus on immersive content and social
audience development, the feature sections were the sie's fastest growing areas, ncreasing 40 0% year-on-year to 7 2m unique
browsers Meanwhile, BBC Advertising welcomed a significant uphft in the second half of 2015/16, with 12 7% year-cn-year growth,
largely dniven by features content, programmatic sales and video

In the year ahead, we plan to evolve the strategy further and capitalise on technology advances with the launch of a new OTT SVOD
service In the USA The service will support our ambition to grow our content offenng and reach audiences looking for Bntish
programmas, while complementing the programming on BBC AMERICA and with other partners
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Australia and New Zealand

Strong across all businesses

BBC Worldwide Australia and New Zeatand welcomed another year of growth, attributable to a number of factors ncluding strong
estabhshed partnarships, a proliferation of new ventures and the continued qualty and breadth of our channel and content sales
businesses

The Australia and New Zealand business strategy delivered well, with 5 3% headline sales growth in focal currency, continuing with the
growth achieved in 2014715 Translated into sterling, headine sales were £79 1m (2014/15 £81 9m) while profits increased to £19 2m
(2014/15 £16 3m) :

In its first full year BBC First sustained strong audiences, reaching over 3m viewers and attracting a broader audience for dramas
including Banished, the channel's first locally commissioned title Ared in June 2015, the series became the highest rating title across
all plays on BBC First, with a senes audience average of 1 8m Throughout the year the channel’s tentpole titles — Call the Midwiie,
War and Peace and The Night Manager - regularly appeared In the Top 10 rating tities on the Foxtel platiorm

2015/16 was an exceptional year for CBeebies, which delivered a 100% ratings increase on last year, with notable titles such as Hey
Duggee BBC UKTV delivered a 7 1% increase in audience share on the previous year m Australia, while in New Zealand 1t recorded
its highest share i over three years at 3 8% Our first full year on Fetch TV, and ther growth in subscnbers, also supported channel
growth for BBC First, BBC UKTV and BBC Knowledge in Australia The strength of the subscnption television market, a full year of
BBC Fust and significant sponsorship growth across our channets resulted i our advertising revenue recording a 19 9% increase
year on year and 19 5% increase In profit

Woe continued to reap the benefits of our new sales model, rolled cut in 2014, focusing on showcasing premm drama titles on BBC
First These ncluded Doctor Foster, Wolf Hall, The Honourable Woman and popular returning senes Call the Midwife and Death in
Paradise The new sales agreement enabled ABC to broadcast /mportant ttles in a second window with some first window
programmes too Nine secured The Hunt as a pre-sale ttle, while Ten acquired a package of popular natural history tittes featunng
Shark and a range of Sir David Attenborough documentanes

In our digital sales business, a new deal with Foxtel's streaming platform Presto saw 122 tites made available to their customers and
increased our offenng in the digital arena to 17 platforms In a first for premium BBC drama distnbution in Australa, Sherfock The
Abominable Bnde prermiered on SVOD service Stan

TV format sates saw the 15th senes of Dancing with the Stars on Seven in Australia and the return of the format n New Zealand after a
six-year break, alongside new productions of Rachel Khoo's Kitchen Notebook Melbourne far SBS and The Great Australian Bake Off
for Lifestyle FOOD 2016 will see six new format commissions air, including the hypnosis entertainment show You're Back in the Room
for Nine and TVNZ and a first senes of Coast and Mastermind for TVNZ, while Coast retums to The History Channel later this year

Away from programmung we extended our live entertamment offenngs to audiences, hosting Australia’s first official Docfor Who Festival
and a three-day event for YouTube stars Joe Suggs and Caspar Lee, with tickets to the duo’s show selling out within 20 minutes end
two further shows added We were also delighted to announce BBC Proms Australia, which took place shortly afler year end cver four
days in Apnl, and marked the first tme the BBC Proms had been held outside the UK in this way In addition, widife presenter Steve
Backsha!l sold over 35,000 tickets across Austratia on his debut Deadly 60 tour

We did encounter some challenges within the year, most notably due to rapid changes in the online retail market These changes, and
the decline of the DVD market, led us to close BBC Shop Ausiratia In March and withdraw from the consumer products wholesale

market

As we progress (nto the coming year our focus wiil remain on growing key business areas, looking for new growth opportunities and
championing partnerships to ensure we remam on course to keep delivening against our strategy
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Global Markets

Growing international reach

[t has been a record year for revenue In our Global Markets busiess Consisting predeminantly of the non-English speaking world,
Global Markets now generates 30% of BBC Worldwide's total revenue

Global Markets regions, reported as Westem Europe and Rest of World — the latler consisting of CEMA (Central and Eastern Europe,
Middle East and Afnca), Asia and Latin America — have seen headiine sales grow on prior year, and cumulatively delivered headline
sales of £305 7Tm (2014/15 £276 3m) The sales growth was dnven by strong content sales, the iicensing of more UK formats than
ever before and the continued roll-out of our new genre brands BBC Bnt, BBC Earth and BBC First

Profit, down 18 0% to £286 4m (2014/15 £32 2m), has been depressed by investment in the new genre brands and the increased cost
of content

We reached new audiences by bullding and strengthenlng our channel brands and finding new homes for our content We launched
four new channel feeds and relaunched seven, including South Afnica where all three brands were intreduced, and Smgapore, where
B8BC Earth became the most watched factual pay-TV channel in December and January, just two months afler launchmg Branded
blocks were secured across OTT and free-to-air platforms including all three genre brands on Watchever in Germany, BBC Earth on
TVN in Chile and BBC First on AXN Mystery in Japan We worked with a wide range of new digital entrants, both local and global,
while maintaining sales to traditiona! clients such as SVT in Sweden, where the premiere of War and Peace achteved an
unprecedented 33 5% audience share Elsewhere, we engaged fans beyond TV with the roll-out of a CBeebies app n Latin and
Hispanic America, and the theatrical release of Sherlock The Aborminable Bnde, which topped box offices from Russta and South
Korea to Hong Kong and China

To capitalse on demand for local versions of our shows we strengthened our produchon and formats businesses Our French
production base achieved another successful year with five shows featuning in pnmetime including new commissions Atelier Deco (Fill
Your House for Free) and Hypnose, Le Grand Jeu (You're Back in the Room) Our Indan production business increased the number of
shows on ar including a Hindi version of Tonight's the Night for Star Plus and daily drama Dif Ko Agj Phir Jeene Ki Tamanna Hat for
Doordashan National, the country's leading public service channel

We built cur production footpnnt by setting up BBC Worldwide Productons Nordics n Denmark and signing an exciusive production
agreement with Nordisk Film TV as well as purchasing & majonty stake in Rapid Blue in South Afnca In Germany we invested further
tn Tower Productions, which produced a number of popular titles for the local market as well as co-developing onginal commission One
in a 1000 with German public service broadcaster ZDF These Initiatives will help us bnng more world-class formats to local viewers,
building on our current successes In this area Series two of Top Gear China altracted over 300m views across digital platforms, local
versions of The Great Bake Off proved popular in Brazil, South Afnca and Romania, and Colombia's RCN gave Dancing with the Stars
a 55-episode maiden run

Partnerships have also been signficant In India we joined forces with Sony Corporation subsichary Muti Screen Madia on the
forthcoming channel Sony BBC Earth |n China, we have gone from strength to strength, cementing partnership status with major
broadcast and digttal networks, including working with Shanghal Media Group on the Sherlock theatnical release and forthcoming big
screen event Earth One Amazing Day (wit) and the signing of a memorandum of understanding with Mango TV, the internet platform
of Hunan broadcasting system CCTV also bacame cne of the international co-production partners (alongside BBC AMERICA and
NDR Naturfilm) on natural history landmark The Hunt — one of many examples of interationai monay contributing to the funding of
premum British television

As well as a new affiiate deal with belN to launch CBeebies in the Middle East and North Afnca, major affiliate renewals were also
secured amid difficuf market conditions This gives us a more settied channels environment, allowing us to concentrate on growing
reach and, in some markets, advertising sales and fo target growth opportunities in digital in the year ahead

The strategic report, as set out on pages 4 roved by the Board on 13 June 2016 and signed on its behalf by

Tim Davie
Chief Executive, BBC Worldwide and Director, Global
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BBC Worldwide Executive Committee

Marcus Arthur President, UK, Ewre, ANZ and BBC Advertising

Marcus moved into his current role in 2013 He 1s responsible for BBC Worldwide's businesses i the UK, Ewe, ANZ and for
BBC Advertising Marcus joined BBC Worldwide in 1991 and has held roles including Managing Drrector, BBC Magazines, and MD of
Brands, Consumers and New Ventures

Tim Davie Chief Executve, BBC Worldwide and Director, Global

Tim took up his current role in 2013 He 15 also Chairman of Comic Relief, 8 Trustee of the Tate and Vice-Charr of the RTS Durning his
11 years at the BBC, Tim has held the positions of Acting Director-General, Director of Audio & Music and [hirector of Marketing,
Communications & Audiences Prior to this, he worked at PepsiCo and Procter & Gamble

Paul Dempsey President, Global Markets

Paul took up his current role n 2013 He I1s responsible for bulding BBC Worldwide's portfolio across predominantly non-English
speaking terntones, known coflectively as Global Markets Paul joined BBC Worldwide in 1998 His previous roles inciude Intenm CEO
and MD Consumer Products

Charlotte Elston Director of Communications

Charlotte jomed BBC Worldwide as Director of Communications in 2010 She oversees all areas of communications globally inciuding
external PR, intemal commurications, corporate affars and events Charlotte has previously worked at Aegis Group plc, Pearson,
Brunswick and Edelman PR

Martyn Freeman General Counsel & Company Sacrelary

Martyn was appointed o tus current role in 2011 He has responsibilty for all legal, business affars, policy and regulatory matters and
from January 2015 became Company Secretary Previously, Martyn heid a vanety of roles across the BBC, including Head of Business
Affarrs, Radio & Music, Factual & Learning and News

Kirstin Furber People Director

Kirstin 1s responsible for Human Resources across BBC Worldwide She was appointed to this position in 2013, having previously been
SVP HR Prior to joining BBC Worldwide, Kirstin held roles at Twentieth Century Fox, Discovery Channel, Ziff Davis, Warner Bras and
Granada Media Group

Tom Fussell Chief Financia) Officer

Tom began his role with BBC Worldwide in May 2018 He joined from Shine Group, where he was CFO for two years and successfully
completed the sale of Shine info a new joint venture, as pan of s merger with Endemol Pnor fo this Tom held positions at
HarperCollins, Random House and the BBC Tom 15 a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales

Davld Gibbons Chief Operations Officer

David 1s responsible for dnving the operabng model of the company He s functionally accountable for Global Operations, Global
Busmness Services and oversight of our relationship with the newly estabhished BBC Technology dvision He joined BBC Worldwide in
2013 Prior 1o this he held senior leadership positions In SEEK, GE Caprtal, Gap and Nike

Helsn Jackson Chief Content Officer

Helen became Chief Content Officer in 2013 She oversees the creative and commercial vision for BEC Worldwide's content strategy,
covering commissioning, developmant and acquisition activity, channels’ curation and editonal standards Helen previously established
BBC Worldwide's Indie Uit

Jackie Lee-Joe Chief Marketing Cfficer

Jackie took up the pestion of CMO in November 2015, joining from Skype, where she was Gicbal Director for Audience, Entertainment
Marketing & Broadcast Media Jackie has over 20 years of marketing expenence in blue chip brands mcluding Virgin Mobile, Carphone
Warehouse and Orange

David Moody Dwector of Strategy

David 1s responsible for all aspects of the company's direction and strategy David joined BBC Worldwide in 2004 He previousty held
roles in BBC Ventures, The LEK Partnership, Singapore Telecom International and United News & Media and co-founded Dataroam

Ann Sarnoff President, BBC Worldwide North Amenca

Appointed to this position 1n 2015, Ann 1s responsible for driving growth and profit across the company's diversified business divisions
in the USA and Canada Ann was promoted to President from COO and prior to joming BBC Worldwide, she worked as President, Dow
Jones Ventures, and as Executive Vice President, Consumer Products and Business Development at Viacom
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Corporate governance report

At any tme In the year, there were six Directors of the company
Four Non-executive Directors Tony Haill (BBC Director-General)
as Chawman, Anne Bulford (Managing Dwector, Finance &
Operations, BBC), Dhammash Mistry and Sir Howard Stringer
There were also two execulive Directors Tim Davie
(Chief Executive, BBC Woarldwide and Director, Global)
and Andrew Bott (Chief Financial Officer, BBC Worldwide)

In November, Andrew Bott took the decision to leave BBC
Worldwide and stood down with immediate effect as a Director of
the company A search for a permanent Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) culminated in the appointment of Tom Fussell on 3 May
2016 as CFO and a Dwector of the company Dunng the penod
between November 2015 and May 2016, Martyn Freeman
{General Counsel & Company Secretary, BBC Worldwmide) was
temporanly appomnted as a Director untll January, when Suzanne
Burrows took up the Directorship as intenm CFO until 3 May

Pnncipal responsibility for the day-to-day management of BBC
Worldwide rests with the BBC Worldwide Executve committee
{WEXx), which s chaired by the Chief Executive (CEOQ), Tim Davie
Further information sbout WEx may be found at
www bbcworldwide com

WEx delegates authonty to two pnncipal groups the Content
Investment Group {CIG) and the Investment Review Group (IRG)

The primary function of CIG s to ensure that all content
investment decisions are taken in line with the approved financial
guidelines and our overall business strategy It 1s responsibls for
reviewing and executng our global content strategy and
recommends changes where necessary CIG also approves
invastments for content distributon and broadcast rights as well
as monitoring our content pipeline in the context of performance
and strategic development Investments rewiewed this year
included Class and Gefaway Car CIG 13 chaired by the Controller
of Content Investment and 1s responsible for all content
investment decisions between £500,000 and £2m For those In
excess of £2m, CIG reviews and recommends such invesiment
proposats to WEx for approval

IRG Is responsible for reviewing and approving non-content
financial Investments, including proposals relating to independent
production company funding arrangemenis above £1m For
investments that are greater than £2m, IRG reviews and
recommends those investments to WEx for approval IRG s
chaired by the CFO

Commercial Criterla and Falr Trading Framework

The BBC’s Royal Charter and Agresment requires all of the
BBC's commaercial activities to comply with the four Cammercial
Cntenia (4CC) As such, our activities must

fit with the BBC's Public Purposes,
not jeopardise the good reputation of the BBC or the value of
the BBC brand,
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exhibit commercial efficiency, and

comply with the BBC Trust's Fair Trading Policy, the BBC's
Farr Trading Guidelines and, m particular, avotd distorting the
market

The 4CC approvals framework 1s embedded within our
governance structure and ensures that key prgjects and
investments are subject to ngorous evaluation, ensunng
compliance with each of the 4CCs pnor to the start of the service
or, where relevant, the completion of any equity transaction

The BBC's Fair Trading arrangements (which include the 4CC
approvals arrangements) have been accredied with the I1SO
9001 2008 qualty standard and are subject to scrutiny by
independent auditors commissioned by the BBC

Editorlal standards

We are required to meet the standards set out in the BBC's
Editorial Guidelines and the Adverising and Sponsorship
Guidelnes for BBC Commercial Services We operate &
comprehensive framework which sets oul clear editonal
accountability for each business area and have a dedicated
Editonial Standards team prowiding trainting, support and advice
across the company

Privacy, Information and content security

Consumers, talent, employees and partners trust us with therr
personal informatton and expect us to protect thewr privacy
Qur data protection and secunty programmes govemn how we
collect, use and manage ther mformation from safeguarding
confidentiality and respecting their permissions and preferences,
to protecting and secunng ther information Within the year, our
privacy framework was audited by the BBC's Internal Audt
function and was found to be operating to satisfactory standards
of control

As a company that prides ourseives on the quality of the content
we commiussion and create, it 1s vital we protect marketing and
promotional assets, scrnipts and programmes from unauthonsed
release With this in mind, we have continued to develop our
content security framework as part of a wider project focused on
the secunty of our information assets

Qur employees are an integral part of protechng and respecting
information Over the last 12 months, further work has focused on
building a strong culture where our employees are able to display
a good awareness of pnvacy and secunty nsk We also revised
our Privacy and Information Secunty training module in line with
possible threats to the company, which we will roll-out fo our key
content partners as part of a wider assurance intiative in the new
financial year

A new European law, the General Data Protecton Regulation
{(GDPR), was finalised in Apnl 2016, which will replace current
data protection laws It brings with it a range of enhanced
requirements and substantially increased fines of up to 4% of
global tumover We will be reviewing and improving our
processes over the next year to ensure we are compliant when
the GDPR comes into force n 2018
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Risk management

We are committed to supporting effective nsk management
practices to safeguard our people, reputaton, assets and
commercial perfformance These practices protect the reputation
of the BBC brand as we showcase it internationally through
branded services, content sales and other IP exploitation

Commercially, nsk management helps ensure stability of financial
retumns to support the UK licence fee Operationally, it ensures
continuity of cperations and resiience agamnst unpredictable

events

Gur approach to and assessment of reputational nsk s aligned to
the BBC's public purposas, values and editonal standards

Tim Davie, CEO, along with WEx, has ultimate sign-off on
matters relating to nsk management A Risk Management and
internal Controls Committee compnsed of WEx members and
senior managers reviews and challenges our corporate nsk
register on & quarterly basis We ensure employees are aware of
the key nsk themes through communicating these via a number
of channels as detaded below

Risk themsas

Strateglc impacts

Mitlgation

Brand, reputation and standards

Risk that audiences lose confidence in
the integnty of our business or our
content Risk we fal to represent the
values of the BBC to global audiences

Harm to our reputation,
our relatonship with
audiences and to the
credibiity of the BBC
brand

Leadership and management behawiours that promote the
BBC values embedded within our company's culture
Commitment to delivering honest and open communications
Policy framework, intemal communications and HR processes
inform and demonstrate appropnate behawiours [nductions,
mandatory traiming and regular staff survey to dnve
engagement

Indie and JV relationships

Risk we do not achieve the potential
frem our inde, joint vanture {JV) and
associate relationships,  pnncipally
UKTV, BBC AMERICA and Immediate
Media

Under-delivering
against audience
expectations, and our
ambitions for the
relationship

Content and business expertise brought through representation
on indie and JV Boards Commitment that our objectives are
focused on creatwity and support content ambibtons JV
formation 1s always backed by a detalled definition of the JV
benefits, purpose, mechanics and governance, with appropriate
safaguards over editonal contral The approvals framework,
encompassing BBC Public Service, ensure that potential deal
benefits to the UK licence fee payer are delivered

Market transformation and disruption
Risk that we do not adapt our content
and business strategy responsively
enough {0 meet audience pnonties
and respond to disruptive compettors
In a consohdating market

Lower wisibility for BBC
content intemationally,
poor commercial
returns for indies and
for the UK kcence fee
payer

Strategy team supporls the business and monitors market
changes Use expertse inherent in the business and in-depth
local knowledge of intemational markets in regions JV partners
bnng insight and knowledge Internal fransformation projects to
anticipate market trends and ensure our sales strategy, sales
infrastructure, people skills and business relationships are in
the best place to respond to challenges

Content supply

Risk that ongomng acquisthon and
consoldatton across the indie sector
resincts the addressable market for
nghts n prionty genres Risk from BBC
Studios as it makes the transtion to full
commercial operation

Volume, affordability
and commercial appeal
of content at nsk Risk
to the brand and
channel strategies

Dedicated Content division with experitse in content acquisition
and relattonship management Output deais with key indies and
investment stakes to mcrease our pipeline of creative output.
Commitment to maximising indie returns alongside the BBC
Store direct-to-consumer service and channels strategy

Channels and services

Risk that in-termiory we do not extract the
full value from our affilate relationships,
or the appropriate brand wisibility or the
nght premium vs free-to-air channel mix
Risk that we do not achieve sufficient
scale In some regional markets Risk to
launching new direct to consumer
service such as BBC Store and
forthcoming over the top cffer m the
USA

Reduce our ability to
showcase BBC content
More vulnerable to
disruptive digital
services Risk operating
with sub-scale regional
businesses

Expenenced international channels team with a proven track
record of leading negotatons and managing successful
channei launches Ensure regwns have extensive knowledge of
the affiiate landscape and the expertise to secure the nght
channel mix, platforms and relatonships Leadership
expernence and insight nto markets to ensure we attract the
nght partners, build effective relaltonships and develop the best
propositions m the context of global ambihon and strategy
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Risk management (continued)

Risk themas

Strategic Impacts

Mitigation

Information security
Risk that information secunty confrols

are compromised and systems
disrupted, data deleted or content
assets misappropriated

Damage to reputation
Disclosed assets have
reduced editonal or
commercial value
Disrupton to business
operatons Loss of
data

New content path defined for high-value content, ncluding
dedicated infrastructure and a content handling team
Centralised global sofution for regional post-production
activites New information secunty infrastructure capabiites,
additional expertise and resources, and a global network
convergence prgject In progress

Economic climate and trading
performance

Business performance I1s sensitive to UK
and international economic conditions,
especially in the USA and Australia, as
well as exchange rate movements

Adverse impact on cash
flows and reported
financial results

Business Is diversified across both regions and revenue
streams Central management of budgets and performance,
cash-flow forecasting and prudent debtor management Risk-
avarse approach to foreign currency management

Regulatory and complliance Cwil or cnminal Robust, enforced framework including WEx sponsorship,
Potential for non-complance with UK challenge Financial mandatory traming programme, policies, guidelines, regular
and ntenational laws, especially penalties Reputational reportng and specialist committees Oversight by BBC
regulatory changes and |egislation with damage Worldwide Board, WEx and Complhance Steering Group
extra-terntonal reach Central Business and Legal Affairs resources include speciatist
advisers, regional expertise and local comphance champions
to support the framework
Business continuity, safety and Potental for nury Securty and safety management arrangements supported by
sacurity or death Disruption to policy framework, communications, forums, guides, specialist
Risk of disruption to operations, business operations secunty and safety advice Offices and business operations
infrastructure and loss of revenue Reputahonal damage covered by continuity plans (nternational travel safety fraining

following a major incident. Increase n
global terronsm
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their repart and the audited consolidated financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited {the "“Company”} and its
subsidiary undertakings {together the "Group™) ang the Group's interest in associated undertakings and joint ventures for the year
ended 31 March 2016

Principal activities of the Group

The trading activities of the Group focus on the acquisition, development, exploitation, hcensing and sale of intelleciual property Rights
are acquired from BBC Public Service and from independent owners of intellectual property and are exploited through a number of
businesses, both wholly-owned and parlly-owned through associates and joird ventures, across multiple formats The business is
structured across seven geographical regions, these regions are grouped into four areas UK, North Amenca, Austraha and New
Zealand and the rest of the warld, prncipally non-Enghish speaking markets, known collectively as Global Markets The two glcbal
business areas, Content and Brands, set the strategic framework and parameters for activities within the regions and keep a close
connection into BBC Worldwide's ulimate parent, the British Broadcasting Corporation

Strateglc Report

A review of business performance, including hkely future developments, 1s mncluded in the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 13 The
management of the business and the execution of the Group's strategy are subject to a number of nsks The key business risks and
uncertainties affecting the Group are ciscussed on pages 16to 17

Results and dividends
The consolldated profit for the year distributable to equity shareholders of the Company was £85 6m (2015 £185 5m)

Dividends of £105 5m (2015 £111 3m) were proposed and pawd dunng the year and no further dwvidends have been proposed by the
Diractors post year end (2015 £nil)

Acquisitions and disposals

Dunng the financial year the Group acquired equity stakes in UK independent production companies Amazing Productions Limited,
Mighty Productions Limited and Red Planet Pictures (Entertainment) Limited  ft also acquired a majonty stake in South Afncan
production company Rapid Blue (Pty) Limited  Full details of the Group’s acquisitions and disposals are included in the Chief Financial
Officer's Review on pages 7 1o 8

Directors
The Directors who served during the year and until the date of this directors’ repont were

Tony Hall (Chaiman)

Tim Davie

Anne Bulford

Dharmash Mistry

Sir Howard Stringer

Andrew Botl (resigned on 9 November 2015)

Martyn Freeman (appointed 8 November 2015 and resigned on 29 January 2016)
Suzanne Burrows (appointed 29 January 2016 and resigned on 3 May 2016)
Tom Fussell (appomnted on 3 May 2016)

Golng concern

After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the business has adequate resources to continue In
operational existence for the foreseeable future, and accordingly the gotng concern basis continues to be adopted in the preparation of
the accounts Further information about the going concem assumption 1$ given in hote 1b to the consolidated financial statements

Directors' interests and Indemnities

No Director had any interest in the share capdal of the Group at 1 April 2015 or 31 March 2018 No nghts to subscnibe for shares i or
debentures of the Company or any other group company were granted to any of the Directors or their immediate farmilies, or exercised
by them, dunng the financial year Directors’ and Officers’ insuranca cover was in place throughout the financial year as appropnate
Additionally, an indemnity 18 in place for the Group's nominated Directors on the board of Australian entiies and for BBC Worldwide
Limied Directors and Officers in raspect of Branch operations in Austraka The norminated Directors are held harmless tn relation to
legal claims against them in their capacity as Directors and Officers, except in the event of fraud, dishonesty or wilful default The
indemnity covers all hability incurred by nominated Directors and Officers to the fullast extent permitted by Australian law and s
intended to offer protection to the nominated Directors and Officers in addition to the cover under the Group's Directors’ & Officers’
Insurance policy

Disabled employees

The Group gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the candidate's particular aptitudes and
abiles are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job Opportunties are avarlable to disabled employees for
training, career development and promotion Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Group’s policy to provide continuing
employment wherever practicable in the same or an alterative position and to provide appropnate tramning to achieve this aim
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Employee involvement

The Company operates a framework for employee information and consultation which complies with the requrements of the
Information and Consultation of Employees Regulations 2004 Dunng the year, the policy of prowiding employees with information
about the Group has been continued through the BBC's intranet service, and employees have also been encouraged to present their
suggestions and views on the Group's performance through staff surveys Regular meetings are held between local management and
employees to aliow a free flow of information and ideas Employees participate directly in the success of the business through
simplified bonus arrangements

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of thus Directars’ repont confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there Is no
relevant audit information of which the Group's auditor 1s unaware and each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit Infermation and to estabhsh that the Group's auditor 1s aware of
that informat:on

Auditors

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companias Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and Emst & Young LLP will
therefore continue tn office

By order of th rd,

g

Martyn Freefnan Registered office

Company Secretary Television Cantre

13 June 2016 101 Wood Lane
London W12 7FA
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Report on Directors’ remuneration

Year ended 31 March 2016

We finalised our plans to simphfy our Reward offenng this year Both Profit Share and Deferred Bonus plans are now closed and will
not be replaced Directors, senior managers and all other employees now have very simply structured pay packages, which comprise a
basic salary and a performance-related bonus that 1s at nisk if the required results are not achieved

Wherever possible, we use salary survey data to identify the pay range in the market for a specific role n a particular location As a
matter of policy we continue to pay at or below the market median in the UK and no more than 10% above the local market median
elsewhere In the year we took the opportunity 1o regrade our roles to better support career paths This work will form the foundations
of a giobal job grading structure that will ensure pay 15 correctly positiened at all levels in BBC Worldwade, which will be fully
implemented within the next financial year

The Sales Compensation Framework, developed with the aim of consistently focusing our sales teams on delivenng the best possible
retum to the BBC and our indie partners, was implemented in 2014/15, paying bonus to sales staff in proportion to targets achieved
We will continue to monitor the scheme, refining it as necessary, lo ensure that it achieves maximum value for the BBC

Governance

There were no significant changes to remuneration governance arrangements i 2015/16, with decisions affecing members of the BBC
Worldwide Executive (WEx) team and company-wide reward being taken by the BBC Executive Remuneratton Committee Salary
decisions affecting other staff earming more than £125,000 (or local equivalent) per year, and saverance payments in excess of
£75,000, continue to require approval by the BBC Senior Management Remuneration Committee The BBC Worldwide Pay Commitiee,
compnsing the Chief Executive (CEQ), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and People Director, continues to review all significant pay
decisions

No individual 1s responsible for setiing his or her own remuneration
Full details of all the above governance matters can be found in the BBC Annual Report and Accounts
Executive Directors

This report summanses the remuneration of tha CEQ and CFO of BBC Worldwide, who are the sole Executive Directors of
BBC Worldwide

Tim Davie was CEO for the full year Andrew Botit was CFO from tha start of the year until he resigned from his post in January and as
a Director of BBC Worldwide from the start of the year until November, following the submission of his resignation in the intenm Martyn
Freeman, General Counsel & Company Secretary, was appointed a Director of BEC Worldwide followad by Suzanne Burrows, who
was appomnted a Director and intenm CFO on 29 January Further details on this are noted in Corporate Governance, page 135

Base salary

Tim Davie’s annual base salary has remained unchanged since Apnl 2013 Andrew Bott's salary also remained unchanged, as did
Martyn Freeman's

Annual Incentives

Annual incentives are provided through the BBC Worldwide Annual Bonus Plan, in which all staff participate (other than those on sales
schemes)

The Plan 1s a simple design, with a ‘Minimum Growth Hurdle' {(a threshold level of performance), a Target Performance level (set to be
stretching but, with substanbal effort, achievable), at which Target Bonus i1s payable, and a Maximum Bonus Performance level
{above whuch no further bonus 1s payable), set significantty above Target

Target Bonus for the CEQ and the CFQ 1s 50% of base pay earnings Bonus for all Executive Directors 1s wholly dependent on the
performance of BBC Worldwide as this 1s deemed to be the most appropnate indicator of their performance

Penslon

Executive Directors who joined the BBC before 1 December 2010 are eligible to participate in the BBC Pension Scheme (the Scheme),
which provides for pension benefits on a defined benefit basis Execulive Directors who joined the BBC on or after 1 December 2010
are eligible to join LfePlan, which is the BBC's defined contribution armangement The BBC pays matching contnbutions to LifePlan for
employee contnbutions between 4% and 5% Employee contnbutions between 6% and 7% are matched plus an addiional 1%
Employee contnbubons of 8% or more receive the maxmum employer contnbutton of 10% There 1s no maximum pensionable salary
for contnbutions to LifePlan

Executive Directors who decide not to join LifePlan or are not already an existing member of the Scheme are, subject to meeting the
relevant critena, automatically enrolled into the National Employment Savings Trust (NEST) The BBC and employees currently pay 1%
of qualifying earmings to NEST Indiwviduals can choose to opt out of this

20




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financlal Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016

Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Executive Directors' pension armangemenis may be reviewed and amended In response to changes m legislation or similar
developments .

Features of the BBC's pension arrangements, including normal pensionable age, are provided in the table on page 23

Details of the BBC Pension Scheme are avallable at www bbe co uk/mypension/ and details of LifePlan can be found at
www friendsltfe co uk/microsite/bbe/

Components of reward

The following table summanses the current, key, fixed and vanable components of reward (excluding sales incentives) for executives
and employees

Eloment Purpose and link Performance  Operation
to strategy perlod

Base salary Maintain a competitive Not applicable  Reviewed annually, taking into account the industry in
package, at the agreed which BBC Worldwide operates, location, individual
position for the performance and responsibilites, and affordabilty

relevant local market,
recognising  ndividual
contnbution and the
scope of the role

Raward from current Incentive plans

Annual incentives Reward achievement 1 year Bonus, caiculated as a percentage of base pay
of short-term strategic eamings, I1s payable for achievement of headine profit
goals and profit targets and, other than for members of the BBC
growth Worldwide Executve (WEx), an agreed level of

personal parformance The percentage varies by grade
{and, at lower levels, by country, In some ¢tases)

A reduced bonus 1s payable for achievement below
Target, subject to reaching a threshold level of
performance below which no bonus 15 payable, with
additonal bonus avallable for achievement above
Target For members of the Executive, bonus 15
between 20% and 70% of base pay eamings, with the
top of that range payable at a lavel of profit considered
to be achievable only In exceptional circumstances

The tevels of profit performance attracting threshold,
target and maximum bonus are set by the BBC
Executive Remuneration Committee

Benefits

Pensions Pensions are offered in  Ongoing Pensions are offered in accordance with the all
line with normal market employee pansion arrangements
practice

21




BBC Worldwide Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016

Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Element Purpose and link Performance Operation
to strategy period
Life assurance life assurance 18 Ongoing 4 x salary for those whe join the pension plan
offered in line with 2 x salary for those who do not.
normal market
practice
Privete healthcare Private heaithcare 18 Ongoing Famity cover for senior executives
offered n Ine with Single cover for other ehgible employees
normal market practice
at mddle management
level and above
Car allowance With effect from 1 Apnl - Those who were already in recetpt of a car allowance
2014, BBC Worldwide have retained it The car allowance 15 £6,300 per year
removed the car
allowance bensefit for
all new Executive
Directors and senior
managers, to align with
amrangements for all
BBC employees
CEO earnings for the last five years £000s
31 Mar 2014 670 ;
31 Mar 2013 SR [ -7
arvarzor2 |z %' 4] 525
& Bass Poy
® Long-term incantves
a Short-tarm incentives
u Bansfits
Pension

John Smith was CEQ from the start of this five-year perlod until 31 December 2012
Tim Dawe has been CEQ since 1 Aprll 2013
Figures do not includa compensation 1or loss of office
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Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

‘New’ Nattonal Employment
Schome ‘Old’ Benefits Bensfitse CAB 2006 CAB 2011 LHaPlan Savings Trust (NEST)
Defined Defined Defined Defined Defined Defined Contribution (Auto;
Benafit Benefit Benefit Benefit Contribution Enrolment Arrangement)
30
30 September 31 Oclober 1 January  Open to all eligible Open to
Date closed 1996 2006 Noyemberg012 employees all eligible employees
o scons 16T
ths 60 accrual BBC will contnbute
Accrual 80" accrual acerual Alrll#uest‘:?hm Adiusted in | & maamum of 10%
inflation e with P of salary if BBC will contnbuta 1% of
employee qualifying earnings
Career Career contnbutes 8% wth
Final Final average average i Iid I
alary pensionable  pensionable  revalued revalued ower sliding scale
earnmngs earnings
E'::“a' pensionable 60 80 65 65 N/A NIA
E:;grgqoj::?eg Minimum Eamings
Caeppedat Cappedat Cappedat £5,668p a
Earnings cap 19890;‘3325"9‘" £141,000 £141,000  £138,000 Uncapped Maximum Eamings
olherwse £41,450p 8
ansionable salary
rowth before the Limted at 1%  Limited at Limited at No N/A NIA
aminge cap pa 1%pa 1%pa restriction
is applled
Employes contribution
k% of pensionable 75% 7 5% 4% 6%  Minmum employSe 49 of qualfying eamings
alary)
Employment contracts

Employment contracts of Executive Directors recently employed by BBC Worldwide in the UK have a maximum notice pertod of six
months Contracts are subject to earlter tarmination for cause In the UK, if tarmination anses through redundancy, Executive Directors
are entitled to one month’s pay for each year of centinuing senace, up to a maximum of 24 months' base pay (or 12 months' base pay
for Executive Directors employed on or after 1 January 2013) This is subject to a cap of £150,000 in total

Outside Interests
Where there 1s no potential for confiict of interest, and with the pnior agreement of the Chair of BBC Worldwide, Executive Directors
may hold one paid external directorship Remuneration which anses from directorships may be retaned by the Director This policy 1s

to encourage the take-up of external Non-executive appointments as part of the Executive Director's development as well as bringing
broader business skills to BBC Worldwmde

Duning the year, no Executive Directors held pad external directorships
Non-executive Directors
The Non-executive Directors of BBC Worldwide dunng the year ware Tony Hall (BBC Director-General), Anne Bulford (Managing

Director, Finance & Operations, BBC), Dharmash Mistry and Sir Howard Stringer, none of whom received any remunerabon in respect
of their duties in this capacity
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Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Remuneration earned in the year ended 31 March 2016

Total Total Total 2094- Total
2015M8& 2018116 15 201415
{excluding {including (including (excluding

Ponsion- Penslon-  Panslon-  Pension-  Pansion-
Related Related Related Retated Related

Foo/base Car Annual Taxable Single Single Single Single Single
£'000 pay gllowances  bonus benofits Figure) Figure Figure) Flgura) Flgure)
Executive Directors
Tim Davie’ 400 - 224 2 626 38 664 640 603
Andrew Bott* 177 - - 1 178 18 196 489 466
Martyn Fresman’ 48 1 26 1 74 - 74 - -
Suzanne Burrows’ 30 1 17 - 48 4 52 - -
653 2 267 4 926 60 986 1,129 1,069
Non-executive Directors
Tony Hall® - - - - - - - - -
Anne Bulford® - - - - - - - - -
Dharmash Mistry” - - - - - - - - -
Sir Howard Stringer® - - - - - - - - -
Total 853 2 267 4 926 60 986 1,129 1,069

T The BBC introduced a salary sacnfice amangement on 1 June 2008 for Okl and New Benefits members who joined the Pension Scheme before 1
November 2008 and for all Career Average Benefit members From that date, terms and conditions of employment were changed for those employees
opting for the salary sacrifice arrangement and, as a resull, employee pension contributions made via the salary sacrifice have been trested as
employer contributions, with a corresponding reduction in salary Tim Davie's base salary has not been adjusted to reflect the impact of the salary
sacrifice His total salary sacrifice was £8,640 (2013/14 £8,532)

2 Andrew Bott was a Director of BBC Worldwide until @ November 2015 Andrew Bott's salary reflects the time he was a Director of the company

3 Martyn Freeman jolned the BBC In 1984 and was a Director of BBC Worldwide from & November 2015 untl 28 January 2016

* Suzanne Burrows joined the BBC in 2009 and was a Director of BBC Worldwide from 29 January 2016 until 3 May 2016

5 Non-executrve Directors did not recelve remuneraton in relation to therr duties for BBC Woridwide

Defined boenefit entitiements
Defin
beneft
Accrued Accrued contribution
Ago as at pension penslon {vla gal
[Pongion figures are all in £ 31 Mar 16 Section 31 Mar 16 01 Apr 16 sacrifice
Tir Davie’ 48 CAB 2011 9,861 7,530 8,640
Martyn Freeman® 51 Old benefits 68,533 67,627 3570
Suzanne Burrows® 48 CAB 2006 13,091 12,713 946

¥Tim Davie joined the BBC in 2005 and was appointed CEO of BBC Worldwide on 1 April 2013 Tim became an active member of the CAB 2011
section as of 4 January 2012 and retsins a defemed pension m the New Benefits section for service up lo that date The accrued pensions shown relate
to CAB 2011 only but include the penod before he was appointed as a Directar

2 Martyn Freeman joined the BBC In 1994 and served on the Board of BBC Worldwide from 9 November 2015 to 29 January 2016 The accrued
pensions shown include the period before he was appointed as a Director

3 Suzanne Burrows joined the BBC in 2009 and became a Director of BBC Worldwide on 29 Janyary 2016 The accrued pensions shown include the
penod before she was appointed as a Director
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financial statements in accordance wilth appheable
law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financlal year Under that law they have elected to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with Intemational IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Company
finaneial statements tn accordance with UK Accounting Standards and appilcable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of the state of
affalrs of the Group and parent Company and of their profit or toss for that period In preparing each of the Group and parent Company financial
statements, the Directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policles and then apply them consistently,
= make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
« for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,
« for the parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and exptained in the financial statements, and
+ prepare the financiat statements on the going concem basis unless it is nappropniate to presume that the Group and the Company will continue
In business
The Diractors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain the parent Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent Company and eneble them to ensure that its financlal statements
comply with the Companles Act 2008 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguand the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other imegulantles

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial mformation included on the Company's website
Legisiation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation In other urisdictions
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Independent auditor's report to the members of BBC Worldwide Limited

We have audited the financial statements of BBC Worldwide Liminted for the year ended 31 March 2016 which comprise the Consolidated income
staternent, Consolidated statement of comprahensive income, Consolidated balance gheet, Consolidated cash flow statement and Consolidated
statement of changes in equity, the related notes 1 to 37, the Company batance sheet and the related notes a to s The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporiing Standards ({IFRSs}
as adopted by the European Unson The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Company financial statements Is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 "Reduced
Disciosure Framework®

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, a3 a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit
work has been underiaken so that we maght state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audlt work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilltles of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Direclors’ Responsibiliies Statement set out on pages 25, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financlal statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibliity 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and intemational Standards on Audlting (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An autht involves obtaining evidence aboul the amounts and disclosurées in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financiai statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the group's and the parent company s clrcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the Annual Report fo wdentify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
1o Identify any information that is apparently materially tncomrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us In the course
of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we conslder the implcations for our report

Opinlon on financial statements

In our opinion

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of Ihe Company's affarrs as at 31 March 2016 and of the Group's
profit for the year then ended,

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in

» the Company financial stalements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice,
including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and

« the financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compantes Act 2008

Oplnlon on other matter prescribed by the Companles Act 2006

In our optmon the information given in the Strategk: Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to repon by axception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparnies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, In our opmion

+ adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been seceived from branches not
vistted by us, or

- the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums, or

+ certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by taw are not made, of

+ we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audt

Em’eqk 7/01»? P

Richard Wilson (Senlor statutory a
for end on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Audltor
London

13 June 2016
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2016
Ongoing
Businesses and Ongotag 3.7+
total buainentst AMERICA Tots)
i m1s5 2015 ™S
No;a_ £m ‘E_m £m em
Headline sates Including joint ventures 2 1,0294 948 1 537 10018
Less Share of revenue of joint ventures {174 0} {150 5) - {150 5)
Revenue 8564 797 & 537 8613
Total operating costs 3 (790 8) (728 5) (423) (770 8)
Share of results of joint veritures and associates 418 358 - 358
Operating profit 106 4 1049 "4 1163
Analysed as
Headline profit 2 1338 1272 114 1386
Share of Interest and tax of joint ventures and associates 4 (10 6) (94) - (84)
Pension deficlt reduction payment 4 (34) 81) - (81)
Other specific items 4 (134) (28) . 48
10684 104.9 1.4 1163
Gains on disposals 28 15 - 1159 1169
Other gans and losses 8 (4 86) (57) - {87)
Finance Income 2] 09 08 - 08
Finance expanse 9 (37) (3.5) - (35)
Profit before tax 1006 8B.5 1273 2238
[Profit before tax excluding geins and losses on disposals 99 0 86 5 114 107 9 |
Tax charge for the year 10 {14 9) (117 (266)  (383)
Proflt lé the year ?ﬁlBﬁEEla 1o the eqully sharaholder 5 856 848 00 7 188 5

Attnbutable fo

Equity shareholders of the parent company 856 B4 8 1007 1855
_Non-controlling interests - - . .
Profit for the year 856 848 1007 185 5
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2016
Ongoing
and 0 BBC
total buainesses AMERICA * Tolsl
e 013 s m
Em E Em m
Profit for the year B56 848 1007 1855
Itema that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Recycling of translation reserves on disposal of business - - 81 61
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 72 164 28 192
Revaluaton of avallable-for-sale financial assets 29 - - -
Net losses on cash flow hedges (12 5) {10 8) - (10 8)
Tax on cash flow hedges taken direclly (o other comprehensive mcome 25 23 - 23
Other comprehensive income for the year 01 78 [X] 167
Total comprehenaive income for the year attributable to equity shareholder of the parent
857 926 108 6 2022

company

* BBC AMERICA. 2015 compnses the results of New Video Channel America LLC ("NVCA"} up to the date of disposal, together with the Group's gain on
disposal (see note 28) Whilst the transachon did not meet the cnterla of a discontinued operation under IFRS 5 Non-Current Assats Held for Sale and
Discantinued Operations , It was considered to be of sufficient importance as Io justify the presentation of a separate column for BBC AMERICA in order to

prowde a better understanding of the profit and other comprahensive income

Post-disposal results are ncluded within Share of results of joint ventures and associates in the Ongoing business columns
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Consolidated balance sheet

as at 31 March 2016

nu 2018
Nots tre Em
Non-current essels
Goodwill 12 342 334
Distribution rights 13 2103 2028
Other mtangible assets 14 355 279
Property plant and equipment 15 207 286
Interests in joint ventures and associates 16 1718 148 8
Investments 17 165 131
Trade and cther recevables 19 565 271
Deferred tax assets 10 65 42
Denvative financial assets 24 01 29
561.1 488 8
Current agsets

Programme rights and other inventories 18 529 673
Trade and other receivables 19 3247 340 1
Current tax recelvable 186 2086
Derivative financial assets 24 09 a4
Cash and cash equivalents 458 66 6
Assets classifled as held for sale 21 - 30
4429 5060

Total assets 1,004 0 954 8

Current llabliities
Interest-bearing loans and bomowings 23 167 9 03
Trade and other payables 20 3898 4052
Current tax liabilites 62 48
Provisions 22 19 53
Derivative financial liabilies 24 14 10 2
589 6 4256
Non-currant llabllitlas

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 23 - 1355
Trade and other payables 20 23 08
Provisions 22 01 19
Denvative financial habilities 24 80 62
Deferred tax liabilities 10 197 192
301 1638

Total llabliities 6187 5892
Neot assots 3843 4056

Equity

Share capitat 25 02 02

Hedging reserve 26 {130) (30)
Tranglation reserve 26 193 121
Other reserves 26 13 -
Retained eamings 26 376 4 396 3
"Equity attributable to shareholder 3842 4066
Non-cortrolling interests 01 -
Total equity 3843 405 6

These consolldated financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directors on 13

June 2016 and were signed on s behalfl b

Tim Davie
Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2016
ms m1e
Nate &m im
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 20 610 2175
Tax paid (87) {26 5)
1523 1910
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest recelved 09 08
Cividends recetved from joint ventures and associates 16 266 265
Dividends received from other Invesiments 17 04 -
Purchases of distribution nghts 13 (1285) (1459)
Purchases of other intangible assets 14 (14 5) (M7
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 15 . {6 5) (20 3)
Acquisition of subsidianes (net{ of cash acquired) 27 (0 9) -
Msposal of operations net of cash disposed 28 316 645
Acquisition of interests in joint ventures and associates 16 {28) (36)
Acquisition of Investments 0 2) (54)
Amounts advanced to related parties (2 6) ©1)
Repayment by related parties - 03
{96 €) (94 9)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest pad (35) (33
Drawdown of ioans and borrowings R0 364
Equity dviderds paid 14 (1055) {1113)
{r70) (782)
Not (decrease)lincreass in cash and cash aquivalents (213) 178
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 66 6 451
Foreign exchange translation gamns 05 KX:)
Cash and cash equivalonts at end of the year 48.8 1)

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised entirely of cash at banks and on hand
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BBC Worldwlde Limited
Year ended 31 March 2016

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2016

#

BShare Hedging Transkedion Other RAetained  Non-conbroling Total
eapital fetafve reseren resarves sarnings interastn aquily
2 tn tm [2 £m m em
Balanca at 1 April 2014 0.2 5.6 {13 2) - 3221 - 314.7
Profit for the year - - - - 1855 - 1855
Recychng of translabon reserves on disposal - - 61 - - - 61
Recogntion and transfer of cash flow hedges - {10 9) - - - - (109)
Tax on temns taken directly to equity - 23 - - - - 23
Exchange differences on translation of foresgn operations - - 192 - - - 16 2
Total comprehensive Income for the year - (8 6) 252 . 18585 - 2022
Dividends paid {note 11) - - . - {111 3) - {111 3)
Balance at 31 March 2018 02 (3.0} 121 - 3963 - 4066
Profit for the year - - - - 856 - 858
Revaluation of available-for-sale financal assets (note 26) - - - 29 - - 29
Net gan/toss) on cash flow hedges - {12 5) - . - - {12 5)
Tax on ftems takan direclly to equity - 25 - - - - 25
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations - - 72 - - - 72
Total comprohensive Incoma for the year - {100) 7.2 29 856 - 887
Changes in non-controlling interests (notes 26 and 27) . - - (18) . 01 (15)
Dividends pawd (note 11) - - - - (105 6) - (105 5)
Balance at 31 March 2016 0.2 (13 0) 193 1.3 are 4 01 3843

30




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Pnncipal accounting policies \

BBC Worldwide Limited (the "Company™) 1s a company domiciled and incorporated in the United Kingdom, and its registered address is Telewision
Centre, 101 Wood Lane, London W12 7FA The consohdated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016 comprnse the
Company and Iis subsidiary undertakings (togather the “Group™} and the Group’s mterest In Joint ventures and assoclated undertakings

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that s the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the Group
operates Foreigh operations are included In accordance with the policies set out below

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internailonat Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Umion (the EU), the Compamies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the EU Intemational Accounting Standards Regulations

The financial statements are principally prepared on the histoncal cost basis Areas where aiternative bases of accounting are applied are dentified in
the accounting policies below

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the BBC AMERICA column includes in the Income statement and the relevant notes comprises the resulls of
NVCA up to the date of disposal, together with the Group's gain on disposal (see note 28) Whilst the transacfion did not meet the critena of a
discontinued operation under IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations , it was censidered to be of sufficient mportance
to justify the presentation of a separate column for BBC AMERICA, In order to provide a better understanding of the profit and other comprehensive
income for the year

{b) Golng concern

The Board remains satisfied with the Group's funding and liquidity position The dlSCl;)SIJI‘GS on page 18 in the Directors' Repart in respect of going
concem form part of the audifed accounts

As al 31 March 2016, the main scurce of debt funding was an unsecured credit facility with BBC Commercial Holdings Limrted (BBCCH) expiring in
September 2017 Further information in respect of this facillty is included In note 23

On the basis of stress-tested forecasts, and having regard to avaiable and anticipated financing facllities, the Board has concluded that the going
concem basis of preparation continues to be appropriate Further information in respect of liquidity nsk is Included In note 34

{c} Basis of consolidation
i Subsidiaries .

The congolidated financial statements incorporate the financlal statements of the Company and entittes controlled by the Company (and 1#s
subsidiaries) made up to 31 March each year Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an investes entty £0 as to obian benefits from its activitles

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate Where necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financlal statements of subsidiaries
to bring the accounting policles used into line with those of the Group Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation

Non-controling interesis in subsidiaries are identfied separately from the Group's equity therein The interests of non-controlling shareholders are
inltially measured at their proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's dentifiable nel assets Subsequent to acquisilion, the carrylng amount
of non-controlling interests is increased or decreased in proportion to the non-controling nterests' share of any subsequent changes in equity

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as eqguity transactions The carrying amounts
of non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect any changes in thelr, and the Group's, relatlve Interests in the subsidianes Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling Interests are adjusted and the fair vatue of the consideration paw or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to the Company's shareholder

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal Is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the conslderation recelved and the fair value of any retained interest (net of disposal costs), and (i) the previous cemrying amount of the net assets
of the subsldiary {including atiributable goodwlll} and any non-controlling interests Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidlary are reclasslfied to the income staternent or transferred directly to retained eamings as appropriate The fair value of any
wnterest retained In the former subsidlary at the date when control is lost Is regarded as the cost on inibial recogmition of an investment in a joint
venture of associate
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1 Principal accounting policles {continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
I Jownt ventures end associates

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the paruies that have joint control have nghts to the net assets of the joint venture Joint control
Is the contractually agreed shanng of control of an arangement, which exisis only when dacisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties shanng control An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant Influence Slgnificant influence is the power to
participate in the finandal and operating palicy decisions of the investee, but is not control or jeint control over those policles

The results, and assels and habilitles of joint ventures and associates are incorporated into these financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the imvestment 15 classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS § Non-cufrent Assets
Meid for Sals and Discontinued Cperations

Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried m the consolidated balance sheet at cost, adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group's share of he net assets of the jont venture or assoclate, less any impaiment in the value of ndividual investments

Where the Group's share of losses exceeds the interest in the joint venture or associate, including the carrying value of the investment and any long-
term Interests, to nil, no further losses are recogmised except to the extent that the Group has Incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture or associate

Where a group entlty transacts with a joint venture ar associate of the Group, unreslised profits and losses are eliminated 1o the extent of the Group's
interest in the relevant joint venture or associale

The Group accounts for its share of the results and net assets of its joint ventures and associates using information as of 31 March with the exception
of Children's Character Books Limited, Woodiands Books Lumited, Educational Pubhshers LLP and JV Programmes LLC which have been included
using informatlon from unaudited accounts drawn up to 31 December The impaci of these non-coterminous year ends is not considered material

(d} Adoption of new and revised standards

At the beginning of the current period, the Group adopted the following accounting pronouncements none of which had a significant Impact on its
results or financial pesition

- Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycla (2013)
+ Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle (2013)
*+  Amendmenis to |IAS 19 (2013) Employee Benefits

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been applied in these financlal
statements were in issue but not yet effective {and In some cases had not yei been adopted by the EU)

» Amendments resulting from Annua! Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle (2014) {effective for periods commencing on or afier 1 January 2016)

«  Amendments to IAS 1 (2014) Prasentation of Financial Statemenis (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

« Amendments to IAS 7 (2016) Statement of Cash Flows (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2017)

«  Amendments to IAS 12 (2018) Income Taxas (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2017)

«  Amendments to IAS 16 (2014) Property, Plant and Equipmant (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

+ Amendments ta IAS 27 (2014) Separate Financial Statements (affectve for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

»  Amendments to IAS 28 (2014, 2015) Investments in Asscciales and Joint Ventures (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January
2016)

+  Amendments to IAS 38 (2014} Intangible Assets (effective for pericds commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

«  Amendments o IAS 39 (2013) Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement (effective when IFRS 9 is applled, on or after 1 January
2018)

«  Amendments to IAS 41 {2014) Agricutture (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016}

. Amendments to IFRS 7 (2011, 2013) Financial Instruments Disclosures (effective when IFRS 9 15 applied, on or after 1 January 2018)

«  Amendments 1o IFRS 10 (2014) Consolidated Financial Statements {effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016}

« Amendments to IFRS 11 {2014} Joint Arrangements (eftective for periods commencing on of after 1 January 2016)

« Amendments to IFRS 12 (2014} Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities {effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 20186)
IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

. IFRS 14 (2014) Regulatory Deferral Accounts (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

» IFRS 15 (2014, 2015) Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

+ IFRS 16 (2016) Leases {effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019)

32




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(d} Adoption of new and ravised standards (continued)

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group In
future periods, except for the below which are currently being evaluated

+ IFRS 9 (2014) Financral Instruments (effectve for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)
« IFRS 15 (2014, 2015) Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)
« IFRS 16 (2015) Leases (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 anuary 2019)

Beyond the information above, it 1s not practicable to provide a reascnable estimate of the effect of these standards until a detailed review has been
completed

(e) Non-statutory financial performance measures

The Group believes that 'Headline sales’ and ‘Headline profit' are addstional non-statutory measures of financia! perfformance that provide further
guidance o help understand the performance of the business on a comparable basis year on year

Headline sales include the Group's share of the revenues of its joint ventures, which are closely monstored by the Directors  Headline profit excludes
significant items affecting operating profit (termed *specific tems”) which in the Directors’ judgement enable a more complete understanding of the
Group's financial performance Specific lems are Identified separataly by virtue of their size, nature or incidence

Specific items are not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies [tems which have been
nighlighted for consideration inciude the impairment of goodwill, the Group's share of the Interest and tax of joint ventures and associates, and other
non-routine items which help to faciiitate a consistent view of the Group's results

The Group also discloses proht before tax exciuding gains and losses on disposals This measure reflects the oversl! profitability of the group on a
statutory basis, before taking into account business disposals

() Business combinations

Acguisitions of subsidianes and businesses are accounted for using the ecquisiion method The cost of each acquisition Is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets gqiven and liabditles incurred or assumed in exchange for control of the acquiree
Acguisition related costs are recogrused in the income statement as incurred

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes contingent cansideration, measured at its acquisiion-date far value Subsequent
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are recorded in the income statement

Where a business combination is achieved in stages (1 e where the Group acquires an entity which was previously a joint venture, associate or held-
for-sale investment) the Group remeasures its pre-existing interest in the entity to far value at the acquisition date {1 e the date the Group attains
control} The resulting gain or loss, If any, |s recognised In the income statement Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of the entity, prior to the acquisition date, are also reciassified to the income statement where required

The acquired entity's Identifiable assets, llabillties and contingent liabliities that meat the conditions for recognibon under IFRS 3 (2008) Business
Combinations are recognised at therr farr value at the scquisition date, except that assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as hald for sale are
measured in accordance with IFRS § Non-current Assets Held for Sele and Discontinued Gperations

{g) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-currert assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if ther camying amount will be recovered principally through sale rather than
continuing use, they are avallable for immediate sale in their present conditron and a sale is wghly probable Management must be commutted to the
sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

When the Group Is comrutted to a sale plan nvolving less of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and habilities of that subsidiary are classified as
held for sale when the criteria described above are mel, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidlary
after the sale

Once classified as held for sale, non-current assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell, No amortisation or deprectaton is charged on non-current assets (Iincluding those in disposal groups) classified as held for sale
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

th) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition {except prior to 1 April 2007) is recognised as an asset at the date that control 15 acquired (the ‘acquisition date’)
Goodwill 15 measured as the difference between (1) the consideration paid, the fair value of any interest held in the acquiree pror to acquisition, and
any non-controlling Interast in the acquirea, and (1) the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabiliies assumed at the acquisidion date

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at teast annually For the purpose of impaimment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating unlts expected to benefil from the synergies of the combmation, Cash-generating units to wiich goodwill has been allocated
are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indicatlon that the unit may be impaired Testng for impairment invoives a
companson of the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit wath its recoverable amount, being the higher of its value in use or fair value less costs
to sell

Where impairment testing Indicates that the carrying amount of a cash-generaling unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the unit is written down to the
recoverable amount An impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwlll allocated to the unit and then to the other
asseis of the umt pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset In the unit An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwlll is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

{i) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable and represents amounis receivable for goods and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts, returns, VAT and cther sales-related taxes Revenue Is recognised when the significant transfer of
nsks and rewards has occurred

The Group's main sources of revenue and its policies for the recognition of such revenue are summarised as follows

« Licence fees are eamned by the Group from programme content and programme formats Once a contract has been signed, licence fees are
recoghised on the later of the stanl of the licence period or when the associated programme is avallabla for delivery

«  Subscniphon fees from the broadcast of the Group's channels on pay tefevision platforms, and from subscnptions to print and online publications
and services, are recognised as eamed, pro rata over the subscription period

+ Advertising revenue generated by channels operations and from websites are recognised on transmission or publication of the advertisement

= Production fees and partictpation royalties eamed by the Group are recognised as eamed Production fees are recognised on delivery of the
programme or on a stage of completion bass, depending on the nature of the contract with the customer Royaltles are recognised on receipt or
on an accruals basis where sufficient reliable Information is avallable

- Revenue generated from the sale of physical and digital products through our consumer products operations is recognised et the time of
delivery Revenue from the sale of goods is stated net of deductions for actual and expected returns based on management judgement and
historical experience

{l) Foreign currencles

The individual resuits and financial position of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
company operates (its functional currency) For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financlal position of each group
company are expressed In pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation cumrency for the consolidated
finanaal statements

Transactions in forexgn currencies are translated into the apphcable funchional currency of each enhity of the Group at a monthly average exchange
rate Monetary assets and liabllities denominated in foreign currencies are translated al the foreign exchange rate ruling on that date Foreign
exchange differences which arise on translation are recognised in the income statement

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and fabilities of the Group's foreign aperations are translated at exchange
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date (the 'closing rate’) Income and expense items are transtated at the weighted average rates for the year
Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of the opening net assets, and income and expense for the yeer to the closing rate are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity {(atinbuted to nen-controling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange ditferences i respect of thal operation recognised In equity are reclassified to the
Income statement and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwll and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and habilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate, as described above
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued}

1. Principal accounting policles (continued)

(k) Retirement benefit costs
Contnbutions to defined contnbution pension schemes are charged to the income statement as they fall due

Employees of the Group also parbcipate m defined benefit schemes operated by the Group's ultimate parent, the Brilish Broadeasting Corporabon
{the "BBC") The defined benefit schemes provide benefits based on pensicnable pay The assets of the BBC's main pension scheme, the BEC
Pension Scheme, are held separately from those of the BBC Group

The BBC Pension Scheme is a Group wide scheme and there is no contractual agreement or stated pollcy for charging the net defined benefit cost to
scheme participants  The contribution rates are set by the pension scheme trustees based on valuations which take a longer-term view of the assets
required to fund the scheme's habllihes Vaiuations of the scheme are performed by Towers Watson, consulhng actuanes, with formal valuations

undertaken at least every three years Therefore as required by IAS 19 Employee Benefits BBC Worldwide accounts for the contributions payable to

the scheme for the year

() Taxation

Cument tax 15 based on taxable profit for the year, and is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because [t excludes items of income or expenditure winch are not
taxable or deductible or which are taxable or deductible in other years

Currant lax assets and curcent tax liabilities are offsetif and only if, there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off the recognised amounts, and the
entity intends either to settle on a net bass, of to realise the asset and setlle the liabillty simultanecusly

Deferred tax is the tax expected 1o be payable or recoverable in future periods and is recognised using the balance sheet lability method This
method provides for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxabie profit Temporary differences ansing from goodwill and the initial recognition of assets or ltabllities that affect
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit are not provided for

Deferred tax lsabilities are recogrused for taxable temporary dfferences arising on Investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and associates except
where the Group Is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foresesable future

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits wiit be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

The amount of deferred tax provided 18 based on the manner in which tax 1s expected to arlse and using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Defemed tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except where it relates to items
recorded within cther comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also recorded within other comprehensive income

Defered tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only where there 1s a legally enforceable right fo set off current tax assets against curent tax
habilties, and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to mcome taxes levied by the same taxation authority on elther

+ the same taxable entity; or
« different taxable entities which intend elther to settle current tax liablities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settie the Labiities

simultaneously, in each fulure period In which significant amounts of deferred tax hatilities or assets are expected to be settied or recovered

(m) Distribution rights

Distribution nghts represent nghts to programmes and associated intellectual property acquired with the pnmary mtention of exploiting the nghts
commercially as part of the Group's long-term operations

Distribution nghts acquired by the Group are either purchased, generated internally or icensed following the payment of an advance on royalties
Where the Group controls the respective assets and the risks and rewards attached to them, rights are initially recognised at acquisition cost or
production cost The camying amount is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and provsion for impairment

Amortisation of distribution nghts Is charged to the income statement to match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its estimated
average marketable life The expectied lives of distribution nghts range from one to ten years, with some older assets for which the Group holds rights
In perpetuity retaining a residual value in the case of royalty advances, amortisation Is charged as the advances are recouped

Where the carrying value of any individual set of nghts exceeds management's best estimate of future explostation revenues, a prowvision for
impainment 15 recorded in the income statement immediately

For self-produced content, distnbulion nghts exclude co-produchon costs bome by third parties These costs are deferred within current assels and
expensed upon recogniion of the associated praduction income Production income is recogmsed in accordance with the Group's revenue

recognition pohcles
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1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

{n} Other Intanglible assets
| Acquired intangibles

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business acquisition are capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisition The fair value of such intangible
assets 15 valued by reference {o external market values or income-based methods Income-based methods estimate the future economic benefits to
be derved from ownership of the asset by identifying, quantifying and separating cash flows attributable to the asset and capltallsing their present
value Purchased Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost After initlal recognitian, all ntangible fixed assets are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses

i Intemally-generated intangible assets development expenditure

An Internally-generated Intangible asset arising from the Group's development, including software and website development, Is recognised when the
asset is technically and commercially feasible, sufficient resources exist to complete the development and it is probable that the asset will generate
tuture economic benefils Any expenditure on research or development activities that does not meet the aforementioned criteria is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incured

i Amortisafion

Intangible assets with finile livas are amortised over their useful lives using the straight-line method Amortisation expense is recorded within total
operating ¢osts in the income statement The useful bves used for intangible assets are as follows

= Camer agreements Unexpired term of agreement
« Software (includmng intemally-generated software) 1-6 years
+  Other 3-8 years

Useful llves are reviewed every year and adjustments are made, where appilcable, on a prospactive basis

{0} Property, plant and equipment {"PPE"})

Owned PPE Is stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and any accumulated impalrment losses, other than those items that are classified as
heid for sale

Freehold land is not depreciated Depreciation Is charged on other PPE 50 as to write off the cost of assets fo their residual value, over thelr expected
useful lives, using the straight-ine method When an item of PPE comprises major components having different useful economic lives, the
components sre accounted for as separate items of PPE Daepreciation commences from the date when the asset is available for use

The vseful ives for depreciation purposes for the principal categones of assels are

+ Short leasehoid buildings Unexplired lease term
+  Plant and machinery Jto 8 years
+  Fixtures and fittings At0 10 years

Assets held under finances leases are treated as PPE and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or their useful economic life
The Group capltalises borrowing casts with reapect to amounts incurred during the construction of qualifying propesty, plant and equipment
(p) Impalrment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goadwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets (including distnbution rights) to detenmine
whether there Is any Indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If such indication exists, an impamment loss Is recognised In the
Income statement for the amount by which an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount Where an asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent of other assets, the Group eslimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount ts calculated as the higher of 2n asset's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell Value in use is based on estimated
future cash fiows discounted to thewr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

Iimpairment losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to those units,
and any balance to reduce the camying amount of other assets in the urut on a pro-rata basis An Impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change n the estmates used to determine the recoverable amount An impalment loss Is reversed only to the extent that an asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the canying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised
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1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

{q) Programmoe rights and other Inventorles

Programme rights in this context refers to programme rights acquired for the pnmary purpose of broadcasting through the reglonal channets
operations The carrying amount is stated at cost less accumulated amarhsation and provisian for impalrment The Group's estmate of the benefils
received from these rights is determined to be most appropriately aigned with a straight-line amortisation profile for the majority of the programme
inventory held The cost is recognised in the incoms statement on a straight-line basis over the panod of the licence, which Is usually three years

Programmes in the course of production represent the costs ncurred by the Group on the creation of new content, wiuch are ordmnarily recovered
through co-production agreements o7 through contracts for the provision of production services Some production costs are borne by the Group with a
view to exploiting the resulting content through heensing agreements these are presented within Distnbution nghts

Other inventories, comprising CDs, DVDs, raw matenals and work in progress, are stated at the lower of cost (datermined on a slandard or average
cost basis) and net realisable value '

{r} Financla! Instruments

Flnanclal assets and financia! liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Financia! assets and liabilities are mitially measured at fair value less any directly attrbutable transacton costs, except for those financial assets
classified as at farr value through profit or loss, which are nitially measured at falr vatue

Flnancial assets are derecognised from the balance sheet when the Group's contractual nghts to the cash flows explre or the Group trensfers
substantially all the nsks and rewards of the financlal asset Financial liablities are derecognised from the Group's balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires

+  Classificatron and Measurement
Financial assets and habilities are classiied into the following categories specdled by IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognitron and Meastrement

- Loans and recevables - trade recelvables, loans and other recevables with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an actve
market ThesSe are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impaument Interest income Is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivabies when the recognition of interest would be immatenal

« Avallable for sate financlal assels - are either shares stated at fair value that are traded in an active market or for which a fair value can
otherwise be reliably measured, or stated at cost where an equity instrument is not reliably measurable Gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income with the exception of Impalrment losses, Interest calculated using the effective
interest method and foreign exchange gams and josses on monetary assels, which are recogrised directly in the income statement

+ Held to maturity investments - the Group does not currently carry any financia! instruments classified as held to maturity Such instruments might
Include bilis of exchange and debentures with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunty dates and would be measured at amortised
cost using the effactive Interest method less any imparment

+ Financial assetsAlabilities at falr value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") - assets and liabllites which ‘are held for trading An asset or hability is
classified as held for trading i (i) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing In the near term, or (i) on initial
recognition if 1s & parl of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattem of short-
term profit-taking, or {iil} it is a derivativa that Is not designated and effective as a hedgmg Instrument Financial assets and llabilities at FYTPL
are stated at fair value, with any gains and losses ansing on remeasurement recognised in the income statement

+ Other financial llabllites - financia! liabilities, including trade payables and borrowings, which are not classified as financiat habilities at FVTPL
are measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method, with Interest expanse recognised on an effective yield basls

li  Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calcutating the amortised cost of a debt instrument or financial Rability and of aflocating mterest income
or expense over the relevant period The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash fiows over the expected life of
the instrument to the net carrying amount on initial recognition

ol impawrment of financral assets

Financial assets, other than those hetd al FVTPL, are assessed for mdicators of impaimment at each balance sheet date Financial assets are
impalred where there s objectlve evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initlal recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected

For certain categories of financlal assets, such as trade recelvables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired indwidually are, in addition,
assessed for impaiment on a collective basis Objective evidence of impairment of a portfolio of recervables could include the Group's past
experience of coflecting payments or an increase i the number of delayed payments

The carrying amount of a financial asset is reduced directly by any impairment lozs, for all financial assets except trade receivables where the
carrying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade receivable is considered uncollectble, it is written off against the
allowance account Subseguent recovenes of amounts previously wntten off are credited against the allowance account Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in the Consolidated income statement
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{r) Financlal Instruments (continuad)
iv  Denvative financial instrumenis

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial iInstruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange nsk, including fareign
exchange forward coniracts and interest rate swaps

Denvatives are initally recognised at far value at the date a derivative contract is entered into, and are subsequently remeasured 1o thelr f2lr value at
each subsequent balance sheel date Changes in fair value are recogrused immediately in the Consohdated income statement, except where a
derivative is designated in an effective hedging relationship, as described below

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a financial
labliity Denvatives are presenied as non-current assets or liabllites if the date of maturty of the instrument Is more than twelve months after the
bafance sheet date Other denvatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities

v  Embedded Denvatives

Derlvatives which are embedded In other financial ihstruments or other host contracts are treated as separste derivatives when their nsks and
charactenstics are not closely refated to those of the host contracts, and the host contracts are not camed at fair value Embedded derivatives arg
carried in the Consolidated balance sheet at farr value from inception of the host contract Unrealised changes in fair value are recognised as gains or
losses within the Consohdated income statement during the perlod in which they arise

vi  Hedge accounting

The Group designates certaln denvatives as cash flow hedges by documenting the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item
along with the risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions Where the hedge Is deemed to have been
effective the effective portion of any changes in the fair value of the derivatives that are designated in the hedge are recognised in other
comprehensive income Any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Consolidated income statement

Amounis previously recognised i other comprahensive Income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Consolidated income statement in
the periods in which the hedged items are recognised in the Consolidated income statement, in the same ine of the Consolidated income statement
as the recognised hedgad ltem However when the forecast transaction that is hedged resutts in the recogmition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial ligbility, the gains and losses previously accumuiated in equity are transterred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost
of the non-financial asset or non-financial llablhty

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group de-designates the hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, of when the relationship no longer qualifies for hedge accounting Any galn or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income upon discontinuation of hedge accounting 1s either recognised in the Consolidated Income statement at the same time as the forecast
transaction affects profit or loss, or is recognised In the Consolidated iIncome statement immedlately if the forecast transactlon Is no longer expected

to occur

(8} Provisions

A provision Is recognised m the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arlsing from past events and it 1s
probable that an autflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obfigation Provisions, other than those for deferred tax, thet are payable
over a number of years are discounted to net present value at the balance sheet date using a discount rate appropriate to the particular provision
concemed

{t) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease are such that the lessee assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised and depreciation is charged accordingly Such assets are initially recognised at thelr fair value or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease The comesponding llabllity to the lessor s recorded as a finance
lease obligation Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reductions of the lease obhgation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remalning balance of the liabiiity

Lease Income or expense ansing from operating leases is recorded in the Income statement on a straight-ine basss over the term of the lease, with
any assooiated lease incentives belng recorded on a straight-ine basis over the lease term as a reduction in the rental income or expense
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1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(u) Critical accounting estimates and key judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certan critical accounting assumptions, and requires management
to exercise its judgement and to make estmatas in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies The areas involving a fugher degree of
judgement or complexty, or areas where assumptions and estimales are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below

i Basis of consolidation

Judgement 18 required in determining whether certain entities [n which the Group has an economic interast should be considered to be subsidianes,
associates or joini ventures In such circumstances, the Group has assessed Its abilty to controt or influence those entities The Group controls an
invastee if, and only if, the Group has power over the investee (i & existing nghts that give it the current ability to direct the relevant acliwhies of the
investee), exposure, or rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the Investee, and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect s
retums, in these cases the investee 1s treated as a subsiiary Where such policies are reserved such that an econontic partner has the power {0 veto
key strategic financial and operating declslons, the entity 1s considered to be a joint venture or agsociated undertaking

it Carrying vaiue of goodwill

The determenation of whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated The value in use cakculaton requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to anse from the cash-generating unit and 8
suitable discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the nsks specific to the asset and the ime value of money, in order to cateutate
present value Further Information about assumptions used in determining the camying vaiue of goodwill can be found in note 12

i Revenue recognition

The tming of revenue recognition requires judgement, as does the amount to be recogmsed This may involve estimating the fair value of
consideration before it is recelved In malang these Judgements, the Group considers the detailed critena for the recognition of revenue set out in
{AS 18 Revenue and, in particular, whether the Group has transferred the significant risks and rewards of the goods or services to the customer

w  Distributron rights and programme nghts

The assessmeant of the appropnate profite over which to recognise the amortisation of distribution nghts and programme rights involves a certain
degree of jJudgement For distribution Aghts, amortisation is charged to the income staternent to maich the average revenue profile of the programme
genre over lis estmated average marketable Iife Programme rights are amortised over the licence period

v Fairvalue of financial instrumenis

Certain financial instruments are cartied on the balance sheet at fair value, with changes in fair value reflected in the income statament Fair values
are estmated by reference in part to published price quotations and in part by using valuation techniques Further information about fair value
measurements is provided in note 34

vl Accounting treatment and vaivation of NVCA as an associate

As descnbed in note 28, in October 2014 the Group scld a 48 9% interest in its former subsidiary NVCA to AMC Networks Inc ("AMCN") Despite the
BBC Worldwide residual 50 1% shareholding in NVCA, AMCN obtained control over the key decision-making actinties of NVCA NVCA was therefore
deconsoiidated from the date of disposal and since that date, due to the significant influgnce retained by the Group, NVCA has been equity-
accounted for as an associate The carrying value inltially ascribed to NVCA as an associate was based on the Board's assessment of the fair value
of NVCA at the date of disposal, taking info account the proceeds receved for the sale of the controlling nterest, the significant influence retained by
the Group, and the retained nght to variable retums from the'investment in NVCA The carrying value of NVCA as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2015, including the Group's share of equity eamings arising since NVCA's reclassification as an associate, is a key judgement area for the Board, to
ensure that there are no indlcators of impairment m the value of NVCA which might require a wnte-down of the Group's Invastment
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2 Segment information

Whilst not required by IFRS 8 Operating Segments (o present segmental information, such nformation has been provided below a5 it Is considered
meaningful to the users of the accounts

An oparating segment 15 a compoenent of the Group that engages In business actiwities from which  may earn revenues and incur expenses The results
of all operating segments are reviewed regularly by the BBC Worldwide Board (the "Board’) which has been dentifled as the Group's chief operating
decision maker in accordance with IFRS 8

Management has determimed the reportable segments based upon reparts reviewed by the Board All segments reported meet the quantitative
thresholds required by IFRS 8 The repornable segments are

«  United Kingdom

»  North Amenca

+  Australia and New Zealand
+  Wastermn Europe

»  Rest of World

Segment information as presented 1s consistent with the Group's intemal reporting to the Board

The Board assesses the performance of reportable segments based on Headiine sales and Headline profit, as defined in note 1 Inter-segment sales are
conducted on an arm s length basis Specific items and net financing cosls are not allocated to segments In prior years, non-trading foreign exchange
gains and losses were included within the segmental results, however, for the year ended 31 March 2016, these movements have not been allocated and
have instead been included in the eliminations column Prior year's resuits have not been restated as the effect of this was immateriai

Information regarding the assets and Labilities of repantable segments is not reported to the Board

Austraila shd

Ualind Kingdom Korth Amurica New Jaziend  Weslern Evvops Restof Werld Elminations Tol

018 £m Em Em L] () m Em
Headllne sales area 2779 791 168 0 1277 {12 6) 1,029 4
Shara df revenue of joint ventures (168 6) {08) (0 5) (4 1) - - (174 0)
Revenue 2107 2174 786 163.9 137.7 {12.6) 865 4
Headline profit 624 242 192 210 54 16 133.8

Specific tems (27 4}
Operating profit 106 4
Gams ort disposals 15
Other gains and losses (4 B)
Finance income 09

Finance expense (37}
Profit before tax 100 §

Aumtraiis shd

United Kingdom Norlh Amarica New Zagdend  Weslem Eurcpe Rest of Wortd Elminstions Total

2018 ) &m m () £ tm Em
Headlne salos 3618 2999 819 160 1 1182 {18 1) 1,0018

Share of revenue of joint ventures {148 9) (0.8) {0 8) - - - {150 5)
Ravenue 2129 2891 81.1 160.1 116.2 (18 1) 861.3
Headline profit 527 2s 163 270 52 45 138 6

Spedific items {22.3)
Operating profit 116.3
Gains on disposals 158

Other gains and lnsses {57}
Finance income 08

Finance expense (3 5)
Profit before tax 223.8

The allocation of revenue to geographic segments is based upon the business reglon in which the sales are generated
Inter-regional revenues are eimmnated upon consolidation and are reflected in the 'Eliminatons’ column above
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2 Segment mformation (continued)

Whiist, as noted above, tha Board now manages the group by region rather than by businsss classification, the additonal data set out below presents the
headline sales by business dassification, in order to provide an understanding of the size of each of the major business lines  Inter-segment sales are
conducted on an arm's lengih basis Specific items, non-trading gans and losses, and net financing costs are not allocated to segments

The business classiications reported below have been updated durng the current year o better refiect the Board's operational view of the business The
Board viaws the business basad on four business Line segments Branded services (Includes prior year's Channels business, as well as Ad sales and
BBC Store), Content sales (includes prior years Sales and distnbution), Production and formats, and Consumer products The previously reported Other
business lines have been reallccated across these four segments

Protction snd CoRsumer

Branded services Contanl salte Terrants producie ERminations Tata)
2018 [ (] Em £ m m
Hoadline salkes 3387 384 2 1730 1791 {42 8) 1,029.4 I
Share of revenue of joint ventures (164 7) (07) {4 1) (4 5) - (1@ |
Revenue 1740 3835 168 9 174 6 {42 8) 865 4
Headline profit/(loss) 4497 68.2 106 89 {16) 1338
Specific items (27 4)
Operating profit 108 4
Gains and losses on disposals 15
Other gamns and losses (4 8)
Financ¢e income [13:)
Finance expense @7
Profit before tax 100 6

Production and Conewpet

Brarsied srvicey Contant saiws formais products Bl ninatichs Tora
2018 Lm [ £m m ] m
Headline sales 3705 3244 163 8 197 6 (63 7) 1,001 8 :
Share of revenue of joint ventures {144 0) {07} - {5 B) - {150 5)
‘Revenue 226 8 3237 163 0 1918 537 861.3
Hoadiine profit BS54 627 15.8 34 13 1386
Specific tems (22 3)
Operating profit 1163
Gains and losses on disposals 11589
Other gains and losses &57)
Finance ncome - 08
Finance expense {3 5)
Profit before tax 2238

Inter-segment revenues are elrminated upon consolidation and are reflected in the ‘Ellminations’ column above

The Group's geographical reportable segments reflect management reporting fines and do not solely correspond to the country or region after wiuch they
are named The Group's revenue by country of destination was as follows

— TR e T~

[T11Y L Raysoue L nmeem Reveirss:

2018 e e 018 Eat) E-11 )

2] ) tn o tm n
United Kingdom 3891  (1686) 2005 3392 (1451) 18414
United States of Americe 2679 ©8) 2671 2785 (08 2777
Australia 691 ©5) 686 724 06 718
Rest of World 3233 (a1) 3182 3117 40 3077
1,004 (174.0) 8554 10018 (1508) 6813

The Group's non-currant assets other than financial instruments and deferred lax assets, located in the UK are £353 4m (2015 £304 4m) and located
outside of the UK are £201 1m (2015 E177 3m)

Further analysis of the Group’s revenues by product or service ine Is not provided as thls information ts not routinely reportad to the Board
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3 Total operating costs
Cperating costs from continung operations compnse the followng categones of expense
Ongoing
bidinslias and Ongohng

ot businesses BOC Amsrica Total

wil mn3 1018 2018

£m tm £m :n_
Cost of sales 5727 4990 290 5280
Distribution costs 708 789 48 835
Admunistration cosis 147 3 150 6 87 159 3
Total operating costs 790.8 728 6 423 7708

4.  Spaecific items

Shars of intersst and tax of joint ventures and assoclates

The Group views its investments as being a fundamental part of s ongoing operations IFRS requires that the Group reports its share of the results of
jount ventures and associates on an afler-tax, after-interest basis The Interest and tax charges bome by joint ventures and associates have been added
back within Headlne profit as & specific tem, in order to present an operating profit measure which more appropriately represents the way in which the

business is reviewed and assessed internally

Penslon deficit reduction payment

As descnbed in note 32, the Group accounts for contribubons to the BBC Pension Scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme During the year
the Group Incurred costs of £3 4m (2015 £8 1m}in retation to addilional tax-deductible cash payments to the BBC i cornection with the BEC's deficit
reduction plan As this payment 1s not reflective of the ongoing servica cost of active scheme participants, management believes It is appropriate to
present this cost as a specific item Further payments are expected to be made in future years as described in note 32

Other specific tems
Ongolng Ongroing
usinesnes end mminsdses and
[T ] (-]
b)) 2018
im =
Reorganisation casts {12.8) {2 6)
Amaounts written back/{off} interests in joint ventures and assoclates 06 {20)
Impawrment of other investments 095) -
Transaction fees (07 02
{13.4) 4.8)

Reorganisatlon costs in both years are tax-deductible and settled in cash, and include redundancy, business ext and other restuctunng costs ansing as a
resuft of changes (o the Group's organisation structure, and, m the year ended 31 March 2015, costs associated with the relocation of the Group's head

office

Amounts written back to joint ventures and assoclates in the year ended 31 March 2016 relate to a reversal of an impairment loss recognised in the prior
year Amounts written off interests in joint ventures and assoclates in the prior year were denved from a comparison of their respective book values with
discounted cash flow forecasts Such wiite-offs are non-cash and non-deductible for tax purposes
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5 Profit for the year
Profit for the year is stated after charging/{crediting)
Ongetng
businsases and Ongoirg
botal butinessse HRC Amarica Totsh
Fial ] 2048 08 Fiat
_tm T Em o
Rentais on operating leases and similar arrangements 89 137 04 141
Sub-lease rentals received on operating leases (0 6) {02) - 02)
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) 14 {0 5) - (0 5)
Government grants recelvable {01) (L)} - (V)]
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment {ncte 15) 80 78 02 BQ
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 15) - . 09 08
Amorbsation of intangible assels
Distribation rights (note 13) 1210 1130 - 1130
Intemnally generated software assets (nole 14) 56 34 - 34
Other Intangibte assets (note 14) 19 10 - 10
P! mme rights and other inventories
Cost recognised as an expense
- programmes in the cours2 of production 1080 830 0.5 835
- broadcast rights and other inventories 485 488 148 634
| Write-downs reoogglsed a5 an expense g1 38 08 44
Employee costs {note 7) 1329 1428 61 1489
Impairment loss recognised on trade recelvables (note 19) 28 10 01 11
Reversal of impairment losses recognised on trade receivables (note 18) (11) (28) - {2 8)

Amortisation of distribution nghts is recorded within cost of sales Amortisation of other infangibte assets, including internally generated software assets,
Is recorded within admenistration costs

6 Auditor's remuneration

Cugoing
buslipans and Ongoing
L] misanen ERC Ammerica Tolsd
F-ol ] 13 ms mis
1] £ m Em
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s
annual accounts 04 04 D1 05
Fees payable to the Company's suditors and their associates for other
services to the Group
____The audht of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 02 02 - 02
Total audit foos 06 08 01 07
Tax services 01 02 - 02
Other services 01 01 - 01
Total non-audit fees 02 03 . 03
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7. Employee numbers and costs
The average number of empioyeas dunng the year was as folows
Onolryy
Bonink4sss and Ongoing
total Busirrs ey BOC Armarica Tolnl
mt w18 013 0
Numbser Nyablbar et Nurmber
Unlted Kingdom 460 438 - 438
North America 360 360 86 448
Austraha and New Zealand 179 197 - 197
Waestern Europe 315 324 . 324
_Rest of World 450 424 - 424
Total number of employees 1,764 1,743 86 1,829

Within the averages above, 108 (2015 93) part-time employees have besn included at their full-time equivalent of 73 (2015 66), induding casual stafl

The aggregate remuneration recognised in the Consolidated income statement in respect of these employees, including casual staff, comprised

omgalng
businessas and
total businsesss BBC America Todal
e s gl 2018
[ £m E_- [ L]
Salanes and wages 1153 114 4 56 1200
Social secunty costs 110 104 03 107
Other panson costs 136 180 0.2 18 2
139 9 1428 81 1489
in addition to the above, redundancy costs totalling £5 2m (2015 £1 3m) were incurred In the year
The remuneration of the Direclors dunng the year was as follows
Ongolag
Dusines bt Al businasses &nd
totst wisl
204 018
£000 1
Emoluments 027 1,040
Long-term incentive schemes = 20
927 1,089
The number of Direclors to whom rebrement benefils have accrued throughout the year under the following schemes is as loliows
Ongeing Orgeing
DU ISt and ‘businesses and
L otal
w0ie s
Husnber of Mumber af
Otreciors Dirsctors
Defined beneflt schemes 3 1
1 1

Money purchase schemes

Further details of Directors' remuneration are provided in the Report on Directors’ remunaration on pages 20 to 24 Further informatbion regarding the
compensgtion earned by key management can be found in note 36

The Group contributed £14,000 (2015 £23,0600) to money purchase schemes for its Directors in the year
The remuneration of the highest paid Director during the year was £626,000 (2015 £603,000)
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8. Other gains and losses

Ongeing Ongaing
businstsse and businesses snd
Totsl fota)
018 s
m £m
Change m fair value of derivative financial instruments (34) (4 0}
Increase in earn-out payments due in respect of pror scgulsitions {12) {(13)
Reduction in earn-out proceeds recelvable on pnor disposals - (0 4
{4 6) 87
9. Netfinancing costs
Ongolng Ongoing
businessss and Buminengss prd
L btal
s Figl]
&m Em
Interest raceivable 08 08
Finance income 09 [X]
Interest payable on loan from parent undertaking 22 18
Interest payabie on derivative financial instruments 08 12
Other interest payable 06 05
37 3.5

Finance expense
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10, Taxation
Tax charge for the year
Onpoing
businasses and Ongoing
totad businesses BBC Amarica Tatad
e Fial] 2018 2016
Em £m £m Em
Current tax
UK corporation tax 47 - 57 57
Foreign tax 140 135 33 168
Adjustments in respect of prior years {3 5) (3 4) - (34)
162 101 80 191
Deaforred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 03 08 176 185
Reduction n rate of UK corporation tax b2 01 - 01
Adjustments In respect of prior years (0 8) 08 - 06
{0 3) 1.8 176 19 2
149 1.7 2686 383

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

The UK corparation tax charge is net of & credit of £0 9m (2015 £7 8m) in respect of High-end telewision tax relief
The tax charge for the year Includes tax deductions of £3 4m (2015 £2 2m)in respect of specific items (note 4)

In addibion to the amount charged to the Consolidated income statement, a tax credit of £2 5m (2015 charge of £2 3m) has been recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of financial nstruments treated as cash flow hedges

Raconciliation of tax expense

The total tax charge for the year is lower {2015 lower) than the standard rate of carporatlon tax in the UK of 20% (2015 21%) The tax charge can be
reconciied to the profit per the Consolidated income statement as follows

Ongoing
businesses mnd Gngoing
bstal busimsses BEC Amarica Tokal
o o8 018 2015
Em 1 £m &
Profit before tax 1005 96 5 127 3 2238
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 20% (2015 21%) 201 203 287 470
Effects of
Disallowed expenditure 10 17 156 32
Non-taxable income {03) - {11 3) (11 3)
High-end telewision tax rehef {0 9) (7 8) - (7 8)
Tax differentat on wholly-owned overseas earnings 54 63 97 160
Tax effect of share of results of jeint ventures and associates (63) 61 - €1)
Reduction in rate of UK corporation tax 02 01 - 01
Adjustments in respect of previous years 4 3) (28) - 28)
14.9 17 266 383

Tax charge for the year
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10 Taxation (continued)

The amount of tax paid in the year is different from the lax charge, due mainty to the timings of payments UK corporation tax 1s payable in four
instalments, two of whuch are made after the end of the year in which the tax anses, 1 e some of the tax included in the 2014/15 tax charge was paid
In 2015/16 The payments are based on the best estimate of the tax charge at the tme the payment 13 made The final tax lability is determined when
the tax return for the year 1s prepared and submiited to HMRC some time afier the year end In additon the tax charge n the accounts is a best
estimate at the tme the accounts are prepared The charge 1s then adjusted in later years to reflect the actual tax hability arising from the submitted

tax returns

Factorg affecting future tax expense
The UK corporation tax rate reduced from 21% to 20% on 1 Apnl 2015

On 26 October 2015 The Summer Finance Bill 2015, which reduces the main rate of corporation tax to 19% from April 2017 and 18% from Apnl 2020
were substaniwely enacted As these reductions to the rate were substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, the deferred tax assets have been
calculated at 18% in lina with when the company anticipates temporary differences to unwind

The Chancellor announced his Budget 2016 on 16th March 2016 including the publication of the Business Tax Road Map, which sets out a further
reduction In the main rate of corporation tax from 18% to 17% from 1 April 2020, and measures relating {o the OECD Base Erosion and Profit Shifting
Actions, These include limiting the utilisation of brought forward losses and interest deductions, to be effective from 1 Apni 2017 Whilst a full
analysis cannot be presently carned out until final legislation 1s published, it is expected that these measures will have Iimited impact on these current

year financial statements

Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax habilities and assats recognised by the Group, and the movement thereon, dunng the current and prior year
Fixed sasst
temporary Financial
J¥s b Aasachates Progremwos rights diffy & i [ Other Total
Em £m £m £m tm ﬂ £
At1 April 2014 13 57 38 41 {1.9) {0 1) 13
(Charged)/credited to the income statement (28 1) (08) 03) 15 08 77 (18 2)
Credited to other comprehensive income - - . - 23 - 23
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses - 04 - 11 - {0 8) 06
At 31 March 2015 (26 8) {8 1) a3 87 12 67 (15 0)
Credited/{charged) to the income statement 131 - (0 6) (3 4) 01 (89) 03
Credited to other comprehensive income - - - B 25 - 26
Foreign exchange transation galns and losses (2 0) {0 2) 01) 03 - 10 {10)
At 31 March 2016 {16 7) {6 3) 26 36 38 {1.2) {13 2}
Defemred tax s recorded in the balance sheet as foliows
2018 2018
£m Em
Deferred tax assets 65 42
Deferred tax Mabllities 19 7) {19 2)
Net deferrod tax llabllity 13.2) {16 0)

Deferred tax assets In respect of tax losses carned forward are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets arlsing on capital losses totalling £145 2m (2015 £170 Om) These
assets have not been recognised on the basis that there is Insufficient certainty that capital gains will anse against which the Group can utilise these
losses There ts no time lirnit for the utiisation of those losses

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistnibuted eamings of subsidiaries for which deferred
tax habilites have not been recognised was £0 2m (2015 £0 2m) No liabllity has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group
1 11 a posihion to control the iming of the reversal of the temporary differences and those differences are not expected lo reverse in the foreseeable

future

Temporary differences ansing in connection with the Group's interests in the undistributed retained earnings of associates and joint ventures are not
considered to be matenal in either year
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11. Dividends

2018 208
&m £m
Amounts rocognised as distributions to squity holders In the period
Interm dividends for the current year of £421 92 per share (2015 £445 36 per share) 105 5§ 1113
1055 1113
12. Goodwill
20148 s
£m om
Cost and net book value
At begnming of the year 334 341
Additions 04 -
Forelgn exchange transiation gansi{iosses) 04 (07)
Carrying amount 342 334
Goodwill allocated by cash generating unit ("CGU"), is analysed as follows
1 2014 wis
Em £Em
Consumer distnbution 254 254
Austraban Channels 84 80
South Afncan Production 04 -
342 334

The Group tests goodwll for Impairment In the accounting perniod in which a business combination takes place, and thereafter annually, or more

frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impalred

The recoverable amounts of the CGU's are determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions used for these celculations are those
regarding discount rates and growth rates Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the

time value of money and the nsks specific to each CGU
No goodwill impaimment has been recognised to date

Consumer distribution business

The goodwall in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of 2 entertain on 8 August 2009 The cash flow projections used in determining value in
use are based on the current busmess plan approved by management, which covers a five year penod after which cash flows have been extrapolated

using an expected long term growth rate of -6% (2015 -6%)
A discount rate of 14 9% (2015 11 7%) has been applied to the cash flows

Management is of the view that any reasonably possible change in key assumptions wowd not cause the carrying amount to exceed s recoverable

amount

Ausirallan Channels business

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of UK TV on 1 July 2008 Cash flow projections used in the recoverable amount
calculation are based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years (2015 five years) and a discount rate of 16 0%
{2015 11 9%) Cash flows beyond the forecast penod have been extrapolated using an expected growth rate of 1 0% (2015 1 0%)

The main assumption on which the forecast cash flows are based is license fee rates In forming its assumptions about license fee rates, the Group
has used a combination of long term trends and recently contracted terms

Management beheves that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the value in use of UK TV is based would not resutt in
any impairment

South African Production business

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of Rapid Blue (Pty) Lid on 28 March 2016 (note 27) As the acquisition took place so
close to year end, no Impairment review has been congducted
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13. Distribution rights

2016 2018
£m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 6220 47486
Additions 128 5 1459
Foreign exchange translation gains 05 17
Fully amorhised rights written off {2 8) (0 2)
At 31 March 748 2 6220
Amortisation
At 1 Aprit 4192 3045
Charge for the year 1290 1130
Foreign exchange translation losses 05 19
Fully amortised rights wniten off {2 8) 02)
At 31 March 5379 419.2
Net book value 2103 2028

Included within distnbution rights is self-funded content In the course of production totalling £0 3m (2015 £5 3m)

49




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2016
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
14 Other intangible assets
Carther

Agmemants Sofware Citver Totsl
2018 Lo Em t_m £m_
Cost
At 1 Apnil 85 44 1 07 533
Addibons - 145 - 145
Acquired through business combinations - - 05 05
Disposals - (17 4) - {17 4)
Foreign exchange translabon gains 03 - 01 04
At 31 March 88 412 13 513
Amortlsation
Al 1 Apnt 35 214 05 254
Charge for the year 0.5 70 . 75
Disposals - (17 4) - (17 4)
Forelgn exchange translation losses 0.2 - 01 03
At 31 March 4.2 10 06 158
Net book vaiue 4.6 30.2 T 07 56

Curtiey

Agrestanis Softwars Other Totn)
2015 £m Ren (] £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 82 461 07 560
Additions - 117 . 17
Disposals - {137) - (137}
Foreign exchange translation losses @7 - - )
At 31 March 86 441 07 6533
Amortisation
At 1 April 31 313 08 350
Charge for the year 08 38 - 44
Disposais - {137) - {(137)
Foreign exchange translation gains (0 2) - (0 1) {0 3)
At 31 March 3.6 21.4 0.5 254
Net book value 5.0 22.7 02 27.9

Other assets compnse of customer refationships and non-compete agreements

Of total software additions recognised during the year, £12 5m {2015 £10 6m) related to mternally developed software
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15 Property, plant and equipment

Freshold  Short leasshold Ptanl snd Flzfures Aagais under
D y and Rilings construciton Toul
2018 fm Em Em £m Im Em_
Cost
At 1 Apri 02 245 370 125 - 742
Additions - 06 33 28 - 65
Acquired through business combmations . - 01 01 - 02
Disposals . (9 5) (150} 49 - (29 4)
Foreign exchange transtation gains - 03 04 03 - 10
At 31 March 02 159 258 106 - 528
Depraciation
At 1 Apnl - 124 229 103 - 458
Depreciation charge for the year - 10 37 i3 - 60
Disposals - {8 5) (150) (49) - (20 4)
Foreggn exchange translation losses - 03 02 01 - 06
At 31 March - 4.2 118 68 - 228
Net book value 02 17 140 38 - 287
Freshold  Bhort leasehold Plant and Fixturen Aasets under
bulidin g: Tousl
Rl tm —t Im —Em L] Im
Cost
At 1 April a2 127 304 115 14 56 2
Addibons - 122 68 13 203
Disposal of subsidiartes . (0.2) - - - 02)
Other disposals - (0 4) (20) (04) - (2 8)
Transfers . - 14 - {14) .
Foreign exchange translation gains - 02 04 01 - o7
At 31 March 02 2458 7o 126 - 74.2
Depraclation
At 1 Apnl - 90 209 94 - 393
Dapreciation charge for the year . 30 as 12 - 80
Impairment charge for the year - [13:] - - - 0.9
Disposal of subsidiaries - (@ 1) - - - 01
Other disposals . (04) (20) {0 4) - (2 8)
Foreign exchange translation losses - - 02 01 - 03
At 31 March - 124 229 10.3 . 4658
Net book valuo 02 121 141 22 . 2886

Al 31 March 2016, the Group had contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment totalling £nil (2015 £1 3m)
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16. Interests in joint ventures and associates

A list of the Group's significant interests in joint ventures and associates, including the name, country of incorporation and proportion of ownership

Interest 1s given 1n note g to the Company financial statements

The movements in joint ventures and associates during the year were as follows

Joint ventures Azyociates Tots Joint venturss Associsies Total
2018 Faall 2018 2018 mis 2018
Em —&m Em £Em Im En
At 1 April 06 1612 1518 07 121 128
Additsions (1] 23 29 06 1229 1235
Disposals - (30) (30} - - -
Loan converted to equity - 18 18 - 08 08
Share of results 308 10 418 276 82 358
Adjustment to prowvision for unrealised profits Q¢ 3} {03) (0 6) 11 (05) 06
Dwidends receivable {19 6) {70} (26 6) (29 6} (24) {32 0)
Foreign exchange transiation gams - 31 31 02 121 123
Amounts written back/({off) - 06 06 - {2 0) {20)
At 31 March 121 159.7 171.8 0.6 151 2 151 8
Jotnt ventures and associates are recorded in the balance sheet as follows
Joint veniures Associstes Terdal Joknt venlures Aaxcciates Tatsl
Wi 28 e ms Fi0 ) 2
fm i Em In - tm,
Interests in joint ventures and associates 121 1507 1718 06 148 2 148 8
Non-current assets held for sale (note 21) - - - - 3o 3o
121 1597 1718 06 151 2 151 8

Additions and the loan conversion relate to Investments m independent production companies

Interests in joint ventures
Interests In Joint ventures m the current and previous years included the following material operation

UKTV

BBC Worldwide has a major partnership deal with Scripps Networks Interactive {*Scripps”) for the production, marketing and supply on a wholesale
basis of free-to-air and subscripticn channels in the UK The partnership operates through the joint venture company UKTV Media Holdings Limited

("UKTV)

UKTV was the only materia! joint venture undertaking held by the Group in both the current and the prior year,
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16. Interests n joint ventures and associates (continued)

The {ollowing represents the Group's aggregate share of joint ventures during the year

UKTY Olhet SV Toted uxTY Other JVs. Totsl
2018 Fial e F o0t ) W1 ool
£ &m £m &m lz tn_
Aggregation of 400% of each joint venture
Non-current assets 88 01 69 58 03 59
Current assets 2200 54 2254 186 6 47 191.2
Current liabilthes (137 9) (73) {145 2) (127 8) 49) (1327}
Non-current liabilitles (54 1) - (54 1) {53 5) (11) (54.6)
Net asscots 348 {18) 33.0 108 {10) j-1
Group's share of net assets of joint ventures 173 01 174 63 0.3 56
Provision for unrealised profit (53) - (5 3) {50} - (5 0)
Interosts In Joint ventures at 31 March 1240 01 121 03 0.3 08
Revenue 3294 171 346 5 2880 120 3000
Expense (248 4) (17 6) (266 0) (216 4) (11 1) (227 5)
Interest payable 38) - (3 8) (37)- - (37
Taxation (15 8) (0 1) {15 9) (14 1) (0 1) {14 2}
Profit from joint ventures 614 {0 6) 60.8 53.8 08 546
Profit from joint ventures attributable to other parties (307) 07 (300) {26 9) (0 4) 27 3)
Other adjustments - - - . 03 03
Group's share of profit from Joint ventures 307 01 08 269 07 276

Included within the UKTV balance sheet are cash and cash equivalents of £21 9m (2015 £13 5m), financial habilities of £130 8m (20156 £125 2m)
and non-current financial liabilitles of £54 1m (2045 £53 5m) Included within UKTV's expense for the year 1s a depreciation charge of £2 3m (2015

£2 1m) and an amortisation charge of £118 3m (2015 £106 8m}
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16. Interests in jolnt ventures and assoclates (continued)

Interests in assoclates

Interasis in assoctates in the current and previous years included the following material operatton

Now Video Channel America, LLC ("NVCA")

As set out:n Note 28, on 23 October 2014 the Group sold a 45 9% stake In NVCA formerly a wholly-owned subsidlary of BBC Worldwide Americas

Inc , and retained an investment of 50 1% in NVCA Whilst the Group retains significant influence over NVCA, and has the right to variable returns, it
no longer has control, and hence the Group has deconsolidated NVCA from the date of the sale and accounts for its retained Interast since that date

as an associate

The following represents the Group's share of associates held during the year

HVCA Oiber Tots) NVCA Olher Totml
ELat] 018 2016 2018 2018 2018
Em £m 2] tm im £m
Aggregation of 100% of each associate
Non-current assets 1359 44 140 3 1332 61 1393
Current assets 692 405 1007 636 341 ar7
Current Labilties (25 5) (25 8) (513) (26 9) {17 9) {44 8)
Non-current llabilities (6 0) {8 4) (14 4) (7 3} (8 1) {15 4)
Net assels 173 6 10.7 184 3 162.6 14 2 176.8
Group's share of net assets 87.0 3.5 90.56 8.8 40 855
Goodwill on acquisition 602 129 731 587 105 692
Provision for unrealised profit 37) {0 2) (38) (3 5) - (3 5)
Interests In associates at 31 March 14356 1862 1597 136 7 14.5 1512
Revenue 11386 432 156 8 428 399 827
Result for the year 180 17 197 150 42 192
Group's share of results of asscclates 100 1.0 11.0 7.5 or 8.2

The Group has board representation and participates in policy-making decisions affecting Educational Pubtishers LLP and Woodlands Books Limited
The Group has concludad that it exarts significant influence over these businesses despite holding less than 20% of the voling power Accordingly,
the Group has classified its interests In these entities as associates
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17. Investments

1Y W
t: Em
Availablo-for-gale Investments
Unguoted egquities 75 44
Loans receivable carried at amortised cost
Loans to joint ventures and associates {note 35) 60 05
Loans to other entities 30 82
80 a.7
Total investments 185 131
18. Programme rights and other Inventories
018 2018
Erm :L.
Programme rights for broadcast 347 314
Programmes in the course of production 60 178
Raw matenals and consumables 18 17
Format rights 01 -
Work In progress 03 14
Finished goods and goods for resale 100 150
529 673
19. Trade and other recelvables
%1 L
Em £m
Currant
Trade receivables 2005 1724
Prepayments 133 133
Royalty advances 70 03
Accrued income 718 656
Amounts owad by joint ventures and asscclates (note 35) 245 432
Other recelvables 76 353
247 340 1
Non-current
Trade recelvables® 56 5 271
[ 1] 271
3B12 367 2

* In 2015, this balance was classified within curent assets

The net carrying amounts of trade and other recelvables approximates to their far velue
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19 Trade and other recelvables (continued)

Included in the Group's trade and other receivables at 31 March 2016 are balances of £28 0m (2015 £21 7m) which are past due at the reporting date
but are not impaired because the Group expects to recover these balances tn full, and has histoncal analysis to support the recovery profile The aged

anatysis of these balances Is as follows

2018 s

2] En
Up to 3 months 226 167
3to 6 months 31 29
Over € months 23 21
28.0 217

In determining the recoverabiity of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change n the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit
was Initially granted up {o the reporting date Trade receivables are provided against based on estimated irrecoverable amounts, determined by
reference lo past defaull expenence of the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty's financial situation (see note 34)

Amounts charged to the impairment provision are wiitten off when there is no expectation of recovery Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to the Income Statement The imparment provision stands a1 £1 6m at 31 March 2016 (2015 £1 2m)

The movement In the gliowance for doubtful debts is set out below

018 2018
gn £m
Balance at the beginning of the year 12 36
Impairment losses racognised 26 11
Amounts written off (a1 on
tmpalmment losses reversed {11) {2 8)
1.8 12
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20. Trade and other payables
0 18
£m L
Current
Trade payables 406 44 1
Rights credrtors 150 0 1060
Accruals 508 60 2
Deferred income 507 580
Amounts owed to uttimate parent undertaking 503 476
Amounts owed to fellow subsidary undertakings 167 160
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates (note 35} 42 34
Other payables including other tax and social secunty 363 69 9
3996 4052
Non-current
Trade and other payables 23 08
23 0.8
401 9 406 0

Rights creditors compnse royalty payments owing fo producers of and contributors to telewision programmes, DVDs and other media Other payables

include £4 Om relating to contingent considerations (2015 £1 8m) (see note 34)

The ¢camylng amounts of frade and other payables approximate to their fair valug

21. Assets held for sale

As at 31 March 2015, following the Board's approval for disposal of the Temple Street assoclate, the investment was reclassified as an asset held for
sale at its carrying value of £3 Om The investment was sold duning the year ending 31 March 2016 (see note 28)
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22. Provisions

[
Proparty retated contracts Other Total
tﬂ £m £m tﬂ.
At 1 Apni 43 20 09 72
Additional provision in the year 03 - 13 16
Utiisation of provision 21) (16) {08) (45)
Released to the Consolidated income statement 20) (0 3) - {2 3)
At 31 March 2016 [X] 01 14 20

Property-related prowisions include onerous leases in respect of properties heid under non-cancellable leases, when the axpected beneiits to be
derived by the Group from subletting those properties are lower than the unavoidable costs payable over the remaining term of the respective leases,
together with provisions for dilapidations in respect of leasehold properties

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits 1o be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract

Other provisions pnmanly comprise rastructuring provisions

Provisions are analysed between current and non-cument as follows

0 THE
Im —im,
Current 19 53
Non-current 01 19
20 72
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23. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The Group's principal sources of funding and the cumencles in which funding 1s dencminaled are summansed as follows

Serling Inglan Rupes Tote Stwiding tndian Rupes Towl
014 L] 2018 205 20158 s
2. L I £m i tm
Unsecured borrowings at amortised cost
Loans from related parties 1676 - 167 6 13656 - 1356
Bank loans - 03 03 - 03 03
1676 03 1879 1366 03 1358

Total borrowings

Amount due for settiement wittun 12 months 167 6 03 167 9 - 03 03
Amount due for sattiement after more than 12 months - - - 1355 - 1355
16786 03 167 9 138.8 03 1368

The Group's principal source of funding Is a multi-curvency loan fadility of £202 2m (2015 £202 2m) with BBC Commercral Holdings Limited (BBCCH),
its intermediate parent undertaking, of which £30 Om (2015 £30 0m) s available only on condition that an eguivalent cash balance is maintained As
at 31 March 2018, the facility expliry date was 30 Septernber 2018, however, this has since then been extended until 30 September 2017 Tha facility

altracts interest based on BCCH's bomrowing cost plus a margin of 1 0%

The Group also has a loan facility in tndia of INR 220m (E2 3m} (2015 INR 120m (£9 3m)}, which includes a working capital facility of INR 120m
(£13m) (2015 £1 3m) and an overdraft lImit within this facility of INR 140m (£1 5m) (2015 INR 40m (£0 4m)) The loan facility has no expiration date
but can ba called upon for repaymant at any time and tharefore has been classed as curent The balance attracts interest of base rate plus a margin

In addition, the Group has a multi-currancy collective net overdrafi facility with a hmit of £2m and a base currency of GBP This attracts interest of 1%
above base rate if drawn down in GBP, and interest of the bank's currency overdraft rate plus a 1% margm if drawn down in other currencies As at
31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, the facility was unutilised

There are no charges over cash at bank or other financial assets in respect of borrowings or other liabilibes (2015 none)
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24. Derivative financlal instruments

MNonm-current Curremt (=1 Noncurrent
1) sansts abiltiey Sabiliies Total
08 ﬂ £m m £m m
Derivatives that are designsted as cash flow hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts 01 07 (119) (50} (161
Interast rate swaps - - {01) - 1)
01 07 (12 0) {5.0) {18 2)
Darivativea that are not in a formal hedge relationship
Forward foreign currency contracts - 01 {18) {08) (23)
Foregn currency swaps - 01 - - 01
Embedded denvatives - - ©04) {22) (2 6}
- 02 (20) (30) (4 8)
01 [X] (14.0) {80) (21.0)
Non-cusren Curment Cumart Mon-curmnt
[TITTH (100 Inbitilias intitles Total
LMS (4] Em Em tE tm_

Derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts 27 75 8 6) (47} (31}

Interest rate swaps - - - (0 8} (€ 8)
27 76 (8.5) 53 (3.7

Derivativas that are not In a format hedge relationship

Forward foreign currency contracts 01 08 {(11) (0 8) {10)

Embedded derivatives 01 - (0 5) - (0 4)
0.2 09 (186) (09} {1.4)
29 84 {10 2) (6 2) {6 1)

Falr value movements on derivative financial instruments that are not In a formal hedge retatonship are recorded in the Consolidated income
staternent within other gains and losses

The total notional principal amount of the cutstanding forward foreign exchangs contracts at 31 March 2016 was £328 9m (2015 £356 6m) The
hedged forecast transactions denominated in foreign cumency are expected to occur at varkous dates in the fulure

The Group applies cash flow hedge accounting for trades taken out in respecl of Its forecast foreign currency transactions Hedge accounting is only
applied where appropnate designation and documentation, and trades with parties external to the Group, exist Net losses (befora tax) recognised In

the hedging reserve on forward foreign exchange contracts in cash flow hedge relatonships at 21 March 2016 were £12 5m (2015 losses of £10 8m)
Future relavant amounts will be recogmised in the income slatement in the pericd when the hedged forecast transaction affects the income statement

at various dates over the next 48 months

The notiona! principal amounts of the outstanding interast rate swap contracts at 31 March 2018 were £60 Om (2015 £60 Om) All cutstanding interest
rate swaps mature by July 2018

The Group has reviewed contracts for embedded derivatives that are required to he separsted from thesr host contracts Embedded derivatives are
recognised at their fair value with subsequent changes to fair value recorded In the Income statement
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25 Called up share capital

018 2018
Em £m
Authorised
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 10 10
issued, alloted, called up and fully paid
250,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 02 02

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no rnight to fixed income

26. Reserves

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve is used to record the effective partion of cumulative nat changes in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments, related to
hedged transactions that have not yet occumred (net of tax) During the current year, losses of £0 7m were removed from the hedging reserve and
debited to revenue in the income statement (2015 gains of £6 2m)

Translation reserve

The trans!ation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differancas arising since the transition to IFRS, from (he translation of the flnancial statements
of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of liabifitres that hedge the Group's net investment in foreign subsidiaries Since 1 April 2008,

£3 5m of exchange losses on foraign currency borrowings have been offset In reserves against exchange gains on the related invesiment in overseas
subsidiaries (2015 £4 7Tm)

Other reserves

Other reserves includes revaluatlon of available-for-sale financial assets of £2 8m (2015 £nil) and to the farr value of the put option liabilites arising
on acquisition of new subsidiaries (note 27)

Retained earnings

Al 31 March 20186, the cumulative goodwill written off to reserves on acquistrons prior to 1 Apri? 1988 amounted to £14 2m This amount I1s unchanged
from the pnor year, and remained in equity upon transifion to IFRS as permitted by IFRS 1

27. Acquisitions

Rapid Blue

On 28 March 2016 the Group acquired 70% of the shares of Rapid Blue (Pty) Ltd {'Rapid Blue'), a production company based in South Afnca, for 8
total consideration of £0 9 (net of cash acqurad) The operations of Rapid Blue have been integrated in the CEMA business line, reported in the
Rest of the World reporting segment The acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with IFRS 3,
Businass Combinations The full acquisition note has not been prasented as the acguisiton Is not considered to be matenal

As part of the acquisitlon, the Group holds a call option for the remaining 30% of the shares, and the non-controlling interest party holds a put option
The fair value of the expacted consideration far the remaining shares has been recogrused as a financial liabllity of £1 6m, through Other reserves
Until options are exercised or expire, the changes in the fair value of the expected consideration will be recognised in the Consolidated income
statement
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28. Disposals

The following summanses the disposals of the Group for both the curreni and the pnor year
Temple Street

On 25 April 2015, the Group disposed of its interest In Temple Street Productions for cash consideration of £4 5m, resulting in a gain on disposal of
£1 5m Net assets at the date of disposal were £3 Om

BBC AMERICA

On 23 October 2014, BBC Worldwide sold a 49 9% stake In NVCA, formerly a whoily-owned subsidiary of BBC Worldwide Americas Inc, to AMC
Networks Inc ("AMCN") in retum for proceeds of $200m {£123 0m), with BECW retammg an mvestment of 50 1% In NVCA The $200m proceeds
comprised $180m in cash and $40m deferred consideration in the form of a slx-maonth promissory note, due by 23rd April 2015, settled during the year
ended 31 March 2016

The disposal was a strategic move to take advantage of the greater negohating power and sector knowledge of the larger US networks While the
Group relaned a 50 1% shareholding in NVCA, AMCN gained control over the key decision-making activities Therefore, whilst the Group retained
significant influence over NVCA, and has the right to variable retums, It no longer had control, and hence the Group deconsolidated NVCA from the
date of the sale and started to account for its retained interest as an associate

The net assets of NVCA at the date of disposal were

23 October 2014
[ 1]
Preperty, plant and equipment 01
Programme rights and other inventories 54 B
Trade and other receivables 220
Trade and cther payables (15 7)
Cash and cash equvalents 01
813
Net gain on disposal
m
Consideration for disposal 1230
Fair value of associate recognised 1198
Net sssets disposed of (81 3)
Fair value of retained habdllles, and ransaction costs, in respect of business dlsposal (59 8)
Cumulative currency translation losses &1
Neot gain 1159
Satisfied by*
Cash and cash equivalents 98 4
Defarred conslderation 24 8
. 1230
Net cash Inflow arising on disposal
Consideration received in cash 98 4
Less Cash and cash equivaients disposed of (o1
Less Settlement of retained liabdlities and transaction costs in respect of business disposal (33 B)
64 5
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29, Notes to the cash flow statement

f. 31} S
£m Em
Operating profit 108 4 118.3
Adustments for
Share of results of joint ventures and associates (including movements In provisions for unrealised profits) (412) (36 4)
Depreciation and imparment of property, plant and equipment 60 80
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 1285 117 4
Impairment of investmeants (0 1) 21
Impairment |oss recogrised on trade and other raceivables 26 11
Reversal of impament lossas recognised on trade and other recelvables (11) (28)
Net foreign exchange losses/{gains) 14 (C5)
Decrease in provisions (52) -
Cash flows before movements In working capltal 1973 2082
Increase n frade and other racelvables (43 1) (336)
Decreasel{Increase) In programme nghts and other inventories 162 (18 5)
{Decrease)/Increase 1n trade and other payables {84) 62 4
1610 2178

Cash genarated from operations
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30. Commitments and contingent liabilities

finll 2018
£m Em
Capiltal commitments
Olstnbution nghts 985 960
Property, plant and equipment - 13
intanglble assets 31 63
1016 1038
Othoer financial commitments
Programme nights for broadcast . 15
Other commitments 28 1 292
281 30.7
1298 134 3

Total unrecognised commitments

In addition to the abeve, the Group's share of commitments for programme acquisiions and other commitments in respect of ds UKTV joint venture
armount ta £76 7m and £109 6m, respectively (2015 £10 4m and £59 6m, respectively)

The Group has a number of contingent liabiities ansing from libgation and from the rights of its customers and supphiers to undertake routine audits
These anse from trading activities undertaken in the ordinary course of business BBC Worldwide makes speclfic provision for the best estimate of
any amounts which might be awarded as a result of these Provision s only made to the extent that the Directors consider it probable that there will be

an outflow of economic beneflts and the amount can be reliably estimated

The Group has given guarantees in relation to the BBC Commercial Holdings Limited revolving credit facility agreement (see note 23) At 31 March
2016, tota! amounts drawn down under this facilily were £45 Om (2015 £35 Om) In addibon the Group has given guarantees In refation to a US
private placement in the name of BBC Commercial Holdings Limited which at year end was £177 9m (2015 £175 2m} At 31 March 2016, the total
amount of this debt was £222 8m (2015 £210 2m)

The Group occasionally enters into contracts with other equity shareholders of its joint ventures and associates to purchase additional equity In some
cases these contracts place an obligation on the Group to acquire further shares at the option of the counterpany to the contract The Group has not
recorded a liabllity in respect of most of these contracts as the amounts payable in the event of exercise are based on a proxy for the market value of
those shares Amounts payable under such contracts are not expected to be material to the Group as a whole

31. Operating lease arrangements

At the batance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which falt due as follows

e 015
Em £Em
Within one year 81 90
In the second to fifth years inclusive 277 aco
After five years B84 3 88 5
1201 127 6

The majority of operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its properties The rent payable under leases is subject
to renegotiabon at the vanous intervals specified in the leases Pnor year's numbers have been adjusted for the effect of Inflation
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32 Retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of its own defined contribution pension schemes The assets of those schemes are held separately from those of the
Group In independently admmistered funds Pension costs, representing contnbutions payable by the Group dunng the year, were £5 7m (2015

£50m)

Many BBC Worldwide employees are members of the BBC Group's pensiun schemes These comprise the BBC Pension Scheme (a defined benefit
scheme which Is now closed to new membaers), a small unfunded plan (the unfunded scheme, which is closed to new members) and defined
contnbution schemes (LifePian and the Group Personal Pension Scheme)

The BBC Pension Scheme provides benefits on a defined benefit basls funded from assets held In separale trustee-administered funds and was the
main pension plan of the Group There are four sections to the BBC Pension Scheme Old Benefits and New Benefits, which both provide benefils
based on fina! salary (subject to differing inflation caps), Career Average Benefits 2006 {CAB 2006) and Career Average Benefits 2011 (CAB 2011)
Although It covers the majority of current employess, It Is now closed to new entrants

BBC Worldwide, following the provisions within |IAS 19 Empioyee Benefits for accounting in respect of Group schemes accounts for its participation
in the scheme as if it were a defined contnbution scheme  This 1 because there is no contractual agresment or stated policy for charging the net
defined benefit cost to scheme particpants The pension cost for this scheme therefore represents contributions payable by the Group to the scheme
and the costs amounted to £7 9 million in the year (2015 £13 2millon) No contnbutons were prepasd or accrued at 31 March 2016 (2015 £nll)

The followang llabilities in respect of reirement benefits have been recorded In the financial statements of the BBC

0 018

£m trL
BBC Pensioon Scheme 1,003 4 9407
Unfunded Scheme 73 75
Total 1,0107 948 2

The actuanal valuation for the BBC Pengion Scheme was updated for IAS 18 purposaes to 31 March 2016 by Willis Towars Watson consulting
actuanes Additional disclosure about the scheme and its financial posibon under IAS 1818 presented below

Scheme financlal position

e 2018
m tm,

Scheme assets™ 12,8214 12,766 3

_§_cherne liabiibes (13,824 8) (13,707 0)
Deficit ) (1,003 4) (940 7}

= excluding funds relating to additional voluntary contnbutions (AVCs)
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32. Retirement benefits (continued)

Changes In the present value of plan liabllitles

The table below illustrates the movement on the plan habuities dunng the year The most significant vanables which aftect this are the additional year
of pension benefits eamed, interest charged on existing liabllities, any gains or losses relating to participants leaving the pension scheme, changes in

2018 s

Em £m
At 1 Apn! 13,7070 121827
Current service cost 185 4 1810
Past service cost {30 9) 11
Administration costs 77 84
Interest on penston plan liabilies 4593 5331
Experience (gains)iosses arising on plan habilihes (179 1} (317 4)
Changes In assumptions underlying plan liabilities 1253 1,489 4
Contributions by plan participants 09 08
Benefits paid and expenses (417 9) (392 1)
Liabilihes extinguished on settloments {32 8) -
At 31 March 13,6248 13,707 0

Changes In the fair value of plan assets

The table below illustrates the movement on the plan assets during the year The most significant variables which affect this are the additional year of

contnbutions made, changes i the value of the penslon plan assets (including the investment retum) and benefits pald during the yaar

Employee contributions to the scheme are paid via a salary sacrifice arrangement and have therefore been treated as employer contributions

ol 2018

£m £m_
At 1 April 12,766 3 10,684 2
Expected rats of return on plan assets 4294 473 6
Actuanal gains/{losses) on plan assets (146 5) 16725
Contributions by empioyer 2198 3274
Contnbutions by plan participants 09 08
Benefits pald (417 9) (332 2)
Assats distributed on settlements {30 6) -
At 31 March 12,8214 12,7663
Plan Assots

The ailocation of assets by the Trustees is govemed by a need to manage risk against the desire for high retumns and any llquidity needs A high
percentage of assats are held In equives which the Trustees expect will produce higher returns in the long term For more information, including target

asset aliocations, on the Scheme see hitp./iwww bbe co uk/mypension

016 01 2018 08

Tm of asset Cm Ly Em *
Equities - quoted 1,279 2 100 14918 1.7
Equites - unquoted 49 01 68 01
Pooled vehicles - quoted 1,2229 85 1,2288 95
Pooled vehicles - unquoted 767 0 60 B40 8 68
Repurchase agreements (1,718 1) (13 4) (763 2) (8 0}
Derivatives (33 5) {03) (54 8) (]
Fixed interest bonds - public sector 6170 48 5589 44
Fixed interest bonds - other 1,076 7 84 10559 83
Index-inked bonds - public sector 40390 kR 43775 343
Property — UK 8565 1 87 7431 58
Properly - overseas 397 31 4308 34
Alternatives’ 3,055 1 238 24940 195
Cash and other cument assets 364 4 28 356 2 28
At 31 March 12,8214 1000 12,7663 1000
Actual return on psnsion plan assots*” 2829 16728

*Altematives include private equity, debt and cusrrency

**This constitutes reafised gams from the receipt of investment income (e g dividends and rent), transactions where assets are sold and unrealised

falr value changes
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32 Retirement benefits {continued)

Funding the Scheme

The 2013 actuanal valuation by Willis Towers Watson of the pension scheme showed a funding shortfall of £2,054m Consequently a recovery plan
was agreed between the BBC and the pension scheme Trustees which detals the contribution amounts to be pald by the BBC over a 12 year period

commencing 2014

As descnbed in note 4, additional contributions of £3 4m paid by the Group to the BBC in 2016 (2015 £8 1m} have been presented outside Headline
profit

The contributions lo the scheme by members are malnly paid vla a salary sacrifice arrangament

The next formal actuanal valuation 1s currently being performed as at 1 Apnl 2016

Projecied
m7 me 018
Contribution retes h.) % %
Employer 167 167 145
Employee (Old and New Benefita) 75 75 75
Employee (Career Average Benefits 2006) 40 40 40
60 60 80

Employee {Career Average Benefits 2011)

On the basis of pension assumptions made, the BBC Group expects to make contnbutions to the scheme totaling £132 2 mithon in 2016/2017

Principal actuarial assumptions

The calculalion of the scheme liabilibes and pension charges, for IAS 19 purposes, requires a number of assumptions, both financial and
demographic, to be made

The princzpal financial assumptions used by the actuanes, at the balance sheet date were

008 7618
Y% %
Rate of increase in satanes 10 10
Rate of increase in pension payments
Old Benefits 30 29
New Beneflts 28 27
Career Average Benefits (2006) 24 24
Career Average Benefits (2011) 19 18
Infiation assumpbion (RPI) 30 29
Inflation assumption (CPI) 20 19
Discount rate 34 34
The sensitivities regarding the pnncipal assumptions used to measure the scheme's liabildies are set out below
npact on Impaci on
0. Assumption used sthuioe Gabiliies schorme Hebiikiey
Hovement k] Em
Discount rate 34% Decrease D 1% 22 (294)
Discount rate 34% Increase 0 1% 16 221
Retail price Inflation rate 29% Decreage 0 1% 17 231
Retall price infiation rate 29% Increase 0 1% 18 (237)
Mortality rates See below Decrease 0 1% 34 464
Mortality rates See below Increase 0 1% 36 {480)
Impact on impaci on
2018 Assumpton ussd scharos Habiiities  schame Nablites
lenm-ll % £m
Discount rate 34% Decrease 0 1% 22 {308)
Owscount rate 34% tncrease 0 1% 17 230
Retall price inflation rate 29% Decrease 0 1% 18 245
Retail price inflatlon rate 29% tncrease 0 1% 18 {251)
Mortality rates See below Decrease 0 1% 35 477
Mortality rates See below Increase 0 1% 36 (494)

67




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2016
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
32. Retirement benefits {continued)
The average life expectancy assumptions, for members after retirement at 60 years of age, are as follows
Principal demographic assumptions
o Ty

Humber of years Numbaer of Yearz

Retinng today

Male 276 275

Female 00 299
Retiring m 20 years

Male 205 294

Female 320 318

The mortalty assumptions have been selected to reflect the charactenshes and experience of the membership of the scheme and are based on those
used for the actuarial investigation which was carried out for funding purposes as at 1 April 2013 The standard ‘S1° senes of tables, pubished by the
CM, reflect recent research into mortality experience in the UK A subset of these tables has been used for males and females, with a multiplier of
122% for males and 107% for females For the allowance for future improvements, the CMI 2012 core projection has been adopied with a long term
trend of 1 25% for both males and females
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33. Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 23 after deducting cash and cash equivalents,
and equity atinbutable to equity holders of the parent compnsing issued capital, reserves and retamed earnings as detalled in the Consolidated
statement of changes in equity

The activities of the BBC are informed by an agreement with the Secretary of Siate for Culture, Media and Sport, which also stipulates borrowing
limuts, both relative and absolute This agreement cumently imits the consolidated net debt of the BBC's commercial subsidianes to £350m The
Group's share of this limit 15 in tum agreed with the Group’s shareholder and informs the level of borrowings available to the Group

The Group delivers long-term value to its ulimate parent, the BEC, through cash returned in the form of dvidends as a share of the Group's profits,
acquisition of BBC-comnmussioned content or intellectual property, direct investment In BBC programming, production of original content and growth in
the capital value of the BBC's equity in the Group The dividend policy of the Group s agreed with the BBC so as to achieve the optimum balance
between annual cash returns and investing for growth in pragramming, mtelleclual property or cther assets to build value over the long term

The BBC Trust's pnnciples reqwre strict compliance with the four Commercial Cntena fit wath the BBC's public purposes, brand reputation and brand
values, commerclal efficiency, and fair frading policy The Group's policy in making investment dectsions is governed by the BBC Trust's principles
and commerceal efficiency of the investment The commercial efficiency of an investment is determmed on a case-by-case basis, wilh respect to
finangial metrics such as net present value internal rate of retum, payback penod and profit margin

As a diversified portfolio of businesses, the Group operates a framework for calculating investment discount rates that are tailored to different types of
investment This framework applies appropnate risk premisms to the discount rate in order to ensure all nsks relating to the investment are taken into
account and that the required rate of return 15 commensurate with this level of nsk This in turn allows the BBC and the Group to achieve the optimal
allocation of capital and balance its short term and long term return goals

34. Financial instruments and risk management

Finencial risk management objoctives

In the normal course of its activities, the Group 1s exposed to a vanety of financial risks, including market nsk (mainly currency nsk, interest rate nsk
and pnce risk), credit nsk and hquidity nsk BBC Worldwide takes a nsk averse approach to cash and treasury management actvities and seeks to
minimise the Group’s exposure to valatilty in the financial markets The Group uses denvative financial instruments to hedge certain nisk exposures in

accordance with its hedging policy

The Group’s financial risk management operations and associated trade execution activibes are performed by BBC Group Treasury All treasury
activities are governed within parameters defined formally in the policles agreed by the BBC Executive Board and BBC Worldwide Board In addition,
treasury activities are routinely reported and are subject to review by management

The Group's financial instruments, other than those used for treasury nsk management purposes, principally compnse cash and cash equivalents, a
debt faciity provided by its parent, external borrowings and vanous nems such as trade receivables and payables that anse directly from its
operations The Group finances i{s operations from these financial instruments The Group does not undertake speculative treasury transactions

Currency risk

BBC Woridwide 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk ansing from various cumency exposures, principally in relation to the US dollar, the Euro and the
Australlan dollar The Group generates a surplus In most currencies m which It operates The Group's share of revenue from operations generated
outside the UK was 64 1% in 2016 versus 66 1% n 2015

Forelgn exchange transaction nsk anses from recognised assets and liabllities and forecast future commercial transactions that are denominated in a
currency that is not the transagcting entity's functlonal currency Due to movements in exchange rates over time, the amount the Group expects to
receive or pay when it enters into a fransaction may differ from the amount that it actually recetves or pays when it settles the transaction A small
proportion of related operating expenses will also be denominated in these foreign cumencies providing some lavel of offset to these revenue
exposures

The Group has implemented a hedging policy to minimise volatility in its financial resuits The Group's policy 15 to hedge the majornty of its forecast
net foreign curency trading covering a pencd of ane year, and a proportion of forecast trading for e further year thereafter Forward cumency contracts
allow the Group to settle transactions at known exchange rates, and therefore to reduce uncertainty ansing from cumency risk
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34. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Currency riek {continued)

The overall cost of a hedged transaction and the asseciated forward cumrency contract in the income statement is fixed However, where contracts
span financial years and hedge accounting 1s not applied, the fair value of the forward cumency contract gives nse to gains/losses in each financial
year due to the timing difference between the recognition of such gainsflosses and the recognition of the associated hedged transaction The
pains/losses seen are therefore a result of market conditions as opposed to vanances in contract value

Some sales contracts also contaln clauses whereby changes In currency rates outside of an agreed range impact on the contract price, in the majorily
of cases the value of the Indwvidual contracls and other features within the contract imit the currency nisk exposure to a level that is not significant to
the Group Such clauses have been separated from the host contracts and recorded as embedded denvatives The movement in fair values in these
derlvatives is recorded through the Income statement Further details of the embedded denvatives are given in note 24

Foreign exchange translation nsk anses from the translation of overseas subsidianes' income statements and balance sheets into sterling This
transiation currency nsk may be hedged by funding overseas investments with loans In the same functional currency as the overseas investment No
such net investment hedges were in place at 31 March 2016 or 31 March 2015

'y
The majority of the forward foreign currency contracts entered into by the Group are designated as hedging Instruments In effective cash flow hedges
Corresponding falr value movements have, accordingly, been recorded within other comprehensive Income For forward forelgn currency contracts
not designated as hedging instruments, movements in fair value are recorded directly in the income statement within ‘other gains and losses'

The following tabie shows the profit/{loss) and equity impact on the Group's derivative financial ingtruments of a 10% weakening of GBP compared to
other foreign currency retes

2014 2018

£rm m

Forward foreign currency contracts (34 4) (36 1}
_Embedded denvatives {03) 05
Total Impact on derivatives {34 7} {35.6)
Impact on income statement (6 8) (69)
_impact on other comprehensive income (27 9) (287)
Total impact on comprahensive Income (34 7) {35 6)

The same movement in currency rates would resutt in an income statement gain of £2 5m (2015 £4 7m) in respect of the Group's interest-bearing
loans and borrowtngs and Intragroup monetary assets and #ablities not eliminated on consolxaton

interest rate risk

The Group's main exposure to interest rate fluctuations anses on external interest bearing liabities and loans from its parent undertakings BBC
Worldwide borrows at floating rates of interest cieating an exposure to cashflow interest rate sk BBC Worldwide then use interest rate swaps, caps
and collars lo generate the desired Interest profile and to manage the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations The Group uses interest rate
swaps fo fix interest rates so that greater certainty about the level of future Interest payments can be achieved Interest rate swaps, caps and collars
are taken out based on projected borrowing requirements, therefore differences will occur between the notional amount of swaps, caps and collars
and the actual borrowing requirements

If interes! rates had been 1% higher and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 would have
increased by £1 3m (2016 £0 9m) The incremental increase in profit is primarily attnbutable to the effect that such a change in interest rates would
have on the fair value of interest rate swaps, which fix all of ihe Group's extenal floating rate mterest

Other price tisk
Other pnce nsk is any pnce change other than those ansing from changes in currency of interest rates

Credit risk

Credlt nsk is the nisk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meel its contractual obligations
Credit risk anses from cash and cash equivalents, derivative inancia! instruments, available-for-sale financial assets and trade and other receivables
Group treasury policies require that cash and cash equivalents and derivative finarcial instruments are held pnmarlly with banks of A+ rating or better

The Group's credit risk management policy In relation to trade recewvables involves regularly assessing the financlal reliability of custemers, taking Into
account severa! factors such as ther financial position and historical performance The carrying amount of financial assets included i the financial
statements represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit nsk n relation to these assets For 2016, one (2015 nil} customer comprised 10 9%
of the Group's total revenues This same customer comprised 31 4% of the Group’s trade recervables balance as at 31 March 2016 No other
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group‘s revenue for 2016 or 2015

The Group's ather classes of financlal assets do not contain impaired assets and are not past due
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34 Financial mstruments and risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk s the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due BBC Worldwide is subject to ceilings Imposed
on its borrowings by BBC Group, which in turn is subject to hmits set by the Secretary of State as descnbed in note 33 At 31 March 2016, the net
debt limit imposed by BBC Group on BBC Wordwide was £172 2m (2015 £172 2m), with a gross debt hmit of £202 2m (2015 £202 2m) subject to
an equivalent £30 Om (2015 £30 Om) cash batance being held These hmits are subject to review going forward

In order to comply with this ceiling together with the terms of any individual debt instruments, BBC Worldwide manages its iquidity through a number
of measures, including reguiar cash flow reporting, forecasting, hedging against foreign exchange fluctuations and proactively managing working
capital

Maturlty analysls of financial liabilities

The table below analyses the Group's flnanclal liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining pertod to contractual maturity at the
batlance sheet date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contraciual undiscounted cash flows and will therefore not reconcile to the amounts

disclosed in the balance sheet for borrowings, denvative financial mstruments and trade and other payables
*

Dus in Dus ster
loxs than Due in Dye in more than
1yenr 1to 2 years 210 3 years 3 ywirs Totsl
2018 Em Em L] _E_m EL
Financial llabilitios at falr value through profit and loss
Denvative financial instruments 136 58 - - 194
Embedded derivatives 04 06 - 16 26
Qther creddors 20 06 - 29 55
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Bank ioans 03 - - - 03
Loan from Intermediate parent undertaking 1892 - - - 169 2
Trade and other payables 347 2 - . - 347 2
Due in Oue aller
loss than Due in Dua In mohe than
1year 110 2ymars Zto 3 years a3 yrars Tote
208 L5, £m L En tm
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Darivative financial instruments 101 56 05 1€ 1
Embedded denvatives 05 - - 05
Other creditors 11 10 - - 21
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Bank loans 03 - - - 03
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 20 136 4 - - 1384
346 2 - - - M52

Trade and other payables
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34. Financial instruments and risk management {continued)

Categorisation of financial essets and liabilities

Lonns and Loans and
for-anhy Total T ] dvabl: Carhy Tolsl
2018 ine 2018 Ly .1 ) 2018 2018 2018
- Im tm tm tm Em tm in tm
Assots as per Balance Sheot
Derivative financlal instruments - - 10 10 - . 112 112
Embedded denvatives - - - - - - a1 01
Assets held for sale - - - - 30 - - 3o
Unquoted equities 758 - - 75 44 - - 44
Loans recelvable - 90 - 90 - 87 - 87
Trade and other receivables - 311 4 - 3114 - 3530 - 3539
LCash and cash equivalents - 458 - 458 - 66 6 - 66 6
75 366 2 10 3147 74 429 2 113 347 9
Othar financlal Othar financhal
liabllities Denvaiives Toisl liabi Chims. Darivatives Total
018 2018 2018 2018 F.ul 2018
m [ ) £m l;n E Pl.
Liabilitles as per Balance Sheet
Denvative financial mstruments - 104 194 - 159 159
Embedded denvatives - 26 26 - 05 05
Non-controlling Interest o1 - 01 - - -
Bank loans 03 B 03 03 - 03
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 1676 - 1676 1355 - 1355
Trade and other payablas 3512 - 3512 348 0 - 348 0
B19.2 A ] (ZEH] 453 8 164

Non-derivative financial assets consist of cash at bank, short-term investments, available-for-sale investments, trade receivables, other receivables
and accrued income Non-denvative financial liabilities consist of borrowings, trade payables, other payables and accruals

The falr vatues of all non-derivative financial Instruments approximate to the carrying velue i the Balance Sheet The following methods and

asumptions have been used to determine farr vaiues

and 20, respectively)
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The fair values of cash at bank and bank loans epproximate therr carrying values because of the short-term maturity of these instruments, and

The fair value of trade and other recewvables and payables, accrued income and accrued costs approXmate their carrying values (see notes 18




' Annual Report and Financial Statements

BBC Worldwide Limited
Year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Falr value hierarchy and valuation techniques

The following table provides an analys:s of financial msiruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at falr value, grouped Into Levels
1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

+ Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted market pnces (unadjusted} in active markets for identicat assets and labilities

+  Level 2 fair value measurements are those denved from inputs ather than quoted pnces included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset

or habiity, either directly {1 e as pnces) or indirectly {1 @ denved from pnces), and
» Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or habity that are not based on

obsgervable market data (uncbservable inputs)

Level 1 Level 2 Leveld Totsl Lol 1 Lavel 2 Levsl 1 Totel
2018 ol s s 15 w1 21 2018
en m £m L) £m Em £m £m

Financlal assots at fair value through profit and loss

Denvative financial instruments - 10 - 10 - 112 . 112

Embedded derivatives - - - - - - 01 01

Available-for-sale financlal assets

Unquoted equities -~ - 7.5 75 - - 44 44
- 10 75 BS - 12 45 157

Financlal liablliitlos at fair value through profit and loss

Derivative financial instruments - (19 4) - {19 4) - {15 9) - {15 8}

Embedded derivatives - - (26) (26) - - {0 5) (0 5)

Cther payables - - (4 0) (4 0) - - {18) (18)
- (19.4) {6 8) {26.0) - {15.9) (2.3) (18.2)

For assets and lfabilities that are recognised in the financia! statements on a recumng basls, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categonsation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period

The falr values of desivative financial Instruments are calculated using quoted pnces Where such prices are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-oplicnal denvatives, and option pricing models for
optional denvatives Forelgn currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted
interest rates matching the matunties of the contracts Inlerest rale swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and
discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived from quote Interest rates

Leve! 3 financral liabilitles recorded at faw vaiue and included within other payables relate to contingent consideration and written put options issued to
non-controlling interests in the Group's subsidiaries The fair value of such instruments s calculated based on the strike price of the options and '
management's best estmate of the date at which the options will be exercised Embedded detivatives are also assessed as a level 3 financlal habillty |

Where the strike pnce of an aption is based on the falr value of the underymg business, this has been estmated based on forecasts of future cash
flows preparad by management

The change in far value of Level 3 financial instruments 1s reconciled as follows

Financia Asaew Fnancl Totsl 2018 Fingncisl Asasts Financial Total 2018
LiabiUss Lisbiides
Em £m Em Em Em tm_
Opening balance 45 (23} 22 44 {16} 28 ‘
Change m fair value recorded in other gains and losses 01 (33) (32) 01 {0 8) (05} \
Change in far value recorded in reservas 29 - 29 - - - |
Unwinding of discount recorded within finance expense - on 01) - (0 1) (01)
Acquistions - (18) (16) - - -
Settiements - 07 07 - - -
Closing balance 75 (6 &) 09 45 {2 3) 22

73




BBC Worldwide Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

35. Related party transactions

Trading transactions

The related party transactions of the Group have been presented in accordance with IAS 24 Retated Party Disclosures Retated parties of BBC

Worldwide include its subsidiary, associated and joant venture undertakings, its parent undertakings and fellow subsidiaries, and key management
personnel of the Group and therr close family members Transactions between the BBC and BBC Worldwide Group pension schemes are detailed In

note 32

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have baen eliminated on consolidatlon and are not disclosed in

this note Amounts owed by and to the BBC, the ntermediate parent undertaking and fellow subsidiary undertgkings within the BBC Group are

reported m notes 19 and 20 respectively
The following table illustrates transactions with BBC Group entities during the year

0 2018
£m tm_
Dhndends paid (105 5) {111 3}
Interest costs (22} (18)
Acquisition of distribution rights {61 0) (599)
Royaities and other programme related fees {19 5) (19 5)
Other expense {34 6) (42 8)
Pension top-up (34) 81}
Ad sales commission 169 171
Programme licance income 113 169
Other income 22 _T9
{195 B) {201 3)
Other income and expense includes recharges of administrative and other simliar costs including property recharges, and amounts payable in
accordance with sevice level agreements
The value of transactions conducted with joint ventures and associates was as follows
Dividands Dividands
Incors Expenar receivaile Income Expanse recaivabla
W wis by 2018 018 gl
Marwa of ralsind Iﬂ R-lnhmle l:! Em [ (E £m |:r|_
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 500 - 188 478 - 287
Other joint ventures Joint Venture 07 (0 6) 1X:) a7 {0 8) 09
New Video Channel America LLC Associate 207 92) 64 127 (3 6) 21
Other associatas Associate 45 (54) 1]4] 25 (14 7) 03
769 (15.2) 26.8 638 (18 1) 320
All fransactions with refaled partles arise in the nosmal course of business on an arm's length basis None of the balances are secured
The following amounts were outstanding at the balance sheet date
Rocalvables Puysbivs Na? balance Raceivables Payables Nai batance
2018 e i o8 wn e
Howra of reluind paty Relationahd Im gm L= fm L £m
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 14 4 - 14 4 241 - 241
Other joint ventures Joint Venture o1 - 01 - - -
New Video Channel Amenca LLC Associate g4 (40) 54 174 (33) 14 1
Other assoclates Associate 66 02) 64 22 0 1) 21
30.5 4.2) 26.3 437 3 4) 40 3

The recevables balance includes amounts loaned to joint ventures and associates disclosed in note 17

At 31 March 2018, the Group also had gn outstanding balance of £1 Om (2015 £1 Om) payable to a jont venturs of the Group's ultimate parent in

respect of group reflef This balance is included within other payables
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35. Related party transactions (continued)

Remuneration of key management personnsl

The Group considers key management personnel as defined under |AS 24 Ralated Party Disclosures to be Directors of the Group, together with the
BBC Worldwide Executive Committee Total emoluments for key management personnel were

F- gl nis

tﬂ Im

Short-term employee benefits 52 56
Post-employment benefits 03 04
Other long-term benefils 01 02
56 62

The above figures for emoluments include the remuneratien of Directors (note 7}

36. Parent undertaking and controlling party
The Group's iImmediate parent 1s BBC Ventures Group Limited, which s in turn 100% owned by BBC Commercial Holdings Limited The ulimate

parent undertaking and controlling party i1s the British Broadcasting Corporation, which is imcorporated in the United Kingdom by Royal Charter The
larges! group in which the results of BBC Worldwide are consolidated is that headed by the BBC The consolidated accounts of the BBC may be

obtained online at www bbc co uk/annualreport

37. Events after the balance sheet date

On 1 April 2016, the Group acquired an additional 47% af the shares of Baby Cow Productions Ltd {'Baby Cow'} a production company based in the
UK, for a total of £2 8m Prior to the transaction, the Group held a 25% stake in the company, and as a result of this transaction the Group has gained
control of the acquiree The full acquisition note has not been presented as the acquisiton 18 not considered to be material

There were no other events subsaguent to the balance sheat date detaills of which are required to be included in the financial statements
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2016 2015
Nola £m £m
Profit for the yoar b B52 914
items that can be reclassified to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale financial assets
Profit/(losses) on re-measurement of avallable-for-sale financial assets n 298 -

Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges n (12 5) (10 8)
Tax on cash fiow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive Income n 25 22
Othar comprohensive iIncomel({loss) for the year (7.1) (B 8)
Total comprahensiva income for the yoar 782 82.8
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 March 2016

2016

2015

Nots £m £m

Fixed assets
Goodwlll ¢ 138 138
Distributton nghts d 206 2 1652
Other intangible assets e 308 234
Tangble fixed assets H 234 238
Investments g 1271 1290
Trade and other receivables i 328 89

434 1 3841
Current asseats
Programme rights and other stocks h 253 437
Trade and cther receivables i 3580 3725
Cash at bank and in hand 137 1630

3970 5792
Current liabllitles
Trade and other payables ] (492 4) (656 2)
Net current llabilities (95.4) (77 0)
Total assets less current liabllities 387 3171
Trade and other payables ! {175 4) (141 7)
Pravisions for habdities k (16) {63)
Net assets 1617 1691
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital m 02 02
Hedging Reserve n (13 0) 30)
Avaflable-for-sale Reserve n 68 3g
Retained Earmings 167 7 168 0

1617 1631

Shareholder's funds

These financial statements of BBC Worldwde Limited, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue

on 13 June 2016, and

Tim Davle
Chief Executive Officer

half by
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Avaliable-tor-ssle

Note Shere capital  Hedging reserve reserve Retained Ezmings Total Equtty

£ £m £€m £m £m

At 1 April 2014 02 58 38 187 9 197 6
Profit for the financial year b - - - 814 914
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges n - (10 8) - - (10 8)
Tax on ltlems taken drectly to equity n . 22 - - 22
Total comprehensive income for the yoar - {8 6} - 91.4 828
Dividends pad - - - (111 3) {111 3)
At 31 March 2018 02 (3.0) 3.9 168 & 169.1
Profit for the financial year b . - - 852 852
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges n - {12 5) . - (12 5)
Tax on ltems taken directly to equity n - 25 - - 25
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets . - 29 - 29
Total comprehensive income for the year - (10 0) 2.9 85.2 782
Equity dividends paid - - - {105 5) {105 5)
At 31 March 2016 02 (13.0) 6.8 147.7 1418
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Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Financiat Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework {FRS 101) The financtal statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention modified to include the revaluation of investment

properties

The Company has transiioned to FRS 101 from previously extant UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice for all periods presented A list of the
FRS 101 exemptions adopted by the Company has been provided in note s, aleng with reconciliations of all material adjustments made retrospectively
as a result of the transition The accounting policies which follow set out those policies which apply in preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016

[

Golng concern

The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis and under the histoncal cost accounting convention Further information about the
going concem assumption 1s given m note 1 (b) to the consolidated financial slatements

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are shown at cost less any prowiston for impairment

Forelgn currency
The Gompany’s presentational and funchionat currency is stering Transacbons In foreign cumencles are transiated into sterling at a monthly average
exchange rate

Monelary assets and liabiithes denominated tn foreign cusrencies are iranslated into sterling at the batance sheet date at the rate of exchange ruling at
that date Surpluses and deficits arising from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities at these rates of exchange, together with exchange
drferences ansing from trading, are included in the profit and loss account

Distribution rights

Distrbution rights represent rights to programmes and assogiated intellectual property acquired with the primary intention of exploiting the nghts
commerciaily as part of the Group's long-term operations Distribution rights are wihally recogrused at acquisition cost or production cost, when the
Graup controls the respective assets and the risks and rewards attached to them The carrying amount is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and provision for Impairment

Amortisation of distribution nights Is charged 1o the Incorne statement to match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over lis estimated
average marketable life The expected ives of distnbution rights range from 1 to 10 years

Other Intangible assets

i internally-generated ntangible assets development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the Group's development, ncluding software and website development, I8 recognised when the
asset is technically and commetcially feasible, sufficient resources exist to complete the development and 1t Is probable ihat the asset will generate
future economic benefits Any expenditure on research or development activities that dees not meet the aforementioned cnieria is recognised as an

expense in the penod in which It is incurred

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful lives using the siraight-line method Amortisation expense is recorded withun total
operating costs in the income statement The useful lives used for intangible assets are as follows

« Software (including internally-generated software) 1-5 years

Useful ives are reviewed every year and adjustments are made, where applicable, on a prospective basis
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a. Principal accounting policies (continued)

Tanglble fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost after any provision for iImpairment, less accumulated depreciaticn

Cost comprises the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset and includes costs directly
atinbutable to making the asset capable of operating as ntended Barrowing costs directly attnbutable to assets under construction and which mest
the recognibon criteria in 1AS 23 are capdalised as part of the cost of that asset

Depreciation is charged so as to wrile off the cost of assets to their residual value, over thelr expected useful lives using the straight-line method
Depreciation commences from the date an asset 1s brought into service

The useful ves for depreciation purposes for the pnncipal categones of assets are
* Short leasehold bulldings Unexpired lease term

« Plant and machinery 3 to B years
+ Fixtures and fittings 3to 10 years
Leoased assets

Operating lease rentals payable are recognised on a straight-lina basis over the term of the lease The Company has no finance leases

Impalrment of fixed assets

Al each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets (including distribution rights) to determine
whether there Is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If such indication exists an impairment loss 1s recognised in the
income statement for the amount by which an assel's cairying amount exceeds Its recoverable amount Where an asset does not generate cash flows
that are independent of other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Programme rights and stocks

Stocks, comprising of merchandising, are stated al the lower of cost and net realisable value Programme nghts for broadcasting refer to the
programme rights acquired for the future broadcast on one of the Company's television channels The carrying amount is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation, and after wniting off the costs of programme rights that are considered irmecoverable

Financlal instruments

Financial assets and hatilities are initally recognised as either financlal assetsfabilitles at fair value through profit or loss, loans and recefvables,
avallable for sale financial assets or held to maturity invesiments and are measured at fair value less any directly attnbutable transaction costs, except
for those financial assels classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at far value Policies applied by the Company in
respect of financial nstruments are consistent with those applied by the Group, the Company has therefore adopted the FRS 101 paragraph 8(d)
disclasure exemptions as equivalent disclosures have been provided in the note 1 (r) to the Group financial statements

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation ansing from past events and it Is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obhgaton Prowisions, other than deferred tax, that are payabte over a
number of years are discounted to net present value at the balance sheet date using a discount rate appropriate to the particular provision concerned

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its group, the Company
considers these to be insurance arangements and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a
contingent liabitity until such time as (t becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

Pension costs
Contributtons to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the Income statement as they fall due

Employees of the Group also participate in defined benefit schemes operated by the Group's uttimate parent, the Bntish Broadcasting Corporation
{the “BBC"} The defined benefit schemeas provide benefits based on pensionable pay The assets of the BBC's main pension scheme, the BBC
Pension Scheme, 1o which the majonty of employees belong, are held separately from those of the BBC Group

The BBC Penslon Scheme Is a group-wide scheme and there Is no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost to
scheme participants The contribution rates are set by the pension scheme trustees based on vatuations which take 2 longer-term view of the assels
required to fund the scheme’s liabilties Valuations of the scheme are performed by Towers Watson, consulting actuanes, with formal valuations
undertaken at laast every three years Accordingly, the Company sccounis for contnbutions payable to the scheme as if the schemes were defined
coninbution schemes, as 18 required by IAS 19 Employee Benefits
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a. Principal accounting policies {continued)

Taxatlon
Current tax assets and liabiibes are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the faxation authonties based on tax rates and
laws that are enacted or substantively enacied by the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax Is recognised on all iemporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carrying amounts i the
financial statements with the following exceptions

e Where the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwll or of an assst or liabiity in a transaction that 1s not a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects nerther accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with Investments in subsidiaries, assoclates and Joint ventures, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s probably that the temporary differences wili not reverse in the foreseeable future,
and

® Deferred income tax assels are recognised onfy to the extent that It 15 prabably that taxable profit will be avaliable against which the deductible
temporary differences, camed forward tax credits or tax losses can be ublised

Deferred income tax assets and liabilibes are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset is
realised or llability Is settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assels Is reviewed at each balance sheet date

Dividends on shares presented within shareholder's funds

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a llability at that date to the extent that they are appropnately authonsed and are
no longer at the discretion of the Company Unpard dividends that do not meet these critenia are disclosed in the notes to the Company financial
statements

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of business trade and assets, representing any excess of the fair value of the considerations given over the fair
value of the identfiable assets and habilities acquired, 1s caplialised and reviewed annually for mpairment On transiton to FRS 101, the Company
reversed previous amortisation on Goodwill and recognised this change for the peniods 1 Apnl 2014 onwards The Company has invoked the ‘true and
fair overnde’ of paragraph 10(2) of Schedule 1 to the Regulations to ovarcome the conflict which the 'non amortisation' of Goodwill has with paragraph
22 of Schedule 1 of the Regulations The effect of this change has meant a reversal of £1 6m amortisation i the prior year

Critical accounting estimates and key management judgements

The preparation of financial statements in confirmity with FRS101 requires the use of certaln cntical accounting assumphions, and requires
management to exercise its jJudgement and to make estimates in the process of applying the Company accounting policies The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are signiicant to the finencial stalements are consistent with

those disclosed within note 1 (u) of the Group accounts
b Profit for the year
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not t¢ present its own profit and loss account for the year The

Company reported a profit for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 of £105 2m (2015 £91 4m) A statement of comprehensive income has been
included m ine with IFRS 1 to reflect the items of income and expense that are not recognised In profit or loss as required or permitted by FRS 101

The auditor's remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 6 of the consolidated financial statements
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C. Goodwill

Cost and Net book value
As at 1 Apnl 2015 and 31 March 2018 13.8

Goodwill arose In the year ended 31 March 2013 foliowsng the hive-up of trade and assets from the Company's subsidiary, Bedder 6 Limited

d. Distribution rights

fm
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015 6181
Addiions 130 3
Fully amortised nghts written off (V&)
At 31 March 2016 7457
Amortigation
At 1 Apnl 2015 4229
Charge for the year 1193
Fully amortised nghts wntten off (27)
At 31 March 2016 539.5
Neat book value at 31 March 2016 206 2
Net book value at 31 March 2015 1952
e. Other intangible assets
Software
£m
Cost
At 1 April 2015 348
Additions 143
Disposals {17 4)
At 31 March 2016 317
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2015 114
Charge for the year 69
Disposals (17 4)
At 31 March 2016 09
Net book value at 31 March 2016 08
Net book value at 31 March 2015 234
f. Tangible fixed assets
Short leasehold
bulkiings Plant & Machinery  Fixtures & Fittings Totat
tm £m £m tm,
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015 14 1 495 61 697
Additrons 04 26 08 38
Disposals (7 9) (14 3) {4 5} (286 7)
At 31 March 2016 66 TN 24 46 8
Depreclation
At 1 April 2015 77 324 58 459
Charge for the year 05 32 05 42
Disposatls (7 9) {14 3) {4.5) (267)
At 31 March 2016 : 03 213 1.8 234
Net book value at 31 March 2016 63 185 0.8 234
Net book value at 31 March 2015 64 171 03 238

The Company does not hold any assets under finance leases (2015 £nil)
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g. Investments
7018 17313
£m tm
Subsidianes 859 1019
Joint ventures ‘ 02 .
Associates 144 140
Cther investmenis 166 131
1271 1200

The Company has investments in the following subsidianes, joint ventures and associates which principally sffected the profits or net assets of the Group

Country of incorporation of Ownarship
Note establlshment Princlpal sctivity interest
Principal Subsidiary Undertakings
2 entertaln Limited + United Kingdom Hokling compeny 100 0%
UK Programme Distribution Limited * + United Kingdom Programme distributor 100 0%
Tonto Films and Television Limited + United Kingdom Content production 100 0%
Wordwide Channel Investments Limited + United Kingdom Hoiding company 100 0%
Rapld Blue + South Alrica Programme distibutor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Australia Holdings Pty Ltd + Australia Holding company 100 0%
B8BC Workdwide Canada Limited + Canada Programma disiributor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide France Sarl + France Programme distributor 100,0%
BBC Worldwide Germany GmbH + Germany Progremme distributor 100 0%
BBC Workiwide Japan Limitad + Japan Programme dlstributor 100 0%
BB Workiwide Holdings B V + Netherands Holding Company 100 0%
BBC Warkiwide Americas Incorporated + USA Holding company 100 0%
Country of
Incarporation of Ownerahip Country of neor Ow p
Nols gyigblishment interast Note  ar establlahment nteresi
Subsidiary undertakings
BBC Worldwide Investments Lid +  United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Woridwide Music Limited +  United Kingdem 100 0%
BBC Earth MD (WWD) Ltd +  United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worldwide Productions (Africa} (Pty) Ltd Africa 100 0%
BBC Earth Productions (Life) Ltd +  United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Wordwida (Alfica) (Pty) Lid Africa 100 0%
BBC Earth Produchions Ltd +  Unlted Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worldwide Ausiralia Pty Lid Australia 100 0%
BBC Woridwide Productions (UK) Ltd +  Unlted Kingdom 100 0% BBC Worldwide Australia Publishing Pty Ltd Australla 100.0%
BBC Magszines Rights Lid +  Unlted Kingdom 100 0% Nina Preductiona1 Incorporated +  Canada 100 0%
BBC Magazine Hoklings Lta + Unlted Kingdom 100,0% Worikdwide Channel Investments (Oniario) Ltd Canada 100 0%
BBC World Service Televaision Ltd +  United Kingdom 100 0% 2004370 Ontario Incorporated Canads 100 0%
beeb Ventures Lid +  Unlted Kingdem 100 0% Worldwide Knowiedge (Bejing) Business Cansutting Cpy Lid China 100 0%
European Channel Managemant Ltd +  United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Workiwide Productions Nordica ApS +  Denmark 100 0%
BBC Workdwide Corporate Services Ltd  +  United Kingdom 100 0% Erste Weltwel! Medien GrmbH +  Germany 100 0%
beeb Rights Ltd** +  Unitad Kingdom 100 0% BBC Workdwide Medla Privats Ltd Indla 100.0%
European Channsl| Breadcasting Ltd +  United Kingdom 100.0% BBC Workiwide Channels Mexico S.Ada CV +  Mexico 100 0%
2 anfertain Video Ltd United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Workdwide Mexico SAdeCV +  Mexico 100 0%
Demon Music Group Ltd Unlted Kingdom 100 0% BBC Workdwide Peolska +  Poland 100 0%
DVDS2 Lid United Kingdom 100 0% BEC Worlkdwids Channels (Singapora) Pte Ltd +  Singapore 100 0%
DVDS3 Lid United Kingdom 100 0% BBGC com US, Incorporated +  USA 100 0%
BBC Earth Productions (Giant Fims) Lid United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Workdwide Americas (401} k Plan Trusiees UBA 100 0%
Earth Flim Productions Ltd United Kingdom 100 0% Worldwida Amancas investmants Incorpocated USA 100 0%
BBC Magazines Rights 3 Lid United Kingdom 100,0% Global Hybnd Productons LLC USA 100 0%
BBC Magazines Rights 5 Lid United Kingdom 100 0% Sun Never Sets Productions LLC USA 100 0%
2 Entertain Managament Ltd United Kingdom 100 0% Bad Wolf Productions LLC USA 100 0%
BBC Video Ltd United Kingdom 100 0% Acdfacent Productions LLC USA 100 0%
MCI Music Publishing Ltd United Kingdom 100 0% BBC Workimde Reafity Productions LLC USA 100 0%
Crimson Productions Ltd United Kingdom 100 0% OWTS Productions LLC USA 100 0%
F-Beat Records Lid United Kingdom 100 0% Worldwide Competition Productions LLC USA 100 0%
Demon Records Lid Linited Kingdom 100 0% BBC Woridwide htarmediadora de
Bedder & Limited +  United Kingdom 100 0% Programadora Estangelra Lid +  Brazll 100 0%
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1] Investments {continued)
Country of
Incorposation or Ovwmership Country of Incorpocation Ownership
Nota  egtanlishemam intarest Note  or establiyhmant interest
Joint Yentures - Assoclates
New Video Channel America LLC USA 501%
UKTV Madla Holdings Limited + United Kingdom 50 0% Jasper Broadcasting incorporated Ceanada 50 0%
Sub-Zero Events Limited +  United Kingdom 50 0% Baby Cow Productions Limited +  United Kingdom 250%
Tower Productions GmbH + Gemany 50 0% Buming Bright Productions Limited +  United Kingdom 250%
88C Earth Productions (Africa) Lid +  Unied Kingdom 100 0%  Clerkenwel Flims Lmmited +  LUnited Kingdom 250%
UKTV Media Limited Urited Kingdom 50 0% Skm Flm & TV Limited +  United Xingdom 25 0%
Knowedge-Vvest Communications Inc Canada 50 0% Sprout Pictures (TV) Limited +  Unlted Kingdoem 5 0%
JV Progrems LLC USA 50 0% Children's Character Books Limited +  Unkted Kingdom 250%
Educatonal Publishars LLP +  United Kingdom 15 0%
Investments Woodlands Books Limted +  Lnited Kingdom 15 0%
Lookout Point Limited +  United Kingdom 350%
Vikl, ¢ +  USA 1 8% Curve Media Limited +  United Kingdom 250%
Lefi Bank Pictures Limited +  tnited Kingdom 12 2% Next Radio Limited India 182%
NC internet Limited +  United Kingdom 55% MS5M- Workiwide Factual Madia Private Ltd +  indd 26 0%
Masher Technologles +  LUnited Kingdom 10 0% Amazing Productions Limited +  Unlted Kingdom 250%
Chthanger Films Limited +  Unhed Kingdom 25 0%
Greenbind Medla Limited +  Unhed Kingdom 26 0%
Mighty Productions Limited +  Unitad Kingdom 25 0%
Reg Planat Pictures (Entertainment) Limited +* United Kmgdem 250%
+ Heid direcily by BEC Woridwide Limited
- BBC Worldwide holds 92 7% of the issusd share capital but the non-controlling shareholders have no right to distributions
- BAC Worldwide hotds B8 4% of issued share capital but the non-controfing sherehoiders have no right to distnbutrons

Listed beiow are subsidianes controlied by the Group where the Directors have taken the exemption from having an audit of its financial statements for the year anded 31 March
2015 The exermption is taken In accordance with the Companies Act 2008 s479A.

s

Subsidiary Reg No

BBC Earth Productions {Lie} Lirmited 05705186
2 Emestain Management Limited 05087003
BBC Video Limited 04840888
BBC Worldwide Investments Limded 02701369
MCI Muzic Publishing Limited 02984545
Demon Music Group Limited 01622224
Woridwide Channe! Investments Limited 03309240
Bedder 8 Limited 05982502
BBC Magezines Holdings Limited 05895580
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a. investments (continued)
Subsidiades Jvs Assoc Other sents Total
[ £m Em £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015 - 158 148 2407
Additions 02 21 28 51
Fair value uplift - - 29 29
Transfer - 18 (18) -
Dhsposals - {3 8) (1 4) (17 3)
At 31 March 2016 02 161 173 2314
Provisions for impairment
At 1 Apnl 2015 - 18 17 1mrv
Charge for the year - 13 - 13
Disposals - (14) (10) (87)
At 31 March 2016 - 17 07 104 3
Neot book value at 31 March 2016 02 144 166 1271
Net book valua at 31 March 2015 - 140 131 1290
h. Programme rights and other stock
18 7018
£m &m
Programme rights for broadcasting 205 180
Programmes in the course of production 43 212
Fimshed goods for resale 05 45
253 43,7
R Trade and other receivables
Z06 Fio
Em £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables 907 900
Prepayments and accrued income 520 443
Amounts owed by ultimate parent undertaking 21 01
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 1784 182 9
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 240 B6
Derivative financial nstruments 09 84
Corporation tax recoverable 63 24
Other receivables 36 58
3580 3725
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Trade receivables 245 -
Denvative financial instruments 01 28
Deferred tax 82 61
2.8 89
3908 e
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J Trade and other payables
2018 2016
tm £m
Amounts falling due within one yoar-
Bank loans and overdrafl 640 2407
Trade payables M6 369
Rights creditors 985 805
Accruals and deferred income 793 a3s
Amounts owed to ultmate parent undertaking 475 460
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1165 1301
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings 8¢ 221
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates 02 04
Denvative financial iInstruments 148 102
Other payables including other taxes and socis) sacurity 286 355
492 4 656 2
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Loan owed to intermediate parent undertaking 187 8 1355
Other payables 05 -
Derivative financial instruments 73 62
175.4 141.7
667.0 797 9

Detads of bank loans and loans owed to the Company's Intermediate parent undertaking are given In note 23 to the consolidated financial statements

k Provisions for liahilities
Deferred tax O tract! Qther p Total
£m Em fm £m
At 1 April 2015 22 16 25 63
Provided during the year - - 12 12
Released In the year (20) 03) (a7) (30}
Utiiged in the year - {13) {1 B) (29)
At 31 March 2016 02 - 14 16

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefiis to be derived by the Company from a contracl are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract

Other provisions primarily relate to reorganisation costs, property-related prowvisions including onerous, non-cancellable leases where the expected
benefits to be denved by the Company from subletting thase properties are lower than the unavoidabile costs payable over the remailning term of the
respective leases, and provisions for ditapidations in respect of leasehold properties

Further deferred contingent conslderation may be payable in connecilon with acquisitions made by the Company No provision has been made where
the ikehhood and magnitude of additional payments cannot be assessed with reasonable certainty

The Company and some of its subsidiaries operate a cash pooling arrangement All the cash balances within the pool belong to the legal entity to
which they retate, although the Company has access 1o all funds and each cash pool participant s jointly and severally iable for any overdraft
balance

L Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided as follows

Fixed ssasttiming  Derivative timing

differences diffs Provisk Tots)
£m £m £m £m
At % Apnl 2015 28 11 - 39
Charged {o profit and loss 05 27 08 41
At 31 March 2016 EE 3.8 09 80
Deferved tax is recorded in the balance sheet as follows
2018 s
Em Em
Deferred tax assets g2 61
Deferred tax habiiies (0 2) (22)
Not deferred tax asset 80 39
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m. Called up share capital
2018 018
£m m
Issued and fully pald
250,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each 02 02

Tha Company has one class of ordinary shares, which ¢arry no right to fixed income

n. Reserves

Available-for-sale Reserve
The available-for-sale reverse is used to record the fair value movement of the Company's Investments
Hedgling Reserves

The hedging reserve is used to record the effective portion of cumulative net changes in the falr value of cash flow hedging mstruments, related to
hedged transactions that have not yet occurred {net of tax) Dunng the current year, gains of £10 Om were removed from the hedging reserves and
credited to revenue In the income statements (2015 £6 6m)

o. Commitments and contingent liabilities
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided are as follows
2016 2618
o £m
Capltal commitments
Tangible fixed assets 31 63
Distribution nghts 898 § 960
10186 1023
Other financial commitments
Programme nghts for broadcast - 15
Other commitments 281 252
281 287
Total unracognised commitments 128 7 129 0

In addition to the above, the Company’s share of commitments for programme acquisitions and other commitments n respect of its UKTV jont
venture amount to £76 Tm and £109 6m, respectively (2015 £20 8m and £119 2m, respectively)

The Company has given guaranteas In relalion to the BBC Commercial Holkdings Limited revolving credit facility agreement, see note 23 of the Group
accounts for further detall

p. Operating lease arrangements

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-canceliable operating leases,
which fall due as foliows

2618 2018

£m £m
Within one year 34 48
Between two and five years 123 143
After more than five years- 808 524
Total 86 3 715

q. Related party transactions

The Group's consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 contain related pasty disclosures Consequently, the Company has
taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 101 (IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures) not to disclose transachons with other members of the BBC
Group The value of transactions conducted with nen wholly-owned subsidiaries and with other related partles was as follows

Exp Divid r d Income Expense Dividends received

2018 2016 2018 2018 2015 2018

Name of related party Reistlonahip im, Em £m Em £m Em
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Jomt Venture 500 - 188 479 - 287
New Video Channel America LLC Associate 17.8 - . 112 - -
Other associates Associate 36 (5 4) 04 08 142 01
Total 7.2 59 192 599 142 288
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q. Related party transactions {continued)
The following amounts were outstanding with related parties af the balance sheet date
R k Payabl Net bajance Raceivables Payables Net batance
016 201& 2018 2018 2018 2018
Name of related party Relstionship Em Em £m £m £m £m
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 144 - 144 241 (03} 238
New Video Channet America LLC Assoclate 89 - B9 128 - 128
Other associates Associate 07 (0 2) a5 18 01) 17
Total 240 {0.2) 238 387 0 4) 383

At 31 March 2016, the Company atso had an outstanding batance of £1 3m {2015 £1 Om) payable to a joint venture of the Company’s uttimate parent
in respect of group rellef This balance 1s included wathin other payables

r Post balance sheet events

©On 1 Apnd 2016, the Company acquired an additional 47% of the shares of Baby Cow Productions Ltd {'Baby Cow'), a comedy production company
based in the UK, for a total of £2 8m Pnor to the transaction, the Company held a 25% stake n the company, and as a result of this transaction the
Group has gained contro! of the acquiree The full acquisition note has not been presented as the acquisiton 15 not considered to be matenal

There were no other events subsequent to the balance sheet date details of which are required to be included in the financial statements

s, Transition to FRS 101

For all periods up 1o and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company prepared its financial siatements in accordance with previocusly extant
united Kingdom generally accepted accounting practice (UK GAAP) These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2016, are the first the
Company has prepared in accordance with FRS 101

Accordingly, the Company has prepared individual financial statements which comply with FRS 101 applicable for penods beginning on or after 1 April
2015 and the significant accounting policies meeting those requirements are described in the relevant notes

In preparing Ihese financials statements, the Company has starled from an opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2014, the Company's date of transition
to FRS 101, and made those changes in accounting policies and other restatements required for the first-time adoption of FRS 101 As such, this
nole explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating ils balance sheet as at 1 April 2014 prepared under previously extant UK
GAAP and its previousty published UK GAAP financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

On transtion to FRS 101, the company has applied the requirements of paragraphs 6-33 of IFRS 1 "First ime adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards”

IFRS 1 allows first-time adoplers certain exemptions from the general requirements to apply IFRSs as effective for March 2016 year ends
retrospectively The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions

Per FRS 101 paragraph 7A, the Company has taken exemption from the requirement of paragraphs 6 and 21 of IFRS 1, to present an cpening
statement of financial position at the date of transihon

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101 on the premise that equivalent disclosures have been
ncluded in the consolidated financial statements of the group

(&) The requirements of paragraphs 62, 864(d), B64(e). B64(g). B84 (h), B64(j) to B64(m). BE4{n)(il), BE4 (o)(il), BE4(p), B64(q)(li), BES and B&7of
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, equivalent disciosures have been incfuded in the consohdated financial statements of the Group,

(b) the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures,

{c) the requirements of paragraphs 91-89 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement,

(d) the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ to present comparative information In respect of

(1) paragraph 79{a){iv) of IAS 1,

(li) paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment,

(i) paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangibie Assets,

(iv} paragraphs 76 and 79(d) of IAS 40 Investment Property, and

{v) paragraph 50 of IAS 41 Agriculture

(e) the requrements of paragraphs 10(d), 10{f), 39(c) and 134-136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements,

(f) the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,

(g) the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,

(h) the reguirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures,

(1) the requirements in IAS 24 Retated Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into between two or more members of a
group, provided thal any subsidiary which is a party to the transachon is wholly owned by such 8 member, and

(1} the requirements of paragraphs 134(d)}-134(f) and 135{c)-135(¢} of IAS 38 Impalrment of Assets
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s. Transition to FRS 101 (continued)
FRS 101
Reconclliation of Equity as at 1 April 2014 Notes UK GAAP Ro-glassications FRS 101
Ra-measurermants
£m £m £m

Fixed assats
Goodwill 1 138 138
Distnbution nghts 164 2 164 2
Otber Intangible assets 2 . 114 114
Tangble fixed assels 267 (11 4) 153
Investments 3 216 39 1255
Trade and other recevables 78 78

3341 9 3380
Currant assets
Programme nghts and other stocks 323 323
Trade and other receivables 3160 3160
Cash at bank and in hand 53 5 535

4018 - 4018
Trade and other payables 4 (4322) (0 8) {433 0)
Net current llablilitles (30 4) (e (312
Total assets less current liabllities 3037 31 3068
Trade and cther payables (101 5) {101 5)
Provisions for habilities (77 77
Net assets 194.5 31 197 6
Capltal and roserves
Called up share capital 02 02
Hedging Reserve 5 56 58
Available-for-sale reserve 3 39 3g
Retained Earmings 184 3 (6 4) 187 ¢
Shareholder's funds 194 5 31 197 6

FRS 101
Reconclliation of Equity as at 31 March 2013 Notes UK GAAP Re-class ficatons FRS 101
Re-maaslrements
Em £Em im

Fixod assets
Goodwill 1 122 16 138
Distnbution nights 1952 - 1952
Other Intangible aseets 2 - 234 234
Tangible fixed assets 47 2 (23 4) 238
Investments 3 1251 38 1290
Trade and other recelvables 88 - 89

111 3] KI5
Curront assots
Programme rights and other stocks 437 - 437
Trade and other receivables 3725 - 3rzs
Cash at bank and in hand 1630 - 1830

5792 - 5792
Trade and other payables 4 (655 5) 07) (658 2)
Net current liabllitles {76 3) (V)] (770}
Total assots leas curront liabllities 323 48 3171
Trade and other payables {141 7) - [RCalrs]
Prowisions for liabiitles {6 3) - {6 3)
Net assets 164.3 48 1691
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 02 - 02
Hedging Reserve 5 - (30) {(30)
Avaltable-for-sale reserve 3 - 39 g
Retained Eamnings 164 1 38 168 0

1643 48 1691

Shareholder's funds
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] Transition to FRS 101 {continued)

1 Goodwill
On transition to FRS 101, £1 6m amortisation on Goodwill has baen reversed in the 14/15 financial year Goodwill has been assessed for
impairment in accordance with |AS 28

Goodwill ansing on the acquisiton of business trade and assets, represanting any excess of the fair value of the considerations given over the fair
value of the \dentifiable assets and labiHies acquired, is capitalised and reviewed annually for impairment The Company raversed previous
amortisation on Goodwll Incurred since 1 April 2014, and adopted this accounting practice for the periods 1 April 2014 onwards The change In
basis 15 to comply with FRS 101 The Company has invoked the ‘true and fair override’ of paragraph 10{2) of Schedule 1 to the Regulations to
overcome the conflict which the 'non amortisation® of Goodwili has with paragraph 22 of Schedule 1 of the Regulations The effect of this change
has meant a reversal of £1 6m amortisation in the prior year

2 Othorintangible assels

Under tAS 38, software, unless integral to hardware, Is recognised as an intangible asset Company scftware previously recognised under tangible
assels has been transferred to 'Other intangible assets’ on the balance sheet, resulting 1n a £23 4m decrease in tangible assels at 31 March 2015
{£11 4m at 1 Aprll 2014)

3 Investment Revaluation
Under previous UK GAAP, the Company recognised it's 12 2% investment in Left Bank Pictures Limited at cost of £0 5m, this has been remeasured
at fair vatue per IFRS 39 and resulted in a £3 8m restrospective adjustment to the balance of the investment at 1 Apnt 2014

4 Employee Benefits
On transitton o FRS 101, a holiday pay accnual has been accounted for of £0 7m at 31 March 2015 (£0 8m at 1 Apri) 2014)

5 Hedging Reserve
On transiwon to FRS 104, under 1AS 39, the fair value movements from forward contracts designated as hedges has been accounted for under
"Hedging Reserve' This has meant a £3 Om charge to the Hedging Reserves at 31 March 2015 (£5 6m credit at 1 April 2014)

6 Other remeasurements
The effect of the other remeasurement differences on reported profit of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 s as foliows

2018
———t
Profit for the year ended 31 March 20165 under UK GAAP 811
Goodwll (note 1) 186
Hodiday pay accrual (note 2) co
Hedge Reserves {note 3) 87
Increase 1n reporied profit for the year 103
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 under FRS 101 . M4
items that can be reclassified to profit or loss,
Hedging Reserves
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges (10 8)
Tax on cash flow hedges taken directly 16 other comprehensive income 22
Other comprehansive {loss) for the year (8 8)
Total comprehensive inceme for the year ended 31 March 2015 under FRS 101 828
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